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« If you are challenging an order of commitment or a criminal conviction and are filing this pef‘ tioh m t‘ﬁ%‘
Superior Court, you should file it in the county that made the order.

-

o [fyou are challenging the conditions of your confinement and are filing this petition in the Superior Court,
you should file it in the county in which you are confined.

¢ Read the entire form before answering any questions.

« This petition must be clearly handwritten in ink or typed. You should exercise care to make sure all answers are true and
correct. Because the petition includes a verification, the making of a statement that you know is false may resuit in a conviction
for perjury.

« Answer all applicable 'questions in the proper spaces. If you need additional space, add an extra page and indicate that your
' answer is "continued on additional page.”

« If you are filing this petition in the superior court, you only need to file the original unless local rules require additional copies.
Many courts require more copies.

o If you are filing this petition in the Court of Appeal and you are an attorney, file the original and 4 coples of the petition and, if
separately bound, 1 set of any supporting documents (unless the court orders otherwise by local rule or in a specific case). If you
are filing this petition in the Court of Appeal and you are not represented by an attorney, file the original and one set of any
supporting documents.

« If you are filing this petition in the California Supreme Court, file the original and 10 copies of the petition and, if separately bound,
an original and 2 copies of any supporting documents.

« Notify the Clerk of the Court in writing if you change your address after filing your petition.

Approved by the Judicial Council of California for use under rule 8.380 of the California Rules of Court (as amended
effective January 1, 2007). Subsequent amendments to rule 8.380 may change the number of copies to be furnished to the
Supreme Court and Court of Appeal.
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MC-275
This petition concerns:

X1 A conviction J Parole
) &1 A sentence ) Credits
(22 Jail or prison conditions (] Prison discipline

() Other (specify):

1. Your namé&hawn Michael rodriquez

2. Where are you incarcerated? _California State Prison-Sacramento

3. Why are you in custody? [(X] Criminal conviction [ Civil commitment
Answer items a through i to the best of your ability.

a. State reason for civil commitment or, if criminal conviction, state nature of offense and enhancements (for example, “robbery with
use of a deadly weapon").

Conspiracy to Commit First Degree Murder / FPelony Auto Theft

Aggravated Kidnap for Extortion / Usinganother's name to obtain Credit

b. Penal or other code sections: 182/187;209;530.5-PC/VC 10851

c. Name and location of sentencing or committing court: Ca. Superjor Court,Placer County

Auburn,Ca.

" 7N, Case numberr __Placer County # 62-034689

e. Date convicted or committed:_October 6,2003

f. Date sentenced: _December 8,2003

g. Length of sentence: 25-1ife;7-1ife;4 more years

h. When do you expect to be released? _Death.

i. Were you represented by counsel in the trial court? X Yes (L] No  [fyes, state the attomey's name and address:

Jesse Serafin,Placer county Public Defenders Office (Deceased)

4. What was the LAST plea you entered? (Check one):

B} Notguity [ Guity [ Nolo contendere [_] Other:

5. If youpleaded not guilty, what kind of trial did you have?

& suy [ Judge withoutajury (] Submitted on transcript (] Awaiting trial

N
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6. GROUNDS FOR RELIEF MC-275

Ground 1: State briefly the ground on which you base your claim for relief. For example, "The trial court imposed an illegal
enhancement.” (If you have additional grounds for relief, use a separate page for each ground. State ground 2 on page 4.
/,-e\For additional grounds, make copies of page 4 and number the additional grounds in order.)

The use of False Evidence at Trial Denied Petitioner his Rights to Due Process and

.

he 5th and 6th endments to the U.S. Constitution and

its Analogous California statutes.

a. Supporting facts:

Tell your story briefly without citing cases or law. If you are challenging the legality of your conviction, describe the facts on which
your conviction is based. If necessary, aftach additional pages. CAUTION: You must state facts, not conclusions. For example, if
you are claiming incompetence of counsel, you must state facts specifically setting forth what your attorney did or failed to do and
how that affected your trial. Failure to allege sufficient facts will result in the denial of your petition. (See /n re Swain (1949) 34
Cal.2d 300, 304.) A rule of thumb to follow is, who did exactly what to violate your rights at what time (when) or place (where). (If
available, aftach declarations, relevant records, transcripts, or other documents supporting your claim.)

In 2003,Alleged Victim Micholas Hamman testified in the above referenced case,which

resulted in the conviction and sentance at issue here.While on the stand,he told several

lies,including,but not limited to,a fabricated story in which the petitioner used a ruse

in order to lure him into the crime scene and the phisically Assaulted him to accomplish

~=the crime of Kidnappingia story in which he claimed not to have seen the petitioner take

steps to free him from the confinement at issue and also preserve his life by preventing

the attempt on his life.

on April 6,2015,the Ca. Attorney Generals Office recieved a letter from Mr. Hamman,

at least the second,in which he swears under penalty of perjury that he lied at the trial.

On April 29,2015 he contacted the petitioner in response to a request for an Affada-

vit,and again made reference to lying at trial.

while in prison,he has repeatedly told Prisoners that he commit perjury to put the

petitioner in prison for life.Several of those prisoners have volunteered declarations

(See Attached Continuation Page)
b. Supporting cases, rules, or other authority (optional):

(Briefly discuss, or list by name and citation, the cases or other authorities that you think are relevant to your claim. If necessary,
attach an extra page.)

Ca.Penal Code §1473(b)(2):In Re Richards,(2012)55 Cal.4th 948;In Re Malone,(1996)12

== Hayes V. Woodford,(2002)(9th Cir.)301 F3d 1054;Hall V. Director of Corrections, (2003)

Wal-MartStores, Inc.,

MWW%HR? U.S.1 -
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Continuation of Ground 1-Supporting facts

(Continued From Previous Page)describing what exactly he told them,ranging frdm
nis perjured testimony having been solicited by Counsel for the people,to lying
about receiving a Bruise from the petitioner in a struggle to kidnap him,to the
petitioner not having even been present at that time and place,to having lied jabout
the level of the water in the room he was held in order to convince the jury he was
in grave danger and feared for his life,to having seen the petitioner try to
remove the screws of a widow to allow him to go free,and also attempt to break
said window,and most compellingly,having seen,himself,that petitioner removed [the
parden hose from the vent to prevent his death.by carbon monoxide poisoning.
Taken as a whole,and viewed in the entire context of the trial,these claips,
if true,serve to negate Most,if not All of the Elements neccesary for gquilty flind-
ings regarding the charges of Aggravated Kidnap for extortion (7-Life)and
Conspiracy to commit murder(25-Life).

For Instance:Conspiracy to Commit Murder requires a unanimous finding by k
jury that the defendant had the specific intent to kill the victim,and also reguires
p finding that overt acts were commited in futherance of the Murder (CALJIC 8.60)
Removal of the hose,witnessed by the victim,therefore,would tend to negate the
Existence of Intent td kill,as would an overt act be negated in this instance.
Civen how shaky the verdict was to begin with,after 5 days of deliberations,anf
several Jurors having voluntarily admitted to never have found intent to kill fin
the first‘place(See Attached unsworn declarations[CT 371-378]and Article from fhe
ﬁuburn Journal dated October 5,2003 by Ryan McCarthy),and that the petitioner {id
Festify to these claims at trial,it seems probable thatthe jury would have sided
sith the petitioners statement of the case at trial if not for the perjured clpims
by the victim,to the contrary.

Likewise,CALJIC §9.53 requires unanimous finding)of 2 elements by a jury:
First,that a defendant held a person,and second,that he did it with the specific
intent to commit Extortion.The People submitted that a plan(Premeditation)was
ade the night before the confining of the victim,that the petitioner willfully and
bhysically participated in that plan,physically striking Mr. Hamman to accomplj}sh
Fhat goal,and did so,with the goal,from the start,of extorting Mr.Hamman.
Counsel for the People further stated,in support of this theory,that 1)the
petitioner could release the victim at any time,knew so and refused to;and 2)the
petitioner used the rising water level in the room to extort Mr.Hamman,with use

bf testimony By Mr. Hamman that the water rose to his neck at one point cuasing
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him to fear for his life,facilitating the crime of extortion.

By that logic,Mr.Hammans assertions that the petitioner attempted in Two
separate ways to free him from his confinement would neccesarily point to a)arn
assumption by the petitioner that he could not free the victim or was not awar
that he could(Negating the theory that the continued confinement was intentior
b)a lack of intent to hold the victim or otherwise detain him with the intent
commit extortion.

Secondarily,and also by that logic,Mr.Hammans assertions that he lied abol
being lured into the building and the the cell,and further,about being Kicked
the petitioner to facilitate that confinement,Indeed, his statement(COnsistent

e
al)
to

t

by
with

that of the petitioner and of The Denied witness Erin Hughes,)that the petitigner

was not even present at the time of confinement,would tend to render that thed
of premeditation,a plan,and specific intent to extort throughout,completely vq
In fact,these assertions mean,neccesarily,that the weight of testimony on

issue would have undeniably sided with the petitioner's testimony,and thus,wot

petitioner testified that he did not plan it,did not know he could open the dq
did not intentionally hold the victim to commit extortion(Only extorting as a
matter of convenience separate from the holding/confing)did not lure the victj
did not kick him or otherwise participate in that aspect of the codefendants
criminality...

Whicﬁ,not 6nly negating the elements of the 7-life crime,would have also
have provided a basisi for instructing the Jury regarding the lesser included
offense of Misdemeanor False Imprisonment,which,for the record,most if not all
jurors in the case stated the would have voted for.Indeed,answering that they
would have voted "Guilty" for False Imprisonment if not for the word "Violence

in the instructions,they did neccesarily "Defer"to the 7-life crime due to a

factor in mitigation;namely,a perceived lack of violent conduct on the part of

petitioner,Amounting to a miscarriage of justice which,if not for the false
evidence,would have been prevented at trial.

In any case,given that Mr.Hamman admits perjury,his credibility is lacking
this showing presents a scenario in which the defense theory of the case must

given substantially more weight as a result,which would have definitely resulf

in a different result both in the guilt finding phase and the sentancing phasis

of the trial,given tha‘there was not allowed any other testimony from witness

the crime itself.
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1)Exibit a:Sworn Statement from Victim Nicholas Hamman,in his letter
addresssed to California Attorney Generals office and Attached to the letter by
Deputy Attorney General Rachelle A. Newcomb,Dated 3-29-2015;

2)Exibit b:Letter from Victim Nicholas Hamman to Petitioner dated
4-29-2015 in which he refers to lying at trial three seperate times in one page,
and in which he refers to an interview with the Placer county District Attorneys
Investigator,who Attempted to Dissuade him as a witness by telling him that his
attempt to right his wrong would come to nothing;

3)Exibit c:Sworn Declaration of Prisoner Thurl Light#F68745,In which
he states that Mr. Hamman Admitted to him that 1)He committed Perjury,2)He had
entered the building on his own,free of trickery by anyone buﬁ had been afraid to
admit so initially;3)That Defendant Anna Rugg Had kidnapped him on her own,4)That
petitioner and his then-girlfreind had been outside of his presence when he wags
kidnapped;5)That he had lied about a bruise he knew had come from Anna Rugg slam-
ming his leg in the door having come from the petitioner in order to Implicatg
him in the kidnapping:6)that the level of the water in the room he was locked |in
had reached his waist only,while he had lied under ocath in order to portray a
more threatening situation,which would have petitioner punished more severely
among other things;

4)Exibitd:Sworn Staement of AnaAl-Rad Guinn#H73336,In whichhe States,
similar to Mr. Light,that he Heard Mr. Hamman admit to perjuring himself at the
petitioners trial,hearing all of the same statements made to Mr. Light:
5) Exibit e:Sworn statement of Jose "Katalina" Witrago#G24066,In which
She states that Mr. Hamman Commited Perjury in the Petitioners trial,and the

Light and Guinn with few Exceptions,To Wit:1)The petitioner had attempted to let
him out of the room he was locked into:and 2)that the petitioner had been seen

by Mr. Hamman removing the Hose from the vent in order to prevent his murder Ry

testimony of the petitioner).

6)Exibit f:sworn Statement of Daniel Rowe#T33781,in which he States
that he overheard the conversations of Mr.sHamman and Light,and affirms many
of Mr. Light's assertions;

7)Exibit g:sworn Statement of Thurl Light,in which he States that hé
again spoke to Mr. Hamman during a visit to AdSeg,and was told,by Mr. Hamman,

that 1)the district Attorney had sent someone to see him,who attempted to

As Suppo¥ting documentation for these facts,petitioner submits the following:

details Mr.Hamman provided to her were consistent with those provided to Prisgners

Carbon Monoxide Poisoning,before he took it away for good(Cosistent with the frial
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dissuade him as a witness;2)that he was "Afraid"to make a full disclosure of
events that surrounded his having commit perjury in 2003,and that 3)he "Felt
bad" about the totality of the circumstances involved.

Fhe




MC-275
7. Ground2orGround _______(if applicable):

Cumulative Effect of State Court Errors not neccesarilv sinqularly Predudicial,In

™iolation of Petitioners Rights to Due Process,a Fair Trial,Confrontation of Witnesses,

as quaranteed by the 5th,6th,and 14th Ammendments to the U.S. Constitution and its

Analogous California Statutes.

a. Supporting facts: .
As Stated in Ground l,above,The Victim in Petitioners Criminal Case has repeatedly

Admitted to having Commit Perjury at the Trial which resulted in the Petitioners term

of 25-life,7-life plus 4 years,and absent details from him thus far,petitioner has been

able to ontain statements from witnesses to his admissions with specific details which

serve to undermine confidence in the quilty findings of the trial by negating most of

the Elements neccesary to establish Guilt Beyond a Reasonable Doubt in the State of

California as a matter of Law.

Petitioner would now submit to this court that,Having raised several grounds in

prior Appellate and Habeas proceedings,and hereby incorporating them by reference,with

Ground 1 of the instant petition,would present a Prima Facie Case for relief on the

f’\

ground that,when viewed in the proper context,the overall effect of all of the built up

grrors did deny him a Fair Trial,Due process,and Freedom from Self Incrimination,and

Confrontation of Witnesses.

To support this Claim,Petitioner re-alleges the following facts and claims:

1)The facts stated at Trial supported jury instruction on the Offense of

Simple Kidnapping.Forcing the jury to choose between Aggravated Kidnap for Extotion and

Felony False imprisonment By Violence,Menace,Fraud or Deceit,without separation of the

Extortion charge from the kidnapping charge did force them to::Choose either a non-

b. Supporting cases, rules, or other authority:
Please see attached Memorandum of points and Authorities.

~
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fiolent Mandatory Minimum "Life"term based on a belief that his conduct was nof] at all
violent,a factor in mitigation,which in reality resulted in an aggravated sentlance;or
a crime they deemed inherently violent which prevented them the ability to rerlder a

guilty finding as to Extortion,which the Petitioner had,without any reservatidn,admit-
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ted throughout all proceedings,therefore forcing them into an "All or Nothing'

and true miscarriage of justice.

their finding of Non-Violent Conduct as to the petitioner,as well as their bel

of Due Process,A fair trial,trial by Jury,and Fundamental Fairness;

3)Inconsistent Verdicts:As matters of both Fact and Law,the jury's i

patently irrational.

only a question of Intent.

rational neccessity.

thier reference in deliberations,the Elements of intent to kill and ofovert ac
h separate page and out of order,being several pages away from their attached

rasily able to cuase confusion to lay persons).
4)Juror Misconduct:On his uniform Juror Questionaire,meant in fact t

is understandable,given that in the packet of instructions given to the jury for

verdict

which exacerbated the petitioners punishment based on a factor in mitigation,q real

2)As Stated in §1 above,failure to instruct on Misdemeanor false imgrison-

ment, forcing the jury to find guilt as to a "Life" term offense in order to vindicate

ief that

he had commited the Crime of extortion,as he had repeatedly admitted,adenial,as above,

nability

to reach a verdict as to the Attempted Commit Murder,based on the very same set of
facts alléged in the Conspiracy Charge is inconsistent and therefore unreliable.If
the Jury could not Unanimously find all the Elements,Beyond a Reasonable Doubt| as

to the Attempt,How is it reasonable that they could then find all of Those Same

Elements,plus, the two additional Elements required for the -Conspiracy charge?That is

We need look no further than simple logic:Both crimes require a finding of Specific
Intent to Kill.Both Require acts in furtherance of that killing.The cofmonalitfies end
there.Since the petitioner admitted to acts in furtherance of the crime, (While| claim-

ing not to have intent €0 follow through,only participating as a ruse)thise lepves us

Intent is requisite for both crimes.Intent for one crime neccesarily meanp intent
for the other,if they are alleged on the same set of facts,as they were here.Ljikewise,

lack of intent for the one is also a lack of intent for both,again,as a matter|of

Referring again to CT pgs.371-378 and the Article written By Reporter Ryap .
McCarthy,The jury in this case readily admitted, for the most part,an inability|to find
Lhe requisite intent to kill AT ALL,having misunderstood the jury instructions{Which

L were on

page,

b reveal
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any potential bias of prospective jurors,Juror number ten,Robert J.Stefun ans
"No" to a question regarding having Freinds or family in law Enforcement.On V

dire,he answered"No" to a question to the Judge regarding whether or not anyt

juror in the trial in question,to which he responded "Not that I know of."
More than one potential juror had been challenged for cause and excused

ties to law enforcement through family by that point,in Mr. Stefuns presence.

foreman.

Other jurors described him later as"Unreasonable,wanting guilty verdicts
everthing without further discussion".

According to Ryan McCarthy,a news reporter for the Auburh Journal,He was

minutes after the trial ended,while still in the courthouse,by Mr. Stefun, "My
others dont."
much ado was made. about technicalities such as the semantics of the term"Law

CONSISTENTLY COMMIT ACTS OF VIOLENCE AGAINST EACH OTHER AND HIS GUARDS qualif
someone who would be biased as a result of their job.

Petioner asserted then and does assert now that bias is inherent and Imp
as a matter of REALITY. ‘ '
Additionally,there was question as to whether the answer in the negative

‘"Mistaken or inadvertant"or whether the fact that the mans father might be de

wered
bire

ning the

other jurors had been questioned about had any bearing on his ability to servp as a

Jue to

Other Jurors claim(CT 371-378)that Mr. Stefun went on to nominate himself as the

on

told
Father

was a Federal prison Warden,Some people make the right choice and avoid crimes and

In the hearing on the defense Motion for a New Trial based in part on this issue,

pbnforce—

ment"and whether or not Warden of a prison full of ALREADY CONVICTED CRIMINALS WHO

LeS as

jied,

was

reased

played a role in the existence of bias;Again,petitioner views this as a Cop-O
working to "Enforce" the Sentances of "Law" breakers creats an obvious bias,r
convénient thatthe mistaken amnesia lasts until minutes after it would matter

least according to the People's assertions as to the statute involved.

a trial by a fair and impartial jury.

10

peices of Evidence which pointed to a diminished culpability of the part of the

t:

A fathers role in his sons life,leaves deep and lasting impressions,Neccesarily.

Hearing stories from a father at the dining table,as ‘a child,about his rough day

gardless

of when he dies,and so...How is an omission on this point possibly a mistake?ind how

at

Petitioner stands by the assertion that there was an Inherent bias,provén by

Mr. Stefuns post trial statement,that prevented a Fair Trial and Due Process,and
5)Failure to preserve or disclose Exculpatory Evidence:Pre-Trial,sevyeral

petitioner were collected.Among those items were a latent fingerprint and a video
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clearly that he had tried to loosen the screws of the window to the room in whj
Mr. Hamman was locked,in an effort to set him loose.(Clerk's Augmented transcr]

pxibit 85,pgil2)Petitioner again made this claim at trial.While Placer County

brint,which petitioner had told the Detectives to look for .in order to support

claims,as"item No.2",it was never tested,to petitioners knowledge,to see who

pf the Inside of the"Shell' Gas Station in which the Note was left by Co-Defendlant

During his Interveiw with Detectives Coe and Hutchins,Petitioner stated véry

L.ch
Lpt,

sheriff's deputy Jane Xepoleas logged in the "Standard latent tape lift",a fimpger-

his
Lt

pelonged to,nor did it make it to trial:it was somehow "Lost".

During his Interveiw with detectives,Petitioner explained that he had pum

debit card.He then told them how he had walked calmly into the station,bought
rigarillo with loose change,and conversed,calmly with the station Attendant,Ro
Hammer . (Clerks Augmented transcript,Pg.l5)Petitioner Testified in the Trial to
effect. '

During the trial ,the people called Robert Hammer as a witness,and he tes

Co-Defenndant Rugg was'writing the Note,and Violently,Loudly,Demanded that she
but and leave with him.This was very Infammatory to the jury,who was presented

little room for them to believe his story at all.(CT 145-146)

However,it was revealed later that his asssumption was wrong,and the fact:
ispute,petitioners demeanor and actions,could have been proven beyond any dou
the video ‘from the station's suveillance cameras.That video,logged into eviden
Of ficer J.Roye,as "Item No.24",was somehow "Lost"before the trial without any
s to its depictions whatsoever.

Petitioner asserts that this denies him the right to present Exculpatory

svidence known to,and possesd by,the prosecuting agency,and also,by extension

;estimony,while strengthening that of the petitioner,
Further,petitioner asserts that,but for this denial of constitutionally G
anteed rights,the outcome of trial would have been different.

6)Use of Involuntary"Confession",Which,due to its condition was also unre
hs a matter of Fact,not just Law,to obtain Conviction.

Petioner was arrested at 0215 on the morning ofMarch 17,2003,and was beat

that the petitioner Entered the station,approached the door to the restroom where

bf the right to confront the witness against him,Robert Hammer,and impeach his|:

d

jas into the stolen car,after Co-Defendant Rugg had paid for it with the victip's

ert
this

rified

come

an

image of a crazed psychopath kidnapping his codefendant,which understandably gave

in
bt Iby
ce by
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Vo into custody,soaking wet and sleep deprived.

He was subsequently transported to an Auburn police Department Station on
2 [Maple Street,Where he was Handcuffed,behind his back,to a bench,in a cold anteroom
3 |pnd held for hours.
During this preiod,On several Occasions,he told officers,including detectives
paniel Coe,Dale hutchins,and arresting Officer Gary Hopping,that he was ready fo go

ko jail.At one point,the petitioner told officer Hopping,"Everything you need is on
6 |my I.D.,Take me to jail".

7 Petioner became ill due to complications with his stomach ulcer,and was d?nied
nedication or access to medical care,and was told he would receive none untilljhe

8 ronsented to interveiw with Detectives.

9 Petitioner repeatedly requested the use of Toilet facilities,and was told|he

10 |Fould not use the restroom to releive himself until he consented to speak with
» Hetectives.

Petitioner refused several times to speak to detectives and incriminate hjimself,
12 bxplicitly invoking his right to remain silent,and was told,often,that he could not

13 |lleave until he confessed to detectives Coe and hutchins.

#N\14 Between0215 and 0610,several people attempted to make the petitioner confegss
Fo crimes,and some were creative,using emotional leverage,threats,faked empathyyand
1 gven offers of gifts and gratuities such as the use of the restroom,or petitionher's
16 |lilcer medication or food to ease the Acid Burning in his stomach.
17 Finaily,asha matter of law,when petitioner could hold his urine no longerjand
15 tould no longer endure the cold of sitting in the exposed anteroom,soaking wet|and
0 shivering from the weather at 3500 feet in March,and was no longer capable of

Folerating the pain in his gut,his will was overborne and he agreed to speak with
20 lthe detectives,in return for bread,water,the use of the restroom,and warmer
o1 |pccomodations.This aggreement,forced by duress,is refrred to at the beginning and
- bnd of the transcript of the interview,and was spoken of breifly by detective
coe in his trial testimony,as well as that of the petitioner.
23 This Blatant denial of,and disregard for,the petitioners right to be free|from
24 |self-incrimination was made worse when the video was presented to the jury at frial
o5 |® few snatches at a time:in an interveiw which lasted at least 90 minutes,the yideo

vas corrupted,to the point of Static,for as long as 7 seconds at a time,no lesy than

26

138 times,according to the 22 page transcription.It was later described by defense
27 |tounsel Jesse Serafin as appearing to be a video tape corrupted by a magnet.
28 Detective Coe tried to rationalize these damages to the integrity of the yideo

12




7\ and its contents as the result of radio transmissions from the hipmounted radigs
pf various officers standing in the observation room during the interveiw.(Petjtio-
her cannot cite RT Pgs,as he has been deprived of pgs .42l-end by CDCR Officialg.’)

3 This theory fails on SEVERAL points:1)On pg 397 of th reporters transcripf,
Daniel Coe states that they were the result of the transcriptionist simply beipg
inable to hear the low voices in the interview room,and he calls it common,whith
absolutely and directly contradicts what he answers defense counsel on Cross ekami-
6 |pation;2)If,arguendo,that were the case...did half of the county's officers abandon
7 |[their posts to come observe?For 90 minutes?0r was the large volume of localized
radio traffic attributable to a shift change,which,at the time,occurred at 7am|and
/pm?According to Daniel Coe,in his announcement on tape,the interveiw coomenced
pt 6:33am,so this is Passible,however...What about earlier in the mornig,betwegn
10 |PBam and 6am,when Co-Defendant Anna Rugg was interveiwed?In that 28 page transcpipt
it is corrupted 176 times.And what of the victims interview?0n 3-20-03,Nicholap

Hamman was interviewed by the same detective,in the same room.Over the 24 pagep,it

11

12 |1, . . . .
is"Inaudible"a whopping three times.It must have been a very slow day in placer

13 |lcounty that day.

/214 There is another differencein the videos of the defendants Vs.the victimskon
.5 3-18-2003,2 days before the victims interveiw,according to a supplement by detpctive
Coe With that date,Detective Hutchins transferred the videos from VHS to DVD.Ip it
16

possible that defense counsel Serafin was right,and that during this process,the
17 |magnetic tape was corrupted by a magnet of some sort.

18 Additionally,over time,learning to repair electronics in prison as a tradg,the
petitioner has become aware thatthe theory presented at trial by detective Coejis

19 :
utterly without any foundation in reality.Maybe it sounds plausible to the layperson,

0

20 |pbut basic principles of radio wave propogation and reception dictate that it i
21 |lbsolutely impossible for those police band radios to have affected that transrission

- bf the video;That would be much the same concept as your cellphone or cable sattel-

lite interrupting your cordless phone or baby monitor.The transmission frequengies
23 hre so far apart the are in SEPERATE CATEGORIES.this can be proven in theory with

24 [literature or by expert testimony.

o5 Petitioner asserts that first the the coercion/duress that resulted in the
26 video,and then the severely diminished quality,and therefore reliability,servegd to
deny petitioner the right to be free from self incrimination,Denial of the right to
ﬁ*\27 confront witnesses,to due process and of fundamental fairness.To Coerce the "Cpnfe-

28 |bsion",and then to show only peices of it to the jury unduly prejudiced the pefpiti-

bner with unreliable evidence he could not mitigateé,except with his own testimpny,

Sy

13




™\ |Which he claimed,but was unable to prove,due to the damaged video,was consistent
with statements made to the detectives,but which was lost due to the damage. T
But for the use of this unreliable evidence,the result of the Trial would|have
3 |peen vastly different.
7)Denial of right to present a defeﬁse,to call witnesses and to have jury
instructed on defense theory of the case.
At trialit was alleged that the petitioner Kidnapped and then conspired t¢
6 |kill the victim.Petitioner,conversely,denied having been around for the kidnapping
7 |Pf the victim,denied having pianned to do so,denied having lured him into the place
to do so,denied having had the intent to extort the victim by way of kidnapping
and denied having had the intent to kill the victim. .
To support these assertions,the petitionerpresented the ugly truth of the|mat-

10 |ker to the jury:That CoDefendant Anna Rugg DID have this intent and did do thesge

o7

» things,and that though he did participate in a convenient robbery,drive away in

_ |the victims car,use his ATM card,and did not go to great lengths to have the victim
12 released before he could be thrown under the bus by Co-Defendant Rugg:/his reasPn

13 |ffor further participation was to a)Assuage the co-defendant while buying time,fo
/™14 b)keep the victim alive and c)prevent being blamed for the whole snowballing ordeal

by Co—-defendant Rugg,who he knew had a history of doing: just that which he feared.

15
As the basis for this defense,petitioner tried to call Girlfreind Erin Hughes

6 ko the trial as a witness;Though counsel for the people knew all the details of her

17 |finvolvement through pre-trial recorded interviews,and originally had put her o
1s |[FHEIR witness list,he waited until she was on the stand in a 402 hearing to
bpenly threaten her with prosecution should she answer questions which would uphder-
9 mine his case,causing her to invoke her privilege agéinst self incrimination,s¢
20 |Fhat he could call her an "Unavailable" witness and keep the truth out of the frial.
21 |{(RT520-546) _
22 Also as the basis for this defense,the people having paraded the Codefendant
into court for identification with freshly grown hair and feminine make-up applied,
no longer the Masculine Butch Lesbian with a shaved head she had been 5 months
24 |prior,petitioner sought to present testimony of six civillian witnesses and alyo,

o5 |pf Yolo county Police Officers,to prove a pattern by Co-Defendant Rugg,of initia-

Fing situations of a similar nature,and then using the young male cohort as a gcape-

26
hoat or "Fallguy".

27 The judge at trial severely limited petitioners ability to do so by insisting
28 |that only those instances where he had .Personally witnessed the crime were tofbe
hllowed.This hogtied the petitioner,and unneccesarily so:Hearing of and knowing of

L hese situations had the same fearful impact as seeing them would have,and the

14



7™\ ||people actually involved in the situations themselves were willing to testify}so
its'i not like it would have been a parade of out of court,hearsay statements.
2 Without this evidence of the CoDefendantd Chrtacter and Modus Operandi,ahd
3 ||therefore the possibility that the petitioner lacked that same character and IN.0.,
it was impossible to present this defense with any realcredibility,though the
credibility was there to be presented all along.(CT Pgsl75-177;211-213)

It should be noted that While available during trial,Eric Carter Werve i3 no

6 ||longer available:as a result of depression brought on by the severe injuries ¢aused

as a result ofCoDefendant Anna Rugg having implicated :him in a crime to which he

7

was not a party,and incarceration,Eric Killed himself in Kern Valley State Prison
8 ||.

in 2008.
9 Parralel to all of this,and in step with the things petitioner admitted to

10 ||doing, It seems fair that the jury should have been offered instruction on the
lesser offenses to which the petitioner HAD ADMITTED;I.E.Misdemeanor False °
Imprisonment,Simple Extortion,Simple Kidnapping,ect,so the jury would have had

11

12 |loptions to choose from that did not carry mandatory minimum "Life" terms for the

13 ||Smaller crimes that,again,petitioner had already admitted to.
4 Having backed the petitioner into a corner with his admissions of guilt ¢n
small crimes,and denying him tha ability to mitigate those-admissions with a sense
13 of perspective that could be brought with witness testimony that was denied,these
16 |lunfair tactics were compounded by a "Go for the throat" attack which gave the{jury
17 several"all or.Nothing" choices to trap them.into finding guilt on mandatory minimum
~|life term charges,instead of charges reasonably suited to the real culpability

18
of the petitioner.

19 The petitioner asserts that this compound error resulted in an extremely
20 |junfair trial environment which infected the entirety of the guilt and punishm#nt
proceedings,and if not for this denial of a fair trial,the outcome,both in guilt and

in sentancing,would have been vastly different,BOTH LIFE SENTANCES DIFFERENT.

21

22 . L . .y . ..
8)Covictionion evidence known to be false:Petitioner had raised this 1ssWe

23 |lin 2006 on habeas based on the same set of facts raised in ground one of this
o4 |petition,but without the admission of the victim to back it up,and now fenews that
25 claim here.
9)Misinstruction as to the crime of Aggravated Kidnap For Extortion by thp
26 prosecution:In his Closing ArgumentiProsecutor William Marchi,Several times,made
27 |ktatements to the jury which served to lighten his burden of proof,and the judge

g |pllowed this to go uncorrected.Specifically,Mr. Marchi told the jury thatit waj

Ui

hot relevant whether or not the petitioner had actually participated in the actual
kidnapping of the victim,or even knew about it or had even been around when it

15
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had taken place.He told the jury that it was enough simply that Shawn had not

beyond a reasonable doubt:1)A person was Confined,inveigled,enticed,decoyed,
held,or detained:;and 2)the cofining,ect. was done with the Specific Intent to

(Commit robbery,or in this case Extortion).
imprisonment.
if,as a matter of Convenience,a robber happens upon a confined victim andthen

or extortion,merely by refusing to free them or by not being able to do so,or

even by not doing so in a timely manner.

the criteria for quilty finding as to three separate,but vastly differing crij
The first,as has been seen,is the mandatory life term 209,the next,a two-part
charging of Kidnap then Robbery/Extortion;the last,Either of two False imprisg
ment crimes Then the Robbery/Extortién crimes. ' | ‘

The differences lie in the level of criminal Culpability and,therefore,in

taken measures enough to extricate the victim from the room he was locked intg

This is not the way the law works.CALJIC 9.53requires finding of 2 elements

The finding of guilt as to this Crime is a mandétory minimum 7-life term ¢

Nothing in the CALJIC or annotated Penal code can be costrued to mean thaf

f

decides to rob or extort them,he can be found to have Kidnapped them for robbery

By the logic presented to the jury at trial,the very same set of facts megts

les.

br1—

the

sentances which come from conviction;7-Life;2-3-5 + whatever Robbery/Extortiol

mischaracterization of their required findings,to get his Life Term verdict.
Stopping for a second to lokk closer though,we see a flaw that serves to

violate due process and equal protection rights:How can the same set of facts

decides who will be charged how and why?

Wwhy even have the Crime of False Imprisonmentto begin with,ifthe facts wh;

Is it because of the vast amount of semantics and nuance involved in huma
behavior and its complexities,and by extesion,the complexity of nuance and
sematics involved in determining criminal culpability?

Petitioner argues so;in the case at bar,the jury was presented with 2 theq
of the case:1)the prosecutions,which said that he Slammed a door on the victij

leg,and Kicked him inti the room to facilitate a Planned Kidnapping for the

support instruction or guilt as to so many different crimes,and who arbitraril

amount to it are also the facts which amount to Aggravated Kidnap For ExtotioI?

will carry,or 6-36 months + whatever the Robbery/Extortion would carry,respec ively.
In this Case the prosecution hedged by only charging the life crime and the

Felony false imprisonment crime,then backing the jury into the corner with a slick

lch

bries

ns
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herself.

happened.

But what if Mr. Marchi had not told them that Not Being a Hero or Good
Samaritan,or not being able to,was"just as good"(RT)as .actually beating the
victim into the room?What if he had not Nullified the Concept of Semantics or

huances?What if he had not ,in essence said to the jury,unchecked,that as long
mandatory life sentance in prison?

Ca. Evidence code and how it serves to keep evidence out of court which would
pliminate the need for guesswork and which would point unerringly to what just
fin this case actually looks like...These are exceptional curcumstances,and I d
believe that the cause of justice (Wheter anyone but me actually cares about i
Or not anymore)dictates that what the jury had to say on this point is actuall
worth hearing,and it does not hurt anyone at all to listen to them;in fact it

serves the public interest.

l)the jury says pretty unequivically that they wanted to find the petitioner

Heferred from the lesser offense to the greater ,based on a factor in mitigati
the Kidnap Chargedid not include the WORD"VIOLENCE"and therefore was a better
Further,in this regard they"Felt tricked into these decisions by the prosecuti
(CT371-379)

pbointed out its difference from the 2092

17

express purpose of extortion,decided upon the previous day;or,2)Defense theory,

and his girlfreind were outside,and then, later,used the opportunity to extort

the room,without a plan,and seperate from Ms. Rugg's having confined him all by

the victim was in the room and as long as Shawn Knew,you have to give him this

Huilty of false imprisonment without the WORD"Violence"Attached to it;and 2)They

Further...What,if instead of unfairly mischaracterizing the law tofit his

that,while not having a plan quite yet settled,Anna Rugg convinced the victim|to

follow her into the room to have sex and then locked him in while the petitioher

the victim with the threat of harm and the promise of securing his release ffom

There are a large variety of choices here for the jury,regarding what actpally

bf

as

While,for over a decade I have heard the same regurgitations of theAlmighty

ice
D
-

y

Thusly prefaced,the facts that so many people dont want to be heard are that

pn
Eit .

bn" .

Hesires and illegally shifting the burden of proof away from himself to the deffense,

the prosecution had charged the misdemeanor False Imprisonment and,as is his duty,

Petitioner asserts that had this error not occurred,the Jury would have ren-

Hered a guilty finding as to the misdemeanor false imprisonment charge,and a very
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br whatever for extortion.

At any rate,when any of these nine errors are reviewed alone,its possible

Maybe call. them harmless,but when considered together,with or without the fact

it seems beyond unlikely that a rational trier of fact can conclude that an

error that affects the Framework of the trial did not exist/occur,or that the
trial would have had the same result if not for the error affecting the framewq
pf the trial itself.

h1so,as a direct result,on the sentance:Guaranteed Parole after time in prison
spent Rehabilitating,instead of a less than slim chance of Parole by a board

i1l advised tos parole offenders and politically pressured to deny parole for uj

and no support system in place due to death of family and freinds over time.
Without the errors-a chance at redemption and a real chance to reihtegratﬁ
into society and have a life and the pursuit of happiness;With the errors-the

rurrent ,relatively hopeless existence in a stagnant cesspool of gangmembers,dr?
addicts,sexual deviants,with no offer of rehabilitative programs that ARE made

available‘to NON-Life prisoners.

separate robbery or extortion charge,and instead of 7-life, the petitioner would

nave been sentanced to 6 months for False Imprisonment + 2-3-5 years for robbery

The results would have been vastly different,both on the issue of guilt,and

o 15 years at a time,after a Minimum of 25 years,when parole is unlikely to bg¢

to

that the Victim admits to having committed perjury on several very material issues,

brk

D

b

successful due to Institutionalization,lack of real job skills or world experignce

D

g
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MC-275

7. Ground 2 or Ground ___3___ (if applicable):

7\

~

Violation of Time Constraints set forth in Cal.Rules of court §4.551(f),In vio-

lation of Petitioner's Rights to Due Process and a Speedy Trial,as guaranteed by the

S5th and 6th Ammendments to the U.S. Constitution and its Analogous California

Statutes.

a. Supporting facts:

The Petition Was Filed on 7-24-2015.Judge Garen Horst disqualified himself on

7-29-2015.Judge Mark S. Curry Issued the 0OSC on 8-3-2015,to both the Ca. Attorney

’ ' i i 8026-2015,the Placer District Attorne

filed the Return.On 11-21-2015 the Petitioner filed the Traverse,Expressly denying

ALL of the legations of the People,and,Per People V Duvall,requesting Ruling on
j i i i aring,the People having not placed facts in dis-

pute enough to require one. -

california Rules of Court Section 4.551(f) states,wthout ambiguity,that within

thirty days of the filing of either the Traverse on the Denial,a ruling must be

issued by the Court,or an Evidentiary hearing must be held to determine any facts
hicl i di . .

120 days having elapsed.since the filing of the Petitioner's Traverse;and no

ruling having had been issued or Evidentiary Hearing having been held,the law as

described in the California rules of court has been violated and the Petitioner has

been denied Due Process and the Right to a Speedy Trial on the Facts.

Petioner requests the Appellate Court Rule on the Merits or remand to the Sup-

erior Court with an order to Rule or Haold a hearing Immediately.

. Supporting cases, rules, or other authority:

California Rules of Court $§4.551(f)

_In Re Scott,.(2003) 29 cd4rh 783 @ 824

MC-275 [Rev. January 1,2010] PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

Pago 4 of 6



8. Did you appeal from the conviction, sentence, or commitment? [_] Yes [} No Ifyves, give the following information: MC-275

a. Name of court ("Court of Appeal” or “Appellate Division of Superior Court"):
Ca. State appellate Court,third district

™. Resultt Modified c. Date of decision: January 4,2005

d. Case number or citation of opinion, if known: _C045882

e. Issues raised: (1) Failure to Instruct on Lesser Offenses (Two Times)

(2) Inconsistent Verdicts

3) Calculation of Credits

f.  Were you represented by counsel on appeal? (] Yes (] No If yes, state the attorney's name and address. if known:

John F. Schuck:;4083 Transport St. Ste.B,Palo Alto,Ca.24303
9. Did you seek review in the California Supreme Court? [X] Yes [] No If yes, give the following information:

a. Result: Denied b. Date of decision: _March 30,2005

c. Case number or citation of opinion, if known: S131239

d. Issues raised: (1) _See §§e(1 and 2) above

@)

3

10. If your petition makes a claim regarding your conviction, sentence, or commitment that you or your attorney did not make on appeal,

.explain why the claim was not made on appeal:
" ) Newly Discovered Evidence not available until now.

11. Administrative review:
a. If your petition concerns conditions of confinement or other claims for which there are administrative remedies, failure to exhaust
administrative remedies may result in the denial of your petition, even if it is otherwise meritorious. (See In re Muszalski (1975)
52 Cal.App.3d 500.) Explain what administrative review you sought or explain why you did not seek such review:

N/A

b. Did you seek the highest level of administrative review available? [} Yes (] No
~ Attach documents that show you have exhausted your administrative remedies.

MC-275 [Rev. January 1, 2010] PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS e
Martin Deans -
o) ESSENTIAL FORMS™ 19



12

13.

o, 14,

15

16.

1.

18.

MC-275
Other than direct appeal, have you filed any other petitions, applications, or motions with respect to this conviction,
commitment, or issue in any court? [xkYes Ifyes, continue with number 13. I No If no. skip to number 15.

a. (1) Name of court: placer County Superior Court

(2) Nature of proceeding (for example, "habeas corpus petition"): Habeas Petition(Case# WHC-1400)

(3) Issues raised: (a) False Evidence Adduced @ Trial

(®) cumulative Effect of Errors not Singly Prejudicial

(4) Result (at‘{ach order or explain why unava,‘fab[e}\_-Time Consyraints Violated [See CRC §4 +551 ( f ) ]

(5) Date of decision: gtj11 Pending,in Violation of Cal. Rules of Court§4.551(f)

b. (1) Name of court: N/A

(2) Nature of proceeding:

(3) Issues raised: (a)

(b)

(4) Result (attach order or explain why unavailable):

(5) Date of decision:

¢. For additional pricr petitions, applications, or motions, provide the same information on a separate page.

If any of the courts listed in number 13 held a hearing, state name of court, date of hearing, nature of hearing, and result:

See Abqove

Explain any delay in the discovery of the claimed grounds for relief and in raising the claims in this petition. (See In re Swain (1949)
34 Cal.2d 300, 304.)

N/

Are you presently represented by counsel? ] Yes No If yes, state the attorney's name and address. if known:

Do you have any petition, appeal, or other matter pending in any court? Yes [ No If yes, explain:

See Above

If this petition might lawfully have been made to a lower court, state the circumstances justifying an application to this court:

violation of cal. Rules of Court §4.551(f) time Constraints

I, the undersigned, say: | am the petitioner in this action. | declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California

that the foregoing allegations and statements are true and correct, except as to matters that a
#™. and as to those matters, | believe them to be true.

Date: March 12,2016

e stated on my information and belief,

(SIGNATURE OF PETITIONER)

MC-275 (Fev. January 1. 2010] PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS Page 6 of &
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Memorandum of Points and Authorities

In Support of Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus

I
Statement of the Case

On October 6,2003,Petitioner was found Guilty of Conspiracy to commit
1st dgree murder,Aggravated Kidnap for extortion,Using another's Name to
obtain Credit or Goods (2 Counts) and felony Vehicle theft,following a trial
by jury that lasted three weeks.

On December 8,2003,He was sentenced to 25—1ife,plus 7—life,plus 4 addition-

al years,and sent to state prison. :

A timely notice of appeal was filed and the subequent appeal resulted in
an award of a few extra days of "Good Time Credit".

Petitioner initiated Habeas proceedings pro se,on several grounds,in ths
Placer county Superior court,the third district of appeal and then the State
Supreme Court,All of which were uncerémoniously denied,and none of which werg
ever heard on thé merits.

Petitioner then filed petition in the Eastern District Federal court,and
after several years of arquing, it togwas denied,on procedural grounds,persuan
to the AEDPA,and never heard on its merits.

After receiving the district court ruling several months late,due to the
incompetence of prison staff,and without his personal property or transcripts
(Which were at the time in the posession of prison staff),the petitioner was

forced to abandon his claims,unable to timely request a reveiw or a certificay

te

of appealability to the circuit court,due to the above stated inability to meet

time constraints even if he had had his property to facilitate the drafting ¢
the neccesary papers,which,again,he did not.

In January 2015,petioner began hearing stories of how his alleged victinm
was admitting to lying on the stand at trial to get him “"Life" sentences,and
how the detective and prosecutor had put him up to it,offering leniency on hi
own pending criminal matter at the time.

Petitioner Immediately began securing Affadavits to this effect from the
witnesses.

On April }0,2015,while preparing for what seemed would be a very up-hill

fight,he received correspondence from the Deputy Attorney General who had

£




10

"

12

13
AM
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28

bested him at the Appellate and habeas Levels of reveiw.The letter was a copy
of a notice sent to Prosecutor Bill Marchi,reccommending investigation of the
letter she had received from the Alleged Victim in this case,Nicholas Hamman,
in.Which he Admitted,in writing,under penalty of perjury,that he had commit
perjury in the case at bar.The language of the letters salutory line suggests
that this was not the first time he has tried to notify the highest prosecutd
ial Authority in the state of his crime and its consequeces-Undeserved "Life'|
in prison for the petitioner.(Petitioner's Exibit "A")

Petitioner sought immediately to contact Mr. Hamman for further informaf
but has been stymied by prison Beauracracy.

The Placer county District Attorneys Office sent an investigator to.inte
view Mr. Hamman on April 24,2015. '

In a Letter dated April 29,2015,Mr. Hamman Suggests that during this int
view he was gently dissuaded as a witness,by the investigating party.Also,he
makes three seperate references to lying under ocath at the trial that results
in the Petitioners Life Sentences.(Petitioner's Exibit"B")

In the Meantime,the petitioner has continued receiving information and
then witness statements regarding the nature of the perjury and the conditior
surrounding use of this perjure&testimony by the prosecutor,as well as the re
sons for the victim's shifting desires as to what he will admit and what he
seems afraid to speak about.

The week of May 1,2015,petitioner was placed into Administrative Segregi
for unfounded Allegations,and was quickly released after vindication.

A few days before release,contact was made with victim Hamman,in person,
He expressed fear of full disclosure of the circumstances surrounding his hay
been Invited to commit perjury,and seemed to hint that his fear was the resul
of his recent encounter with Agents of the Placer County District Attorneys
Office.(Petitioner is currently awaiting written statements under penalty of

perjury from winesses to the Encounter. )

On April 17,2015,Petitioner contacted the Placer County District Attorngy,

R.Scott Owens,by mail.Petitioner at that time made a Lawful request for discq

Q

tion

ing

pV—

ery regarding the friuts of the April 24,2015 interveiw of Mr.Hamman,and attemp-

ted to offer reasonable and less costly resolution of these matters.
To Date,there has been no response whatsoever to even the request for
discovery from the District Attorney or his Employees.

A copy of that letter is attached as Exibit "I".
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or petitioner a complete copy of prior proceedings with which to argue his ig

I1I
Points Of Law and of Fact
Initially,Petitioner would like to point out that repeatedly,courts have

held that the pleadings of prisoners must be construed liberally,and thus,any
mistakes of law made by the petitioner are not the product of underhandedness
just the result of not having had the benefit of an Ivy League education in [

Next,petitioner would refer the court to Griffin V. Illinois,351 U.S.12,

and its analogous California statutes,which guarantee an indigent Appellant

Petitioner has been deprived of Reporters Transcript pages 421 to end,and ths
entirety of the habeas proceedings in the district court,and thus cannot make
reference to that material in this petition.

On a related note,the petitioner would call the courts attention to the
attached motion to pwovide these transcripts to the petitioner for use in pls
ings related to this action,and request that his inability to adequately refgd
ence them at this time not result in adverse action in lieu of the requested
remedy.

Moving now to the matter of the admissability of the statements of witng
es regarding the Alleged victims admissions of perjury and the nature of thaf
perjury;While still a bit cofused regarding the intracacies of hearsay Law,th
petitioner asserts that should these statements qualify as hearsay,they also
qualify as exceptions to the hearsay rules.

As to the statement under penalty of perjury by Victim Hamman,Should it 4
as Hearsay,Petitioner would argue that under Evidence Code §1230,it would qual

~e

aw.

sues.

ad-

SS—

ualify
lify as

a"Statement against interest" because,as stated in E.C.§1230,making the state

ent

"created such a risk of making him an object of hatred,ridicule,or social disgrace

in the community,that a reasonable man in his position would not have made th

ment unless he believed it to be true.”

state-

In the case of Mr. Hamman,not only can he be charged with the crime of perjury

forhis previous testimony,and face criminal liability for it,his standing in {
community at large suffers for it ,as does his standing the microcosm that is
prison community,for his misdeeds against a fellow prisoner,which,so often it
become a film and literary clich&, often results in very violent repercussions
fellow prisoners.

As to the Statements made by other prisoners who have made the aquainten

Mr. Hamman and heard the details of his admitted perjury under oath,Petitione

rhe
the

has

by

re of

- would
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again point to the evidence code referenced above,as well as People V. Cain,1d

Cal 4th 1(Pg 32)which points out that"'Relevant Evidence'means evidence,includ
evidence relevant to the credibility of a witness or hearsay declarant, having
tendancy to prove or disprove any disputed fact that is of consequenceé to the
determination of the action."(Evidence Code §210)}"...The trial court is vestd
with wide discretion in determining relevance under this standard."

A& quick perusal of the results of a "Lexis-Nexis"search for the term"dec]

against interest" leads us to Skelton V.Superior Court,l Cal 3d 144,and about

thousand other citations,most all of which @iteuE.C.1230ralsobbing§ys to sever

hundred references to 29 American Jurisprudence 23-Evidence§§495 and 496,which

ing

any

d

aration
a
al

says

"Hearsay Evidence,taken out of the general rule against the admissability of hearsay

evidence,in the interest of justice,and in accord with sound policy,so as to be

admissible notwithstanding the rule,for example,a dying declaration,a declaratf

against interest,Ect."

Addressing first the isuue of "Against Interest"...Whose interest Exactly?

ion

The Declarant?If so,each declarant is Volunteering to testify against angther

criminal who resides within the same jurisdiction as the person making each declation

and therefore,each person(from virtually all walks of prison life ,by the way

from

a young white man to a very black 40-something Crip,to a transexual in "Her" 30s)

is-neccesarilly placing themselves at the mercy of their various prison facti¢n,

lement.

which as metioned before,typically considers testifying against another crimiIal an

offense for which the cosequence is being stabbed with a homemade stabbing im

If this were not a very real dynamic,California would not have protective custody

in the form of its "Sensitive Needs Yards".

Thus it cang@e be argued that these are "Declarations Against" each pers¢ns

respective "Interests".
Or is it the Victim,and his interest that these declarations must be agaj

I believe that its self evident from either perspective that either his I

the statements was against his interest,or that these Declarants reporting hif

inst?

haking

having made them is against his interest.
Additionally,as a safety net of sorts,the California Evidence Courtroom

and the evidence code §1201 speak to the subject of multiple hearsay thusly:"

statement that is hearsay is admissable on the ground that the evidence of sug

anual

h.

statement is hearsay evidence if such evidence consists of one or more statements,

each of which meet the requirements of an exception to the hearsay rule."

As such,hard as Im sure they will try,if the people are unable to excludg

P even
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one of these statements,then they all are admissable under the statute present

here.

Moving Next to"the interest of justice":In the case at bar,we have,at bej
petitioner who,at age 19,was sent to state prison for the entirety of his yout
not until death,because a vengeful victim admittedly lied under oath to make f{
reality of the crime itself seem much worse to the jury in order to secure a ;
which was grogsly disproportionate to the real circumstances of the crime;or,3

a petitioner who will die a gruesome and violent death at the hands of other j

ers at the end of his "Life" sentence,becuase placer County Law Enforcement and

Counsel for the People promised the victim leniency on his sepgrate criminal ¢

ed

bt a
th,if -
the
sentance
t worst

brison-

bffense

if he could commit enough perjury to secure a "Life" sentence for the peﬁitioﬁer.

There is no question that a meeting to discuss this or a related topic tq
place;when counsel for the defense tricked Mr. Hamman into admitting as much {
stands'Counsel for the people flew into a rage,or panicked,and shouted "SHUT Ul
across the courtroom.(RT 258,263,299,307)

Moving Last to the People V. Cain(Supra) angle,there may be facts in disj

at a hearing regarding these matters,as Mr. Hamman has,since his session with
Placer County Investigator,very much narrowed the scope of what he feels like
ting. '

By the standard described in Cain and its cited statutes,these declarant
"evidence relevant to..."His"...Crediblity"and also having"a tendency to provs
fact that is df consequence tothe determination of the action."Namely,the ins
petition.

Lastly,regarding admissibility of exibits hereto attached,are the issues
surrounding the Post Trial Declarations from the jury members,as well as thei
statements after the trial,as reported by the Auburn Journal and Reporter Rya
McCarthy. ‘

Of course there is the Evidence Code § that Bill Marchi referenced in hi
opposition originally,which would serve to remove the focus from the issue of

juStice and what is right,to the realm of technicality and viewing this stric

the abstract...but as the Court observed in People V. Dillon,194 Cal. Rptr 399,

that does not quite serve the interest of justice.
The Dillon Court,referencing In Re Foss(19740,pointed out that while the Fact
abstract serve as a baseline,the goal is"to consider the offense in the abstr.

defined by the:législature-but also to consider the facts of the crime in que

bok
bn the

Dyt

bute
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admit-
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‘order to promote an "All Or Nothing" decision which forced a 7-life sentance pr

the totality of the circumstances surrounding the commission of the offense in the
case at bar,including such factors as its motive,the way it was committed,the
extent of the defendants involvement,and the consequences of his acts."(Dillon@319)
_ If thisseems familiar to the reviewer,that is because it was brought to fthis
court in the motion for a new trial.(CT pgs.355-378)
This way of regarding these issues has never been more important than it} is now;
while relevant then,the magnitude of its import has only improved with time:the
recent developments serve to affecta different,but more beneficial view of the facts
of the case at bar,since there now appears a reduced culpability with regard to
the petitioner,a change in the facts regarding the way the crime was committed,
and there is an admission that the consequences of his acts were less than whpt was
presented at trial. ‘
While most of the Post Trial Questionairres were admitted to the record,the late
ones were not,and are presented here along with a printed article from the Aupurn
Journal, By reporter Ryan McCarthy,which serves the same purpose:to prove to [the
court that a)there was no finding of the requisite intent to kill on the behallf of

the defendant by .the jury unanimously;b)they,in the majority,were interested [in a

'guilty finding on the charge of Misdemeanor False Imprisonment,a lesser inclufed

offense not afforded as an option to them as a tactical manuever by The Peoplp in

nothing;and c)agr @partial juror was allowed onto the panel after providing mislead-
ing answers on Voire Dire,who voiced his bias,at thefirst opportunitquinutes after
the ' trial,to the first person who would listen,by saying that his"Father was|a
federal Prison Warden,"and that"Some people make the right choice and avoid crimes
and others dont."
what other reason could there be that his father's occupation was forefrpnt in
his mind, than that it impacted his decision making?
Admission of this document is proper under the Evidence Code,and as stated in
Cain (Supra)in that it is unquestionably relevant to the factsand allegations|at
issue here.
In the Cain court,Media records were used by the prosecution to impeach @
defendant with his own prior statements.This was upheld by reveiwing courts apd
remains good Law.If its good for the goose,its good for the gander-fair is fajr.
' Now onward to the meat of this petition:the use of False or Perjured testimony
at trial to secure convictions against the petitioner.A look at statements made,in
writing,by Mr. Hamman leaves absolutely no doubt that he told fibs to get the|pet-

titioner sent to prison and for longer.
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the reader that the following claimsare now in question,if not completely defzﬁted:

is currently controlled by Ca. Penal Code§1473 (b)(1),and further by the most
recent ruling of In Re Richards,(2014)55 C4th 948,as well as the relied upon -
cases of In Re Malone,(1996)12 c4th 935 and In Re Sassounian(1995)9 C4th535.

A look at the Statements of the witnesses to what Mr. Hamman has admitted| tells
1)the allegation that the petitioner was part of a conspiracy to "Luge"the
victim into the crimescene for criminal purposes;
2)The Allegation that the petitioner was present during the kidnappihg of
the victim;
3)the allegation that the petitioner had any part in the confining/Kidnap-
ping of the victim; ‘
4)the allegation that the petitioner assaulted the victim in the fablricated
story about a conspiracy to kdnap the victim for criminal purposes;
5)the-allegation the water in room the victim was confined to rbse to the
level of the victims neck; N
6)the allegation the victim was in mortal danger due to the life threatening'
water level in the room;
7)the allegation that the petitioner caused the victim to be in mortal
danger by co#sing the water level to rise to the level of his neck,either] to
commit extortion by means of fear of death by drowning,or to commit murder:
8)the allegation that the petitioner was the instigator/mastermind gf this
set of circumstances,and therefore must be the one with the requisite ingjent(s)
neccesary to support a finding:.of guilt as to various crimes:
9)the allegation that the petitioner had Faked his attempt to break |the
widdw to the room in which the victim was confined in order to set him friee:
10)the allegation that the petitioner seriously,and with intent to Kill
the victim,committed all of the overt acts allged in support of the consgiracy
to commit murder by gassing,in that the victim has now,12 years later,adnjitted
to witnessing the removal of the hose,thereby corroborating petitioners claim

at trial.

IIi
False Evidence

According to Appeals and Writs in Criminal Cases,Chapter 9,§9.41,this isspe

PC 1473(b)(1) holds that if"False Evidencethat is substantially Material
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or probative on the issue of guilt or punishment was introduced against him at

any hearing or trial related to his incarceration",a habeas petitioner is enti
tled to relief.

The Court in Richards(supra) clarified this issue by requiring that two
facts be proven in order to prevail on this claim:1)that False Evidence was
adduced at trial,and 2)that,after proving of the Falsity/by a preponderance of
the Evidence,that: the-false: evidence is"of such significance that it may have
affected the outcome"of the trial.That is,that,"With reasonable probability,it
Could have affected the outcome.(Bold and underline substituted for original
italics)

So,starting with the most simplistic anal?sis,lets see;since the victim
himself has confessed,in writing,under penalty of perjury,to giving false evidence
at trial,there can be ho question that we have met the burden of proof as to that
prong of the reveiw.

That leaves its affect to be Jetermined‘On the first tier,lets assume that
his entire testimony is false,and then wonder if it is possible that the jury
would have rendered a different finding based solely on the testimony of the
petitioner;Had the jury not been told that he had "lured" the victim into the
building to commit a crime,would‘they have believed petitioner when he said he¢
had not done so?Y¥eg.Would this have changed their decision to find that petition—
er Kidnapped the Victim for purposes of extortion?Probably.Could it have?:Yes

Petitioner Claimed repeatedly to have not even been around when the "kidnap"
took place.Had the jury not been told by the victim that he saw the petitionej
take part in a violent altercation that left him Bruised by the petitioner,would
would they have still found the petitioner guilty of the Aggravated Kidnap crime?
Probably Not.Could they have decided differently if not for the lie the victim
told them?Yes.

The jury was told by the victim that the petitioner callously and malicigios-

ly caused the water in the room to rise to the level of the victims neck,both|to
scare and to kill him.Petitioner Argued otherwise.If not for this testimony bj

the victim,would the jury have found for extortion by means of using this fear?

T~

Or an attempted Murder?Probably not.
Could they have come to a conclusion dispositive to guilt if not for thesge
lies?Yes.
The petitioner testified at trial that his CoDefendant,Anna Marie Rugg, had
instigated and prosecuted the crimes in question,and that his participation was
the result of a complicated mixture of fear,confusion,indecisiveness,and to aff-

ect a tempering of the situation,and buy time,to look for a way out of the sifu-
5, 8
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ation.The victim went to lengths to persuade the jury that the opposite was true,
which served to undermine the petitioners defense.Whether the victim did so th
bf sentiment for Ms. Rugg is Immaterial.The fact is that it happened.

Had the jury not heard the victims false testimony regarding the extent
and: spirit of the petitioners participation,and had to decide solely on the
version presented by the petitioner,would they have rendered every finding of
guilt the same?Probably not.

Could theyhave decided differently,and more favorably for the petitioner3

Yes.

The petitionermaintained that he attempted to break the window of the rodm
in which the victim was confined,and also tried to loosen the screws of the
window,attempting to set him free behind Ms. Rugg's back.

The victim Falsely testified that this had been a ruse,and thatthe petition-
er had never displayed any concern for his welfare,or attempt to undermine thg
criminal goals of Ms. Rugg.

If not for this false testimony,Would the jury have found that the petition-
er intended to kidnap or keep confined ,or extort,or murder, the victim,and woyld
theyrhave disbelived the petitioner when he stated that he did not know(much as
the Police did not know)that the Door to the room could be opened?Probably not.

Could they have renderedw"not Guilty" verdict on any of the current guilty
findings,based on the defense alone,without the False testimony of the victim?

Yes. :

And the biggest coup of all here,one completely :unbeknownst to the defense
at trial...The petitioner testified at trial that he had removed the hose that
was connected to the cars exaust from the vent after Ms. Rugg's visual inspect-
ion,to convince her that it was real,but also:protect Mr. Hamman.

At trial,Mr.Hamman testified that he had not ever seen anyone at the crige-
scene fhat night whatsoever. ‘

He now has Admitted to witnessing the removal of the hose from the vent by
the petitioner,in his effort to sustain the victims status quo instead of murger-
ing him.

Would the jury have found guilt on the Conspiracy to -commit murder charg?
based solely on the testimony of the petitioner at trial on this issue?Yes,it
seems they would.

But would they have found guilt if Mr. Hamman had spoke up and told the
truth,that he had witnessed with his own eyes that the petitioner had taken steps

to ensure his wellbeing?No.Theywydld not.
Could’theyhave found the petitioner not guilty, and not had him sentenced|to

9
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serve Twenty-five years to Life in prison?

YES.

Viewed less simply,In one fell swoop,the victim has provided cause to

question the reliability of both Life term verdicts.

neccesary for guilt findings as to Conspiracy to commit Murder ,and Aggravated
Kidnap for extortion both according to the 2003 Versions of California Jury
Instructions—-Criminal (CAL-JIC).

Slowing down,for the sake of argument,What if it does not?

is not fundamentally unfair due to the use of perjury to obtain conviction?
And what -if the dissuading of the victim as a witness on April 24th by tl
Placer County District Attorney's Representative was effective,and Mr.Hamman
wants to clam up.as his most recent missive suggests he might?
In Re Malone(Supra) illistrates this perfectly:in that case,that petitio

informant. ,
Later,as a result of some sort of epiphany,the informant recanted and ad

ted he had made it all up.
Next ,he must have gotten scared,and he recanted the recant.

tion in that case due to a finding of falsity,they did reverse the findings

the situation:"First,in .an interview with defendant's attorneys and investiga
tor,the witness admitted to having fabricated the confession.On later occasion
however ,he denied fabrication...the admissions of fabricatoen were more credibl
than the later denials,because those admissions to perjurywere against his pen
interest...a prosecution witness probably lied ..."

Strengthening this view,petitioner reminds the court that-this is the cas

relied upon in Richards,the most current and cotrolling case.

weaker:In both cases cited,the perjurer was a collateral witness,not the back

that carries the entire «case,so to speak,as the witness in this case is,with h

of the petitioner,even in light of overwhelming evidence of guilt of heinous g

mes,because it was the right thing to do,while this case does not have an over

10

Taken as a whole,these admissions serve to negate several of the elementg

Does it not at least make the petitioner eligible for a new trial,one that

while the California Supreme court did not completely overturn the convif-

sapported by the informant's testimony,based on a very practical assessment OE

Distinguishing from this case only makes the instant petition stronger,nqt

having been the star,the Victim;in each of those cases,the rulings were in favior

]

e

ner

was convicted based on testimony that he had confessed to a crime to a jailhopse

mit-

[0]

is

ri-
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4helming evidence of guilt as to the two contested charges,separate from the ad
ittedly perjured testimony of the victim,Mr. Hamman.

In any event whatsoever,perjured testimony was crucial to securing the guj
findings in two verdicts,and there is no question that a)it was perjured,or b)

outcome Could have been different if not for the perjury.

Iv
Knowing Use of Perjured Testimony

but also an implication that Mr. Hamman was enticed by the authorities to do
what he has done. .
The petitioner sees no point in arguing this claim for several reasons:

1)The standard of review is higher,and would be more costly in the time

"Wwhy" ofthe perjury "Immaterial";

tioner wants only to have his life back.Thats it.To participate in fatherhood
before his son reaches adulthood.To Exit prison and this chapter of life with

enough time to settle down have a family and start a career with time to work

check to check into his sixties.

The "Who" or "Why" has no bearing on any of this;it is sufficient to prov
that it happened.

...However:Thhe petitioner would like for the Court to keep an open mind
and bear the possibility outlined by the allegations of governmental miscondu

above,when reviewing the "Cumulative Effect" claim outlined below.

\'
cumilative Effect of Frrors Not Singly Prejudicial

e

S TR I S S N R T S AT TS L R e i)

while the volume of statute related to this issue is too daunting to cits

11

The current version of events available points to not only a knowing use ¢f

3)From a more practical perspective-Who Cares?Its done,and cannot be takep

back.The"Wwho"or"why" is not important when compared to the real issue:the petfi-

to retirement at an Appropriate age,instead of sleeping under bridges and livhng

m-

lty
the

perjured testimony by the Placer County District Attorney's Office in this cage,

resource,given that the People would never say"Die"in the face of the allegatjon;

2)Simply arguing the "False Testimony"Claim has the same result at less cpst,
and,according to statute,does not require a proving that anyone from the people's
side knew that the testimony was False,and also has the benefit of rendering fhe

it

1]

ct,
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extensively,there can be no question that certain cases speak very directly tg
the issues presented here.It is well established that Federal Courts recog-
nize the ability of several non-prejudicial errors to amount to a prejudicial

and reversible error when viewslcumulatively in the wider context of a trial.

The Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals has Consistently,and: Recently,held that

"cumulative effect of errors in muder trial warrant grant of habeas corpus

releif."(Thomas V.Hubbard,273 F3d 1164);"Cumulative Error Applies when,althou$h

no single trial error Examined in isolation is sufficiently prjudicial to wart

ant reversal,the cumulative effect of multiple errors may still prejudice the

defendant." (Mancuso V. Olivarez,292 F3d 939):"multiple Errors,even if Harmless
individually,May entitle petitioner to habeas relief if their cumulative.Effett
prejudiced the defendant."(Ceja V. Stewart,97 F3d 1246);"Cumulative prejudicial
Effect of multiple trial errors must be considered in determiningwhether habegs

relief is warranted."(Phillips V. Woodford,267 F3d 966).

Other Circuits have ruled similarly:"In context of Criminal trial,Accumur

lation of errors can be grounds for a new trial.((Laticlai¥ Vi~ Whitley,93 F3d
17" . It seems ‘therefore unlikely that a)the 9th Circuit would rule disfavor-

ably on this issﬁe,or that b)the district court would allow to stand,a contrap-

y ruling made by c)the California Supreme Court.As such,it stands to reason that,

in step with statutory Precedent,if there is observed by the reviewer,a cumulp-
tion of errors such that it renders the trial "Structurally deficient" or "uni-

fair" and infects "the Framework" of the trial, then reversal is warranted,and

failure to grant a new trial at the sooner opportunity would only serve to
delay the relief that would be granted at the later opportunity.

Yes,a defendant"is entitled to a fair trial but not a perfect one."(US V
Ramirez,426 F3d 1344,and its analogous California rulings,but,as has been st
in the very cases used to make this point,Fair is one thing,Perfect is anoth
much loftier goal,and this statement made in reference to patently petty gro
used to request releif does not serve as a license to any court wanting to"P

the buck"” to uphold convictions which serve to violate a petitioners right tg

fundamental fairness.

Yes,all but one of these issues have been before this court before,and in

response,the Hon. J. Richard Couzens,seemingly with a snicker,informed the
petitioner that he was not entitled to a"perfect trial”.

Of course not,but then,the facts were not then as well developed as they
are now,and were not bolstered by an explicit admission that False Testimony

was used to obtain these convictions.

12




Further,pre-emptive of a claim by the People that these pleadings would

gqualify as a successive petition,The Miller Rule instructs that "a habeas peti
tion based on the same grounds as those in:a previously denied petition will be
denied when there has been no change in the law or facts substantially affecting
the rights of the petitioner."(In Re Reno,55 C4th @496)

Thus,given the newly discovered evidence of the False Testimony used at
trial,the facts have changed,and they do affect the other claims when presented
under the Cumulative Effect standard.
Of note also,as the petitioner's claims were never heard on the merits dde
to procedural defualt under the AEDPA,the abovementioned denial by Judge Couzéns
is the last reasoned opinion as to those issues.
Moving now to the claims themselves,petitioner would proceed in andEREID>
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@ order,not neccesarily illlistrative of individual importance of each clgim.
1

- Failure to-instruct on-Lesser-included Offenses -

Again,the petitioner was charged with two crimes in relation to the Con-
fining and subsequent robbery or extortion of the victim;felony False Imprison-
ment by violence,Menace,Fraud or deceit,and Aggravated Kidnap for extortion.The
false Imprisonment charge has a lesser included offense which is a misdemeanor,
not a felony,and the difference is that the jury must not make a finding of vjo-
lénce,fraud menace or deceit.(Ca. Penal Code § 236)

In. the case at bar,the facts did support instructionon the misdemeanor 236
just as much as the Felony,in that while the prosecution argued for active par-
ticipation in the two felony crimes,the defense argued that while not taking &
more active role in securing the release ofthe victimythe petitioner did not-
employ any of the actions neccesary to constitute the felony crimes.

Indeed the jury later expressed a belief:that the defendant was guilty of

L}

False Imprisonment "Without the 'Violence' part."

At trial,the prosecution employed an "All or nothing" strategy in which
the jury was forced to conclude that either the defendant had commit a "Life"
sentence felony,or nothing,counting on the fact that defense counsel would refute
the claims of violent participation by the petitioner,but that the jury would
feel him unquestionably guilty of something,and opt instead for the innocuous
sounding "Kidnap for extortion"charge.Indeed,the prosecutor stated in closing
argument that it was not important that the defendant did not violently assaujlt
the victim in the commision of this crime,it was enough that it happened and the

petitioner did nothing to stop it.

13
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This left the jury feeling swindled when they found out;Juror Jennifer
Baran stated that she"felt tricked into these decisions by the prosecution."SH
also noted that shedid not "understand why these particular charges were broug
when I know that others could have been brought that would accomplish the samg
goal."
Well,petitioner finds at least two sets of fault with this:;a)BeckV. Alabg

ht

ma

447 US 625;dictates that in capital cases it is mandatory that all lesser inc]

cluded by a boatload of statute;"a misstatement of Law by a prosecutorcan invz
idate a conviction!(Whitehead V. Cowan, 263 F3d 708)
Of course,the statement that the petitioner is still guilty of the kidnag

even if the jury finds he did not participate in it is a misstatement of law:{
much so that there are precedent that preclude just such conduct,e.g.U.S. V Zi

merman, 943 F2d 12049"Person who sees a crime being commited has no legal duty

rmation to -the policef(Moya V. U.S.,761 F2d 322; Brown V.Texas,443 US 47).

Not to mention the fact ' that there is no support in statute for telling

part in.Moreover,if the prosecutor were attempting to convince the jury that |
defendant was guilty of the kidnapping due to his admitted participation in t
extortion,this fails also as a matter of law:"a defendant cannot be held liab
...for losses caused by other conspirators in a scheme prior to the time the
defendant entered the conspiracy”.(U.S. V.Badwound,203 F3d 1072)

Accordingly,this is cause to reverse a conviction:"Prosecutor's Closing

guments may be grounds for reversing conviction."(Bell V.Evatt,72 F3d 421):"p

secutorial Misconductiduring closing arguments may be grounds for reversal of
conviction."(U.S. V Beckman,222 F3d 512)
Moving now to the Beck ruling,while this was a capital case and the case

issue,petitioner would argue that the same logic is valid in this case,and th
lack of death penalty should not change the logic employed.
Arguably,petitioner would contend that death is preferable to life in pr
son,and not without conviction:fed up with life in prison,petitioner commit s
cide on July 2nd 2012 and had to be revived by paramedics.So what really is t
huge difference that would negate use of solid logié?

In any event,the logic is supported by caselaw:Francis V Franklin,471 U.

307;Sandstrom V.Montana,442 U.S. 510:"Trial Court's instructions may not imp-—

stop it or report it."Similarly/People are entitled to refuse to provide infot

at bar was not,not to mention the division of the circuit courts regarding thi

u-

ded offenses be instructed on,and b)the prosecutions misstatement of law is pre-

1-

p

5O

to

a

jury that they can and should find a defendant guilty of a crime he did not tgke

Che
he

le

QY —

)

0_

ermissably shift the burden of proof to the defendant."U.S. V Wolny,133 F3d
"It is reversible error not to instruct jury on theory of defense that is su

14

8:



10

11

12

13

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

28

rted by evidence and Law."
In U.S. V. Miller,263 £3d 1,the 2d Circuit ruled that "due process requirgs

that a convicted person not be sentanced orn materially untrue assumptions or mis-

]

information."While this applies to the False Evidence issue,it arguably applie
here as well in that the prosecution created a materially untrueassumption when
he provided misinformation to the jury in his closing argument.In U.S. V. Hankton,
432 F3d 1249,it was held that"a defendant has the due process right to be sentien-

ced on the basis of accurrate information."which,again,is applicable here as well

as in the False Evidence context.

The Circuit courts have found,and the Supreme Court agrees,that "While a
prosecutor is clearly authorized to strike hard blows in an earnést and vigordus
prosecution,he is not at liberty to strike foul ones."Berger V. U.S.,295 U S 78:
Boyle V. Million,201 F3d 711.

In U.S. V. Yazzie,188 F3d 1178,it was Made clear that"four criteria for

determining entitlement to instruction on lesser included offense are (l)a prq-
per request,(2) the lesser included offense contains some but not all of the
elements of the offense charged, (3)the elements differentiating the two offenges
are in dispute,and (4)a jury could rationally convict defendant of the lesser
offense and aquit on the greater offense."

Well, since the conviction in 2003,petitioner has absolutely argued threeg
out of four of these requirements,the only exception being the"Proper Request'
element. -

On Direct Appeal,Appelate Counsel John F. Schuck properly raised this issue
on appeal;He Appropriately brought the courts' attentions to an overwhelming
amount of precedent,both California State, and Federal,including such perfectly
fitting cases as Hopper V. Evans,456 U S @610-611;People V. Breverman,19 cal4th
@166;Hogan v. Gibson,197 F3d @1312;PeopleV. Ray,14 Cal3d @32;People V. Webber(228
cal App 3d 21165;People V. Greenberger,58 cal app 4th @380;People V. Morrison A
228 Cal App 2d @713;People V. Gibbs,12 Cal App 3d @547;and more importantly,
People V. Matian,35 Cal App 4th @487.

The federal law seems to agree that the strategy employed as outlined abgve
was,if not underhanded,inappropriate:Schad V. Arizona,501 U S @646-647;Schmuck
V. U.S.,489 U.S. @717 and footnote#9;Hopkins V.Reeves,524 U.S. @95;Hopper V. Evns,
Supra;People V. Avena,13 Cal 4th @424;People V. Kaurish,52 Cal 3d @696;People|
V. Rayford,9 Cal 4th @12 &Footnote 8.

No-one,Not a court,not counsel)ever advanced the requirements set out in
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Yazzie,Supra,as the test for determining this issue,even though they were the

at least four years before trial in the case at bar.
Is it now neccesary to tarnish the memory of Deceased defense Counsel
Serafin with a n Ineffective Assistance of counsel Claim,as well as one for

Mr.Schuck,in order to rightly prevail on this isuue?

If so,the court can liberally constue a petition by a pro se litigant(QLEEE

V. Oklahoma,468 F3d 711;Perruquet V. Briley,390 F3d 505)and should consider t

a request to do so in favor of the above Ineffective Assistance Claim in the

furtherance of the instant request for releif;

But this may not be neccesary,the trampling of Jesse's memory in order to
obtain releif on this ground:In Harris V. U.S; RR Retirement Bd.}l98 F3d- 139,
it was held that"it is generally preferred that a blameless party not be dis-

re

his

advantaged by the procedural errors or neglect of his Attorney."This would sqrve

to make a sixth ammendment claim unneccesary in the persuit of releif sought |

here,in that,as a defendant,the petitioner was lost in the legal proceedings
and their statutes,and was therefore blameless regarding the decisions of
counsel relating to jury instructions.

Also of Note;our Circuit has held that"Once a state's criminal laws are
written,a defendant has the federal due process right to insist that the stat
prove beyond a reasonable doubt every element of the offense charged"(Medley
V. Runnels,506 F3d 857.)

Petitioner contends that with regard to the Kidnap charge in this case,th
state has not met its burden,and if the reviewer thinks differently,petitione
would thenmake reference to a ruling in our circuit in Forbes V. Napolitano, 3

F3d 1009,Which held that "Under due process clause,Statute which criminalizes

conduct may not be impermissibly vague in any of its applications."
This concept seems to be implicated by the notion that it is perfectly

acceptable that if a jury can find guilt on both Misdemeanor False imprisonet

ment and a seperate but related robbery or extortion crime together;but also
with zero factual difference,find gquilt as to Aggravated Kidnap for Extortio
and give a "Life" sentence,instead of the five years or less ‘for the above

alternate,lesser offenses,there must bethas to bea)a vagueness in the statut
that allows the crimes to be interchangeable and allow for precluded arbitraj

enforcement of those laws.there is too much left to chance,and it violates &t

process.
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{V. Doxie,34 Cal App 2d @512-513; People V. Carner,117 Cal App 2d @364:for the

2
Inconsistent Verdicts

This issue was extensively argued on direct appeal and habeas,with the en

result a finding of "So what?"

The logic is simple though-how can an irrational finding such as this be

allowed to stand as a matter of due process?Its'akin to a jury finding that"OX,

yes,we find you guilty of using a gun to commit that robbery,but not guilty of
commiting the robbery that you used the gun to commit."

This is beyond absurd. |

As stated in Medley,supra,Miller,Supra,Hankton,Supra,if the jury did not
find even one element of a crime beyond a reasonable doubt,the verdict cannot
be reliable,it must be.reversed.The law is not ambiguous in this:It only takes
one juror,with reasonable doubt regarding one element.

We have that in spades here,without ambiguity or room for debate:Our Jurg
told us with almost unprecedentd specificity that intent to kill,a required
element of Conspiracy to kill,was not found by all jurors,and not beyond a reg
onable doubt. o

This is not a métter of symmetry,as one court tried to describe this issu
its a matter of due pfocess and fundamental fairness:Did the jury unanimously
findall of the elements neccesary,beyond a reasonable doubt,before a nineteen
year old kid was sent to our nations most violent prison system for at least 4
years,and likely,until his death?

Those jurors say no.The logic,through eXtrapolation,says they could not f
intent.to killjand the jurors themselves,often in their own‘handwriting.say,tr
found no intent to kill.

If this is fine in the eyes of our legal system,why did the petitionernot
also receive an additional 25-life for the attempted murder with identical
requirements and facts?

while it seems there is some question of how to reason out some decisions
as to this issue historically,one theme remains solidly consistent:Identical
charges with identical facts and identical elements cannot satisfy due processg
requirements,without identical,or at least not contrary,verdicts.

Appellate counsel unsuccessfully argued this issue on appeal,citing Cali-
fornia statute related to the issue:People V. Calpito, 9 cal app 3d @219;Peopl

inconsistency of the two verdicts,and,for the due process issue presented by 1
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than a finding of guilt on all elements of the Cospiracy charge:People V. Cor

18 Cal 4th @1228 §1232;People V. Fenenbock,46 Cal App 4th @1707;People V. Sant@a

scoy,153 cal app 3d @913;People V. Montes,112 Cal app 4th @1549.

theories oftheir own to concludeMthat the jury"may have" of "could have"though

duty not to manipulate law or facts for the sole purpose of finding a way to
a litigant .incarcerated in the face of evidence cotrary to his conviction,but
there is no question regardihg why the jury did what they did:they told us in
very specific language,leaving no room for questionor manipulation.

They could not,and did not,find intent to commit murderin either offense,

and thus,reversal is required.

3
Juror Misconduct

This issue was not brought on direct appeal,though the objections post-
trial are a matter of record.

In a post-trial hearing on a motion for a new trial submitted by counsel
for the defense,it waé alleged that jury foreman Robert Stefun had concealed Hi
having relatives in law enforcement,and,having grown up as the son of a federg
prison warden,by his own admission Minutes after the trial ended,he was prejud
against the defendant and a biased juror.

The subsequent argument focused on such oblique issues as his age and thg
semantics of the term"law Enforcement".

The petitioner will now re-allege the same,referring the court to the atf
ached News article authored by Auburn journal reporter Ryan McCarthy.

issues such as age,Petitioner will get right to the heart of it:What is expect
to prevail on this issue?

Does Mr.Stefun need to walk into court and announce"Yes,after reading abd
this case in all three of the local newspapers,and seeing Mr. Rodriguez on thg
television news for the last nine months,consistently,I was delighted to be c3

led for jury duty so I could not tell anyone that I spent my childhood hearing

who were deprived of thier rights,by "Law"for crimes they were Already found

guilty of.He told me horror stories,in my formative years,of their brutality 3

or decided;petitioner would assert that this is improper:not only is the courjs'

Without wasting your time making a whole lot of nothing out of irrelevant

my father speak of "Enforcing" "law"ful sentences of Already Convicted crimin%

This argument was rejected by the state :supreme court,whoadvanced alterngtive

t

eep
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of their inherent propensity toward lying,which renders them completely untrugt-—
able.

"I was not going to let simple questions at jury selection prevent me from
being the voice of reason on this jury and making sure this criminal couldnt
lie his way out of this,so I kept my moﬁth shut,got on the jury,got myself
elected foreman,and demanded guilty verdicts on all charges,without further djs-
cussion,to bring this lying criminal to justice.I never trusted him,as soon a$
I saw his lying,criminal face in the paper and on the news.

"and I was thinking exactly this when all the other jurors stayed to speak
with defense counsel,but I went swiftly and expiditiously to the closest news
reporter to say the first thing at the forefront of my mind-'My father was a
federal prison warden,some people make the right choice and avoid crimes and
others dont.'That was what was on my mind because that is what caused me to feel
the way I felt."

We should be so lucky.

Where does the question lie here?

He was on the jury. ‘

He got there by omitting information which would have resulted in his
dismissal had it been known.

His bias isnt open for argument:Arguably,Convicted Criminal Prisoners ar¢
due less trust or credibility by their keepers,because a)théy are convicted
criminals already,and b)who out of the¥demographic is ever seen admiiting every-
thing and being completely truthful? ‘

Is“Prison Warden LawSEnfbrcement?

4The sentances being served are as a result of laws enacted to put the cri-
minals there,right?The rights denied to them are a result of Laws which serve
to strip other rights,no?

Ambiguity here is irrational. .

As such,he was biased,a fair trial was denied,and reversal is required.

This is the poster child for reversal,with more cases devoted to it than
most other issues,and the Ninth Circuit has spoken loudly and repeatedly on the
issue:"The presence of a biased juror cannot be harmless;the error requires a|

new trial without a showing of actual prejudice because it introduces a structu-

ral defect not subject to harmless error analysis."(Dyer V. Calderon,151 F3d %70)
"Defendant's sixth Ammendment rights are violated even if only one juror was yn-—
duly biased or improperly influenced."(U.S. V.Sarkisian,197 F3d 966)

19



"If court determines there was actual juror bias,juror's inclusion in juryis never

harmless error."(U.S. V. Carpa,271 F3d 962[11“tir.])"presence of a biased jurgr

cannot be harmless;error requires new trial without showing of actual prejudige,
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..."defendant is Jdenied right to an impartial jury even if only one juror is

biased or prejudiced."(Feilds V. Woodford,281 F3d 963,309 F3d 1095}"the presence

of- a biased juror introduces a structural defect not subject to harmless error

analysis"(Feilds v. Brown,431 F3d 1186;and the othar Circuits agree:"Where a bi-

ased jurorwas impaneled,prejudice under Strickland was presumed in counsel's

failure to move to strike the juror for cause,and a new trial was required."({

ruling in one stroke establishes that our Circuit's view is supported elsewhey

and also that it would not matter if counsel had objected;Prejudice would stil

be assumed,énd reversal required.)(Hughes v. U.S.,258 F3d 453[6th Cir. 2001])
Failure to preserve Exculpatory Evidence

This issue was raised on habeasbut,as has been seen,was procedurally de-
faulted due to the AEDPA.

Petitioner renews the claim in light of the new evidence and asserts,as
before ,the following:In his purported "Confession",petitioner asserted that I
had ,at one point,attémpted to break the windw to the room Mr. Hamman was
confined in,as well as loosen the screws of its frame to allow Mr. Hamman to
escape on his own.

Eviéence Exibits logged by Placer county Sherifs Office Evidence Tech Jai
Xepoleas reflects a latent fingerprint from the window sill of the very same
window the petitioner claimed to have attempted to loosen in his interview.

Also in the interview,and throughout,petitioner maintained that he had n
entered the gas station and violently demanded that Co-defendant Rugg exit an
leave with him.Gas Station attendant and several time felon Robert Hammer cla
the opposite,and gave testimony to inflame the jury against the petitioner to
effect that a violent confrontation had taken place in which petitioner had £
ced Ms. Rugg to leave with him.

Logged into evidence was the Video surveillance footage from inside the
station,proving the petitioner truthful in his account of events,and also dem
ishing the credibilty of Mr. Hammer.

Both of these peices of exculpatory evidence;which served to impeach wit

nesses against the defense,as well as bolster his credibility,vanished while f[n

posession of the prosecution and/or his agents.

his
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e

bt
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This is well regarded as grounds for reversal on appeal/habeas:"Suppressjion

of favorable evidence violates due process"(Brady Wa:Maryland,373 US 83;
20
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"Under Brady an inadvertant nondisclosure has the same impact on the fairness
of the proceedings as deliberate concealment."(Strickler V. Greene,527 US 263)

"prosecution's obligation under Brady to disclose exculpatory evidence extends
impeachment evidence,and to evidence that was not requested by the defense."

(Paradis V.Arave,240 F3d 1169)"Brady obligations apply to a prosecutor's condu

even when the defehse has not requested the discovery of exculpatory evidence
and «..a prosecutor's duty to disclose exculpatory ewvidence under Bradyextends
beyond his personal knowledge of such evidence."(McCambridge V. Hall,266 F3d 1

"Even an inadvetrtant failure to disclose information may constitute a Brédx,vi
lation."(Bailey V.Rae,339 £3d 1107)"Prosecutor's duty to disclose evidence fay

orable to the accused extends to information known only to the police."(Jack-
son V. Brown,513 F3d 1057€¢ "Under Brady and its progeny,the state violatesdu

process when it suppresses or fails to disclose material exculpatory evidence
(Richter V. Hickman,521 F3d 930)

"Prosecution's Failure to disclose favorable evidence violates due proc

when the evidence is material"(Horton belmontes,V.Brown,414 F3d 1094)"Brady cl

ion of the government was actually suppressed,and 2)that the evidence was
material." 4

Attached as Exibit "K"is a three page inventory of items logged into evid
for the case at bar.ltems 2 and 24 are at issue here.Petitioner submits that &
this log broveé the state to have been in posgesion of these exculpatory items
and b)materiality was claimed at the time of trial,and is re-asserted thusly-
1)Had the jury been presented with evidence that the petitioner was truth
when he claimed to haveattempted to help the victim escape his confinement in
room,his credibility overall would have benefitted significantly and,as well,t
view of him as the instigator in the criminal acts would have been significant
diminished in the eyes ofthe jury;and

2)had the jury been allowed to see the videotape from the inside of the g

station,they would have had much reason to doubt the credibility of witness
a result,again resulting in a diminished prosecution claim that the petitioner
dant Rugg,which,taken together may have shiftedthe wieght of credibility enou

in favor of the petitioner that the outcome of the trial may have been signifi
cantly different.

21
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~~ | 5
Use of Involuntary "Confession”
2 While the petitioner was questioned on the stand as to the circumstances

3 [[surrounding this "Confession",and ,as well,the detectives involved were lightlly
challenged at trial,no hearing to determine the admissibility of the recording
was ever held;its reliability,regarding not just how much of it was damaged gopds,
but also whether it was voluntary,was taken completely for granted by all thosp
6 |lcharged with ensuring that foul play notbe allowed.
7 Petitioner raised this issue on habeas,but was barred from reveiw under the
AEDPA. _
Here now,he re-alleges the same issues,but into a‘context'which includes the
® ||lconsideration of the Use of False testimony to obtain his conviction.
10 Examining first its reliability in relationto how damaged its content was|,
1 let us turn the tables:If the petitioner tried to use,as impeachment evidence,p
video that was interrupted 138 times in 90 minutes,sometimes for as long as 7
12 seconds at a time,would the people allow it to go uncontested?Would the court

13 |lallow it anyway?

14 What if instead qf butchering 138 sections out of the tape,only those 138

5 portions currently missing were available,would Detective Coe ha¥k testified that
nothing material was missing?Would the court deem it reliable?Would the people

16 object to its use?

17 Of nbte,wﬁen the claim was made at trial that police radio transmission was

15 |[responsible for the missing content,it was an absurd statement that can be
proven untrue very easily by any expert in the feild of radio propagation/tran|-

1° smission;this would be similar to a claim thatyour satellite dish stopped workl

20

ing because you turned on your cellphone-the signals are sent on bands of radip
o1 |lso far apart that,by law,devices must not be able to cause interferance,like hpw
0 their respective licenses prohibit YOur local country music station from transr
mitting in a way that affects your local rock station,even though they both trpn-
23 smit on the frequency modulation Mega-hertz band...While police radios transmit
24 |bn a band that is literally Magnitudes apart from the band used by small FM dey-
o5 |[ices such as baby monitors and....localized video surveillance,like that used fin

the interveiw at issue here.
26

"~ The content is not reliable and is so affected as to deny the petitioner due

27 process rights,and there is something much more insidious than mundane radio tra-

28 |[ffic at cause here.
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Moving now to the issue of "Voluntariness";as was stated in the petition,
petitioner invoked his right to counsel and to remain silent immediately upon
arrest. |

These invocations were ignored,completely,and over a period of time,an#é
environment was created and maintained whose goal was to overcome the will of
the petitioner to continue to resist the demands of the police to submit to an
interrogation.In the video that is available,there are several references to f
attempt by the petitioner to resist,as well as the actions of the ploice in
their pusuit of the video théy finally obtained.

The circumstances of the interrogation were violative ofthe petitioner's

rights to counsel and to remain silent and to be free from self incrimination

The courts have consistently ruled in support of this assertion:"When a pI

son in police custody requests the presence of an attorney,the authorities mu

cease interrogation."(Sanna V.DiPaolo, 265 F34d 1);"The Fifth Ammendment right to

remain silent carries an implicit assurance that silence will carry no penalty.

(U 8 v.Velarde-Gomez, 269 F3d 1023)"Counsel Must Be present at custodial intert
rogation."(Edwards V. Arizona,451 U.S. 4770"reversal is mandated if prejudice

proven on Attorney-client relationship."(U.S. V. Morrison,449 U.S. 361) "The

purpose of a Kastigar Hearing is to determine if the government's evidence was
obtained in violation of the defendant's 5th Ammendment rights."(U.S. V. McKeg

the

r—
t

"

is

’

192 F3d 535)"Where defense counsel is absent during critical Stage of criminal

proceedings,prejudice to the defendant is presumed"(U.S. v. Hamilton,391 F3d 1

"Suspect who has requested presence of counsel cannot be questioned concerning
any crime,not just the one that got him in custody."(Alston V. Redman,34 F3d

1237;Edwards V. Arizona,Supra)"burden is on the government to show that defeng-

ant was aware of his Miranda rights and waived them."(U.s.v.Cazares,121 F3dl24

"If suspect requests counsel in an interrogation context,§th Ammendment affords

him protection regardless of subject of interrogation."(U.S. V. Melgar,139 £3d

066)

1)

1005) "when agent does more than just listen,but also initiates discussion of ¢ase

which leads to incriminating statements from accused after right to counsel hT
attached,6th Ammendment violation occurs."(Blackmon V. johnson,145 F3d 205)"Du

process test for evaluating voluntariness of defendant's confession Requires

S

e

inquiry into whether defendants will was overborne by the circumstances surround-

ing the giving of the confession."(Dickerson V. U.S.,530 U.S. 428;Bolding and

underlining added for emphasis:;no such inquiry was ever even considered in th

11

instant case.)"State court's admission of testimony in violation of Miranda

23



7N violated defebridants due process ¥rights,"and,"It igs a violation of Miranda fo
question an individual who is in custody after he has requested counsel."(Ghent
V. Woodford,297 F3d 1121)"the appropriate remedy for violations of Miranda rights
3 [[|is exclusion of the evidence at trial"(Jocks V. TaVernier,3l6 F3d 128)"*he Goy-

ernment bears the burden of showing,by a preponderance of the evidence,that a
confession is voluntary."(U.S. V. Lopez,437 F3d 1059)"A statement is involuntary

when it was extracted by threats,violence,or express or implied promises suffjcient
6 || to overbear the defendant's will..."(U.S. V. Jordan,472 U.S. 575)

7 As has beén shown,the law does not suppoft a conviction which rests on a
"Confession” obtained under the cicumstances pétitioner has maintainedAénd the
people have not refuteé)since before the trial in question,especially,as we
have seen,with its questiionable reliability due to damage it had suffered,and as

10 || such, reversal is required.

6
11
Denial of material defense witnesses
12
This was an issue at trial,and with repesct to Ms. Erin Hughes,as has beeh
13

seen,steps were deliberately taken by the people to keep her from providing any
/14 corroboration of the defense theory to the jury,when the interest of Jjustice wpuld

15 have supported finding a way to present the truth,as the people knew it,to the
Jjury,instead of intentionally burying it to obtain bigger convictions.
16 With respect to the testimony of the Yolo County Police and of the six young
17 |men who had been on the recieving end of Ms. Rugg's scheming,the court unreasop-
18 |@bly ruled that only those witnesses would be allowed that the defendant had

‘9 personally had knowledge of through witnessing thier respective situations.

The rationale for this ruling is still a mystery to the petitioner;those

20 |lvitnesses gave great weight to the defense theory of the case and would have

21 |prejudiced the people's case only as much as the use of prior convictions as
evidence against the defendant would.

22
The requirement that personal knowledge,and therefore,possible incriminatfon
23 . . - . s .
and waiver of Fifth Ammendment priviledge,was unreasonable and is irrational apd
24 |imprctical when veiwed through a real world application:who develops opinions,

o5 |belifs,fears,ect.,based solely on what they personally observe?

06 If personal witness were the standard of reveiw from the judicial perspec

“|[Five,Abrahamic Religion would not be acknowledged to exist as a matter of law,
27 |bng as such,a sworn oath to be truthful in court proceedings,in the eyes of Gofg,

28 |[would hold no water,as a matter of law,making the whole thing a sham,as a matter
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of Law.
So which is it?It cant work both ways depending on who is asking for thejr
developed belief to be éccepted;that;not how the law works.It cuts both ways;if
its good for the goose its good for the gander,there are no double standards.
what makes the defendants beliefs,based on evaluation of witnesses to thgse
other situations,any less acceptable than the testimony,mostly disparaging of|the

petitioner,of his foster brother,Richard Romines,regarding What he heard,not per-

sonally witnessed, about the crime in the case at bar?

What is the difference?How is it fair to take testimony from a source for
the prosecution,but not,under identical circumstances,for the defense?
There is no difference,and it is not fair,and it,while denying fundamental
fairness,also serves to deny the defendant the right to present a defense.
The Law does not Allow this.

As a allegorical example:The people say john doe was killed by petitioner

-

with a gun,but the gun cannot be found.Petioner states that he saw Dave Mathews
shoot John doe with a gun.The people contend that Dave Mathews has no gun,and
couldnt shoot it if he did. o

Petitioner theasays to the court:Herg is a witness who says he sold Dave
Mathews a gun consistent with thatused to kill John Doe,and Here are Five Witness-
es who see him practicing at the range every day.
Does the court now say:these witnesses are only allowed if the petitionern
was presént when the gun was sold by the witnegs,to Dave%and the others;only if
the petitioner was also at the range watching Dave shooting at targets.

This is non-sensical...Whats the point of the witnesses if petitioner car

attest to those facts?Does him not being there and only knowing through the
witnesses make the facts not exist?If the witnesses are available to testify flo

first hand knowledge,its not hearsay,right?So whats the problem?Credibility?Iq
that not a funtion of the jury:to assess the credibility of the witnesses for

themselves?

. The Law speaks to these issues,voluminously at the federal level:"the gov
ernment has a special responsibility to ensure the integrity of the criminal Ju-

dicial process by living up to a code of professional ethics and fair play at jal-1
times."(U.S. V. White,222 f£3d 363)"Supession of evidence Material to the to duilt

or punishment violétés defendants due process rights."(Dowthitt V. Johnson,23( F3d

733)"A state may not arbitrarilty prevent defendant frm presenting evidence that

is material,trustworthy,and important to his defense" (Gray V. Klauser,282 F3d |633);

"only when error in excluding evidence deprives a defendant of a fair trial ddes
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may not prosecute a case with an "Evil eye and uneven hand."(Yick Wo V. Hopkins,

it amount to a constituticnal violation."(U.S. V. Lathern,488 F3d 1043);the state

cer of the court whose duty is to present a forceful and truthful case to the

ening a witness with prosecution...are violations ofthe 6th Ammendment right g

defendant to obtain witnesses in his favor"(U.S. V. Goldingl86 F3d 700)"goverr

ment interference with defendant's right to present a defense,including callin

defense witnesses,violates the constitution."(U.S. V. Deering,179 F3d 592)"def

endants 6th Ammendment right to present witnesses for his defense may be violg

if governmental interference prevents a witness from testifying."(U.S. V. Geoq

118 U.S. 356)"Prosecutorial Misconduct is not harmless when it renders defendant's

evidence worthless." (Marshall V. Hendricks,307 F3d 360;"The prosector is an ofiffi-

jury;

not to Win at any cost."(u.s. v.Filion,335 F3d 119[Emphasis not originall)"threat-

363 F3d 666);"substantial government interference with a defense witneses' fre

present witnesses in his own defense."(Hawkins V. Costello,460 F3d 238)

er,it should be remembered that where she was not on trial,and petitioner was,
the person on trial.

7
False Evidence Adduced at Trial

fically mentioned in the California Penal Code as grounds for Habeas Releif;it

its own sub-section.

broof as articulated in Rchards,Sassounian and Malone, Supra.

Here will be a discussion of federal law and the effect ofthis issue in

rontext of the instant cumulative effect claim.

tase at bar,the Testimony of Nicholas Hamman was enormously probative on the i

bf guilt;Crucial,in fact ,kis an accurate description of his testimony.

26

and unhampered choice to testify amounts to a violation of due process."(Earp [V.

powerful as a reason to overturn a conviction that it is the only ground specif

In §IIT of this memorandum,state law supporting reversal was spoken of,br

ifly.Specifically the rulings and definitions,standard of reveiw and burden of

Stokes,423 F3d 1024);"Few rights are more fundamental than that of an accuseq to

Further,should someone bring up confrohtation of witnesses regarding whetiher

or not to allow witnesses against Co-defendant Rugg at the trial of the petitijon-

she had no right to confrontation that could be implicated,by virtue of not being

This issue is incredibly well represented in caselaw,it is so extraordinarily

has

[{)
|

the

It cannot be denied that,as the only eyewitness to any alleged crime in the

ssue




7~ Without this testimony,there was no evidence of a crime whatsoever:Both

detectives presented their evidence,gathered as a result of Mr. Hammans state

2 |iments,and allowable based only on his tesdimony;The evidence presented by Emerpen-
3 cy room physician Andrea Harris is similarly irrelevant without Mr. Hamman,as|is

the testimony of Robert Hammer and all evidence of the electronic transaction

Uz

that gave rise to the robbery allegations.

]

And Now; Mr. Hamman swears,under penalty of perjury,that he lied about farts

6 |Jused to obtain this conviction?

11

7 Its hard to say,with the extreme neccessity of his testlmony,to determin
where the damage starts and ends. ’

Of course,yes,a crime was committed here,but to what extent,and the question
9 llby whom“now starts from scratch.
10 Its well settled in st&e and federal realms of law that a crime may not be
» prosecuted solely on the basis of confession."Conviction must rest upon firmer
ground than the uncorroborated admission or confession of the accused."(U.s. V.
Smallwood, 188 £3d 905)

13 But especially a "confession as unreliable as the one proffered herexopped

12

14 up as it is,and extracted in violation of defendants invoked rights to counse}l
and to remain silent,Which"Should be Scrupulously honored."(US V. Rodriguez,518F3d1072)

15
Having demonstrated the probative value of the tesimony given by Mr. Hampan

16 |las the v1ct1m,and therefore star witness,and sole accuser,we assume its effect on

17 ||the jury to be a profound cne and move to the federal law which determines this

18 issue:"Due process requiires that a convicted person not be sentanced onmaterially

untrue assumptions or misinformation.”(US V. Miller,Supra)"defendants convictjons

19 Hmust be reversed on due process grounds where the government Knowingly elicits,

20 |lor fails to correct,materially false statements from its witnesses."(Daniels
oy ||Lee,316 F3d 477;U S V. Haese,162 F3d 359)"governments Knowing use of false testi-

mony,or failure to correct testimony,violates Due Process."(US V. Burke,425 F3d
400;pPhillips V. Woodford,267 F3d 966)"a Defendant has the right to be sentenc¢d

23 llon accurate information"(US V. Hankton,Supra)"Prosecutor may not obtain criminal

22

o4 |[conviction through use of False evidence."(Thompson v. Calderon,109 F3d1358)"The

o prosecution may not use or solicit false evidence or allow it 5 go uncorrected."

{(U 8 V. goodson,165 F3d 610)"Prosecutor has constitutional duty to correct evi-
dence he knows to be false."(Hayes V. Woodford,301 F3d 1054)"denial of due prgcess

26

27 |loccurs where state allows false evidence to go uncorrected."(Hall V. Director [of

8 corrections,343 F3d 976)"Government,not the defendants,bears the burden of esffa-

blishing harmlessness of an error in admission of evidence."(U.S. V.Rodriguez+

marrero, 390 F3d 1)"New trial will be granted if verdict...(2)is based upon evid-
27
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ence which is false..."(Cline V. Wal-Mart Stores,inc.,144 F3d 294)"New trial is
required if perjured testimony could in any reasonable likelihood have affected
the judgement of the jury."(U S V. viziri,164 £3d 556)"New Trial must be ordeted

whenever substantial rights are effected by error at criminal trial and the gov-

ernment cannot prove harmlessness beyond a reasonable doubt."(U S V. Levy-Corr
dero,156 F3d 244)"The dignity of the United States Government will not permit
the conviction of any person on tainted testimony."(Mesarosh V. U.S.,352 U.S.}1)

"' perjury'requires willful intent to provide false testimony,rather than cont

fusion,mistake,or faulty memory."(U.s. v. Fawley,137 F3d 458)"District Court §id

not abuse its discretion in ordering new trial,in light of dubious testimony o¢f

two of governments main witnesses."(U.S. V. Autuori,212 F3d 105)"Conviction will

be set aside if there is any reasonable likelihood that the false testimony could
have affected the judgement of the jury."(Hayes v. woodford,Supra)"a new trial is
required if perjured tesimony could in any reasonable likelihood have affected
the judgement of the jury."(U.S. V. Agurs,427 U S 97)"few rules are more central
to an accurate determination of innocence or guilt than the requirement that ¢ne
should not be convicted on false testimqny;"(Ortega v. Duncan,333 F3d 102)'a pro-

secution's giving a witness behifits,such as leniency...or anything else,can be

used by a cross—examining defense counsel to undermine the witness."(Wisehart |

V.Davis,408 £3d 321)"Where a key witness has received consideration or potential

favors in exchange for testimony and lies about those favors,the trial is not
fair."(Tassin V. Cain,517 F3d 770) '

So,as has been demonstrated,state and federal law expressly preclude the

use of false or perjured testimony to secure convictions.

In the Cumulative effect context,the effct on the jury that this false
testimony has had on the jury becomes undeniable,as one card after another is
stacked against the petitioner.

8
Summary
Alone,the Law seems to require reversal of these convictions on the issJe
of False Evidence.
But this issue is heavily exacerbated by the impact of several other issyes
that,in concert,when accumulated;so infect the trial as to deny the petitioner] of
due process and are of a magnitude that affects the very framework of the trial.
Petitioner asserts that without these accumulated errors,the jury would have

pquitted him of Conspiracy to commit murder,and of kidnap for extortion,and as a

28
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ade,instead of more than one "Life" exposure sentence,plus that decade.

Chronologically:if. The Placer County Sheriffs Detectives had adhered to

could not have been shown,in its severely altered state,to the jury:;If it had

not have been told to the jury;If Erin hughes had not been forced to refuse tg
testify out of fear of the retaliation the prosecutor threatened her with,the
jury would have heard evidence very contrary to the prosecution's theory;if th

testimony of the Yolo County Police and other witnesses of prior,similar acts

testimony were not excluded,they would have bolstered,very much,the credibilif
of the defendants. testimony:;if the jury.had been given proper instruction on f{
crime of Misdemeanor false imprisonment,they would have convicted the petitior
of that crime instead of the 7-Life Kidnap charge;if thejury had not bee told
theyvcould convict the petitioner of Kidnap simply for not releasing the victj
from his restraint,despite having had nothing to do with the victims kidnap td
begin with,they would not have convicted the petitioner ofthe Kidnap charge;if
Jury Foreman Robert stefun had not concealed the employment of his father as 3
federal prison warden,he would not have been allowed on the jury,and:;if he had
not been allowed on the jury,he could not have been "Unreasoable"and "Demanded
guilty verdicts on everything,without further discussion.
and if not for the deck being stacked so much against the petitioner,he w
have been afforded a fair trial and been allowed to fairly defend himself,whid
would have resulted in a determinate sentence of approximately ten years in
prison.
9
Conclusion

As stated above,the convictions that resulted from the use of false tesin
and from the cumulative effect of the errors stated above requires reversal an
A new trial that is not so skewed as to deny the petitioner the constitutional

guaranteed rights of due process and a fundamentally fair trial.

29

no interrogation would have taken place;if no interrogation had taken place,if

had done so,and MANY lies that were probative of guilt and of punishment would

perpetrated by Co-Defendenat Rugg,they would have heard credible evidence very
contrary to the prosecution's theory of the case;if both of these sets of witn

result,he would have been sentenced to a determinate term of approximately a dec-

law

and vindicated petitioner's rights to Silence and counsel after he invoked them,

not

been shown to the jury,only the victims testimony could have affected their deci-

sion;If the victim had not provided false testimony,niether would the detectivyes
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Petitioner is without relief,save by writ of Habes Corpus,Wherefore,the
petitioner prays this court:

1)Issue the Writ;

2)Declare the rights of the parties;

3)Set aside the findings of Guilt as to the charges of Conspiracy
Commit First Degree Murder and of Aggravated kidnap for Extortion in Placer
County Case #62-03489,based on the facts of this petition;

4)Order a new trial on the charges aforementioned;

5)Rescind the petitioners current sentences of 7-life and of 25-1if
pending a new trial on those charges;and

6)Order any other relief deemed appropriate by this court but not
requested by petitioner at this time.

7)Alternatively to the request above,should an Order to show Cause
issue,petitioner requests this court ‘

8)Order the clerk of the court to prepare a replacement transcript
of prior proceedings to substitute that which was destroyed by correctional of
ials,for petitioner's referencejand

9)order representation by the placer County Public Defender for
those proceedings which the petitioner may not attend and if he may be ignoran
of the law relating to those issues.

Respectfully Submitted this 1_;"“l day of July,2015,By

-8 n Rodriguezy#V16387
o Shagh RoSeigqued

I,Shawn Rodriguez,do declare the foregoing to be true and correct,to the

very best of my knowldge and belief.As to those items stated on belief,I do

believe them to be true.

-

==

Shawn iguek #V16387

Executed this ZL’A day of July,20l5,at Represa,California, by

11117777777
/1777

30




PROOF OF SERVICE

(C.C.P. §§1013(a); 2015.5; 28 U.S.C. §1746)

[, shawn Rodriguez , am over the age of eighteen (18) years,
and I (am) (am not) a party to the within cause of action. My address is:

Shawn rodrigquez #V16387

B.O.box 290066
Represa,Ca. 95671

On, _March 14,2016 , I served the following documents:

Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
With Exibits

on the below named individual(s) by depositing true and correct copies thereof in
the United State mail in Represa, California, with postage fully prepaid thereon,
addressed as follows:

1. ca. court of Appeal,In and For 2. placer Couty District Attorney

The Third District 10820 Justice Center Dr.
200 N street,room 400 Roseville Ca. 95678
Sacto,Ca. 95814-4869 And

Placer County superior Court Dept 33
10810 Justice Center Dr.

I have read the above statements and decfi? eﬁl%a%?'tﬁ%'pggg?%f of perjury of
the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed this _14tpn  day of _ maren Ao+l , 2016, at California State
Prison - Sacramento, Represa, California.

(Signature) /




Documentary Exibits in the Second
or Successive Petition for Writ

of Habeas Corpus Regarding Placer
County Case Number 62-0%4689
The Peolpe V. Shawn Rodriguez(2003)
*hkk

In Re Rodriguez on Habeas Corpus

Placer County Case Number WHC-1400
kR
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EXHIBIT COVER PAGE | -

EXHIBIT

Description if this exhibit: Letter dated April 7,2015 From deputy a.G. Rachelle A.
Newcomb,with attached letter from Victim Hamman,in
Which he volunteers a sworn admission of Perjury at

Petitioners Trial.
Number of pages to this exhibit: __3 pages.-

JURISDICTION: (Check One Only)

[ JMUNICIPAL COURT

[x]SUPERIOR COURT

APPELLATE COURT

STATE SUPREME COURT

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
STATE CIRCUIT COURT

UNITES STATES SUPREME COURT
GRAND JURY
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EXHIBIT COVER PAGE | .

EXHIBIT

Description if this exhibitzetter dated 4-29-2015,from victim Hamman to petitioner
in which he refers to lying at trial,several times,and

hints at an attempt by agents of the Placer County
District Attorneys Office to Dissuade him from his

Attempts to come clean.

Number of pages to this exhibit: __1 pages.

JURISDICTION: (Check One Only)

[ IMUNICIPAL COURT
SUPERIOR COURT

APPELLATE COURT

STATE SUPREME COURT

| JUNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
[ JSTATE CIRCUIT COURT

[ JUNITES STATES SUPREME COURT
[ JGRAND JURY
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PLACER COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
R. SCOTT OWENS
10810 Justice Center Drive, Suite 240
Roseville, CA 95678
916-543-8000 fax 916-543-2554

BUREAU OF INVESTIGATIONS
Supplemental Information

CASE NAME: RODRIGUEZ, SHAWN MICHAEL
NUMBER: 32-034689

CHARGES: 664/187 P.C.

DATE: April 23, 2015 —

INVESTIGATOR:  J. Potter #25 @‘

Person contacted: V/Nicholas Hamman, CDC #J98016

I was contacted by Deputy D.A. B. Marchi who asked me to contact V/Hamman
regarding the above case. (V/Hamman is currently housed at Folsom Prison on an un-
related incident). This request came about because of a letter that V/Hamman sent to the
California Attorney General. In this letter, V/Hamman said that he “perjured” himself in
the above case. The Attorney General’s Office sent the information to DDA Marchi who
was the prosecuting Attorney. (See attached letter from the AG’S Office and the letter
from V/Hamman). In V/Hamman’s letter, he was not specific in how he “perjured”
himself but only requested the names and addresses of the Judge and prosecutor in the
case.

Note: The original crime occurred in March of 2003 and was investigated by the Auburn
Police Department. D/Rodriguez was found guilty, at jury trial, on numerous felony
charges and sentenced in December of 2003, D/Rodriguez’s co-defendant, Anna Marie
Rugg, 10-02-1982, negotiated a plea agreement for numerous felony charges.

I contacted Sacramento County D.A. Investigator J.Simms. Inv. Simms is
assigned to Folsom Prison and assisted me with arranging an interview with V/Hamman
on 04-23-15.

On 04-22-15, DDA Marchi provided me with two more letters from V/Hamman.
These letters were addressed to D.A. “Phenochio”, who was the District Attorney at the
time of prosecution and D.A. “Scott” (Owens), who is the current District Attorney.

In these letters V/Hamman said that he lied about how deep the water was in the
cell. He said that the water did not get up to his neck but only reached the lower part of
his thighs. He said that he removed the rags that D/Rodriguez and Rugg placed under the
door and the water was able to run out. (See attached).

Placer Co D.A. Investigations Page 1 of 2



I
04-23-15
0930 Hrs. I contacted V/Hamman at Folsom Prison. The interview took place in the
Sacramento County D.A. Investigators office in the prison. Also present for the interview
was Inv. Simms. V/Hamman told me the following in summary:

Iidentified myself as an Investi gator with the Placer County District Attorney. I
told V/Hamman that we had received the letters that he sent regarding his “perjury” in the
Rodriguez case. I showed V/Hamman the letter that he sent to the Attorney General’s
Office. He said it was the letter he wrote, I also showed him the two copies that he sent to
“Phenochio” and “Scott”. He said that they were the letters he wrote. I also told him that [
had a copy of his statement that he provided Auburn Police at the time of the incident. I
told him that we were not going to review his entire statement and asked him if his
statement was truthful and accurate when he gave it. V/Hamman said that it was truthful
but the part about the water in the tria] was not true. I confirmed with V/Hamman that he
mentioned the water depth in his letter. He said yes. I asked him what he lied about. He
said that the water did not come up to his neck and that it was only up to his thighs. |
confirmed with V/Hamman that the original report said that the water was up to his
shoulders and that the water drained down once the items were removed from the bottom
of the door. He again said that the water never got higher than his mid thighs.

I'asked V/Hamman if that was the only issue he wanted to tell us about. He said
yes. I told him that I would write a report and send it to the public defender’s office. |
- asked him why he told us the information, He said that he wanted to clear his
conscience.

T'asked V/Hamman if he has spoken or communicated with D/Rodriguez. He said
no. I asked him if D/Rodriguez tried to persuade him in any way or is looking for a favor
to help his case. He said no. I asked him if he has had any contact with Anna Rugg. He
said no. I asked him if had ever communicated with D/Rodriguez in the yard, (Ilearned
through Inv. Simms that D/Rodriguez and V/Hamman were not housed together but
probably had yard time at the same time and could communicate through the chain link
fence). He said no initially and then asked if D/Rodriguez was housed there. I told him
that I did not know and was wondering why he was bringing this to our attention since it
had been since 2003. He said that he has been praying a lot and that the Lord told him to
come clean about the incident. I told him that the Police arrived at the incident and saw
what had occurred. He said that the water was not high when the Police arrived. I asked
him if he had anything to add. He said no. I again told him that I would send his
information to the proper authorities and that the case has already gone before the appeals
court and may not proceed any farther at this point.

The above conversation was recorded. Please listen to recording for further detail.
I'made copies of the recording and gave them to DDA Marchi.

Nothing further.

Placer Co D.A. Investigations Page 2 of 2
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EXHIBIT

Description if this exhibit:Declaration of prisoner Thurl Light,in which he tells
of Conversations between him and Victim Hamman,with

SRRVETIN details which tend to cast doubt upon the reliability

of guilt findings by negating,specifically,elements of

both Life Term Crimes under CALJIC.

Number of pages to this exhibit: 3 pages.

JURISDICTION: (Check One Only)

[ I]MUNICIPAL COURT

[xASUPERIOR COURT

[ JAPPELLATE COURT

[ JSTATE SUPREME COURT

[ JUNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
[ JSTATE CIRCUIT COURT

[ JUNITES STATES SUPREME COURT
[ |[GRAND JURY




Declaration of Prisoner

Thurl Light #F68745

I,Thurl Light#F68745.Do declare the following,under penalty of perjury,as
defined by the laws of the state of California;

1)I am not a party to this action:

2)1 was,at all times described herein,a prisoner in the CDCR,at the
California State Prison-Sacramento;

3)On December 17,2014,T was placed into Administrative Segregation at said
prison:

4)As such, I Qas housed in facility A,Buildina 5(Known commonly as "A5")
cell 106;

5)For the duration of the period described herein,My next door nieghbor
in "A5"was a prisoner known to me as Nicholas Hamman#J98016,whose moniker
was then "Gray wolfQ;

6)Due to the ajoinina of our two cells(A5-106 and A5-107)we were able to
freely and semi-privatelv converse between ourselves,him and I,and durina that
time we had the conversations described in this affadavit:

7)Mr.Hamman asked me if I ever went to the Facility law Library,as he
needed some thinas from it.I responded that ves,I went and was on qood terms
with its Inmate clerk,Who I had met through his Cellmate,Known to me and
popularly as,"Suspect";

8)Mr.Hamman asked me if this person "Suspect"was indeed Shawn Rodriquez,
to which I responded that ,yes,his last name was"kodriguez".

9)Mr. Hammans reply was that Rodriquez was a "Peice of Shit"and had
commited a crime against him several years previously.I asked him to tell me

about it,and he did.



10)Later on,I spoke with Mr. Rodriquez,and relaved these events and the story
to him,and he has asked me to declare portions of what I heard from Mr. Hamman
under penalty of perijury,TO Wit:

11)Mr.hamman told me he was in the building with his girlfreind at the
time the crime started,but did not admit it to the authorities due to his fear
of being charged with burglary and having his parole violated;

12)Mr.Hamman stated that he was in the room he was locked into~because
"That bitch wanted to fuck,"and she locked him in to get his car keys;

13)In his story,Mr. Hamman told me Suspect and his girlfreind were
outside when it started;

| 14)Mr.Hamman said that a bruise on his leg came from it getting slammed

in the door,however,the detective told him to say it came from Suspect
because it was a very public case and theyneeded a conviction;

15)Mr. ‘Hamman said he was promised a lighter sentance on his"DUI",by the
prosecutor,which was not all he was led to beleive it would be:

16)Mr.hamman thought his Girlfreind was getting out,and she is not;:

l7)Mf.Hamman'said in his story,that the water'in the room got as high as
his waist,but he was told that if it was high enough to make him scared to
death,Suspect would het Life without Parole,so that is what Mr.Hamman said
under oath;

18)I have not been offered any compensation by or from Shawn Rodfiquez#V16387
nor have I recieved any in return for this declaration,nor have I been coerced:

19)I declare under penalty of periury,as defined by the laws of the state
of California,and its analogous Federal Statutes that the foreqoing is true and
Correct to the best of my knowledge and belief,and as to those items stated on
belief,I sincerely believe them to be true,andwillingly promise to testify

2



to these statements under oath if called to do so:
W Y 112420
74

Thurl Light#r68745

Executed this llth day of January,2015,at Represa,California, by

WL I VAN

Thurl Light#F68745
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EXHIBIT

Description if this exhibitbeclaration of Prisoner AnaAl-Rad Guinn,in which he
tells of overhearing conversations between pisoner Lighf
and Victim Hamman,and corroborates the staements of

declarant Light.
Number of pages to this exhibit: 2 pages.-

JURISDICTION: (Check One Only)

[ I]MUNICIPAL COURT

kx]SUPERIOR COURT

[ JAPPELLATE COURT

[ [STATE SUPREME COURT

[ JUNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
[ |STATE CIRCUIT COURT

[ JUNITES STATES SUPREME COURT
[ JGRAND JURY




Neclaration of Prisoner
AnaAl-Rad Guinn #H73336

I, AnaAl-Rad Guinn #H73336,Do declare the following under penalty of perjury,
as defined by the laws of the state of California: '

1)I am not a party to this action; '

2)I was,at all times nerein described,a prisoner in the California depart-
ment of Corrections,at the California State Prison-Sacramento:

3)0On December 8th,2014,I was placed into Administrative Segregation at said
Prison;

4)As such,I was housed in Facility A,Building 5(Known Commonly as "as"),
cell 105:

5)for the duration of the period described herein,My immediate nieghbors
were prisoners known to me as Light and Hamman,in cells A5-106 and A5-107,
respectively;

6)Due to our proximity and the relative quiet of "AdSeq",I was able to,and
did,overhear many conversations between those two prisoners,To Wit:

7)They spoke often and at length about a person known to me as both
"Suspect"from Sacramento and as Shawn Rodriguez variously;

§)I came to understand that Prisoner Hamman had testified against Rodriquez
in the trial that resulted in his sentance to Multiple "Life" terms:

9)In relation to this testimony,Hamman stated that hes was promised a
lighter sentance on his Alchohol related charge from that time,by the
prosecutor in the case at bar,if he could secure conviction of a charge
resulting in "Life Without The Possibility of Parole" for Rodriquez,due to its
High Profile nature;

10)Additionally,Mr. Hamman stated that in furtherance of this agenda,he
knowingly gave false witness against Mr. Rodriquez,of which I can only remember
a few specifics that stuck in my mind since then,described below:

11jFirst,Prisoner Hamman Explained that due to his fear of being "Violated"
on his Parole at that time,he had Willfully and Knowingly lied to investigators
and in court,regarding the circumstances by which he had come to be inside the
government building where the alleged crime took place,Fabricating a story
which impiied he had been lured into the puilding by Mr. Rodriguez for the

crime;



12)Sacond, he stated that he haé further embeilished this base fabrication
to portray Mr. Rodriguez as more Violent and Criminally sophisticatad,by
claiming that he had been kicked by Mr. Rodriguez during nis kidnapping,and
that indeed,Mr.Rodriguez had not even been present when his girlfreind had
kidnapped him;

13)Again,displaying Braggadacio and d=fiance,Mr.hamman expliained that
the prosecutor and investigators knew this was a fabrication but encouraged
him to present this story to the court under oath;

14)When questioed as to how these claims equated to a life sentance for
Mr.Rodriguez,Mr.Hamnan explained that he had lied to portray a life threatening
circumstance regarding water being as high as his head,when in fact it was
only ever as high as his waist,and then only opriefly;

15)At ona point,Mr.Hamman stated that Rodriguez had tried to break a
window £o free him,and also loosenaed its screws,but it was noi: enough to let
hin ascape;

15)Mr.Hamman emphasized that he had hoped <o 2ase the punishment of his
apologetic girifreind and be with her when she got out;

17)I personally he2ard Mr.Hammaa Say the thinas decscribed herein whila
he spokz to my neighbor lLight:

18)I have aot been offered any compensation by or from Shawn Rodriquez,
nor have I received any in re:turn for this declaration,nor have I bean coerced
to give it;

19)I declare under penalty of pariury,as definsd by the laws of the State
of California,and its analogous federal statutes that thz foregoing is true and
correct to the very best of my knowledge and belief,and as to thoss items
stated on belief,I firuly balieve itnem to b2 true,and willingly voluateer and

Dromisa to tesiify to these statements under oath if called upon to do so;

aM\ U«p"\QmQ meﬂcﬂ

AnaAl-Rad Guinn #H7333%6

Exacutad this 16th Day of January,20l5;at Represa,California, by

Gos A 1,08 Yoo,

AnaAl-Rad Guinn $#H73336
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EXHIBIT

DeSCI'iptiOH if this exhibitpeclaration of Jose"Katalina" Witrago,In which he tells
of conversations between her and victim Hamman,wherein
Mr.Hamman again has admitted to giving false testimony
at trial,the details of which are consistent with the
other declaranté,and which tend to disprove the requir-
ed elements of the Life Term Crimes under their respct-

‘ ive CAL JIC Sections.
Number of pages to this exhibit: __ 2 pages.-

JURISDICTION: (Check One Only)
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Declaration of Prisoner
Jose "Katalina" Witrago
CDCR# G24066

I, Jose "Katalina" Witrago #G24066,Do declare the following,under penalty
of perjury,as defined by the State of California and its analogous federal
statutes;

1)I am not a party to this action;

2)I was,at all times described herein,a prisoner in the CDCR,at the
California state Prison-Sacramento;

3)As such,I was housedin Facility "A",Building 4(Known commonly as "A4")
cell 110;

4)For the duration of the period described herein,I was in close
proximity and contact with an Inmate known to me as Nicholas Hamman,with the
Moniker "Wolf" '

5)Due to our proximity and frequent contact,I came to know Mr.Hamman on a
casual basis,and thus became aware of his having testified to being the victim
of a crime some years ago,perpetrated by anther prisoner I have known for a few
years previously,Shawn Michael Rodriguez#V16387,Alias "Suspect”;

6)In conversation and through listening to his conversations with others,
I came to be informed by Mr. Hamman,frequently and repeatedly,that he had
intentionally Perjured himself at Shawn's trial,at the refuest of both A
Detective and a Prosecutor,to gain special treatment in another criminal matter
he himself was in jail for at the time of his testimony;

7)Mr. hamman made no secret of the fact that he was asked by both Law
Enforcement Employees to say whatever was neccesary,under oath,to win conviction
of Shawn on any charges with potential "Life" terms;

8)While it is not possible to remember all the details of his admitted
perjury,the following points do stick out in my mind:

9)He lied about being "Lured"into a building when he had entered it on
his own,becuase that would show "Premeditation"by the defendants;

10)He had lied about being kicked by Shawn to make the jury believe he
had been involved with locking him into a holding cell,when in fact Shawn had
been elsewhere with his girlfreind at the time;

1



11)shawn had attempted to let him out,but to tell this on the stand would
risk not securing convictions for "Life" term crimes;

12)Mr. Hammans girlfreind had locked him into the cell,not shawn;

13)Mr. Hamman said that a Detective had told him to say a bruise on his
leg had come from being kicked by Shawn,which never happened;

14)Mr. Hamman explained that he was told that he should say the water got
as high as his head and made him fear death from drowning so that a conviction
for Attempted Murder could be won against Shawn,when in fact it had only made
it as high as his waist;

15)Mr. Hamman said that the reason they wanted such harsh sentances
because it was a very public case and was all over the news and would make them
famous:;

16)Mr.Hamman said something I could not understand about Shawn pulling
a hose out of something when his girlfreind left on the last night of the crime,
and taking the hose away later that night;

17)Me and other prisoners have several times told Mr. Hamman that he
should admit to what he did becuase it is wrong to have someone serving Life
in prison for such a selfish reason,and Alot of us know Shawn to be a decent
person overall; )

18)All of this occurred between November 2014 and January 2015 in CSP-SAC
A4 and the Individual Exercise Module yard cages we went to for rec;

19)I have not been offered,nor have I received or plan to receive,any
compensation for this declaration or for future sestimony in support of it.

20)I declare under penalty of Perjury,as defined by the laws of the State
of California and its analogous Federal statutes that the foregoing is true and
correct to the very best of my knowledge and belief,and as to those things
stated on belief,I do believe them to be true,and willingly volunteer and
promise to testify to these statements under oath should it become neccesary to

do so.

Jog€)Katalina" Witrago#G24066
Executed this 27th day of February,2015,at Represa;Caki
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EXHIBIT

DESCI'lpthII if this exh1b1t Declaration of prisoner Daniel Rowe,in which he details
his version of the Conversations between Victim Hamman
and Prisoner Light,which are thoroughly consistent with
those provided supra;and of his own conversations with
Victim Hamman,in which he admits to lying under ocath at
trialto secure convictions on LIFE Term crimes,the
details of which serve to negate elements of the CALJIC

N umber of pages to this exhibit: 2 pages.-

JURISDICTION: (Check One Only)
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EXHIBIT

()]

DCSCI'iptiOH if this exhibitDeclaration of Prisoner Thurl light,in which he report.
of a second visit to the Prison's AdSeg and a follow-
up conversation with Victim Hamman,in which the latter
again spoke of commiting perjury at the petitioner's
trial,but also of fear in regard to casting light upon
the governments invitation,Pre-trial,to do so,since his
having been contacted by the D.A.' office in april.

Number of pages to this exhibit: __ 2 pages.

JURISDICTION: (Check One Only)
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Supplementary Declaration
of Prisoner
Thurl Light #F68745

I,Thurl Light #F68745,Do Declare the following,under penalty of perjury,ps

defined by the laws of the State of California;
1)I am not a party to this action;
2)I was,at all times herein described,a prisoner in-the CDCR,at the -

California State Prison-Sacramento(CSP-SAC);

3)I have already,once before,declared witness in this matter,and regarding
facts related to these,on January 11th,2015,to which these are a supplement,apd

are hereby incorporated by reference;

4)0n or around May 30,2015,I was placed into CSP-SAC A5,for Administratiyve

Segregation;
5)As such I.was able to speak freely with Inmate Nicholas Hamman,through

a Chainlink Fence,while I was participating in "Individual Exercise Module" (IEM)

yard,and as a GP/EOP inmate,he was going to and coming from yard on A faciliéy;

6)I spoke to him a few times during the week I was in AdSeg,and the
following facts resuited from those encounters,to wit:

7)Mr.Hamman told me that he had contacted the State Attorney General to
rectify the wrongs done to Inmate Rodriguez as a result of his having commit
perjury in the Trial which resulted in Multiple "Life" sentances for Mr.
Rodriguez;

8)He also told me he had contacted Mr. Rodriguez by mail as well;

9)He stated that the Placer county District Attorney's Office had dispaf

an Investigator to interveiw him relative to these facts,who told him he shoy

- Just quit,it wont ever help and that the Appeals of Mr. Rodriguez and his Co- .

Defendant were over:;
10)He also conveyed to me that he was scared to "Rat Out"the D.A. and C{

who had put him up to commiting perjury against Mr.Rodriguez,and who had coag
him in doing so,Asking me if I thought simply admitting to perjury,and leavir
the others out of it,would be enough to reverse the wrongs done to Mr. Rodrig
by securing him a new trial or release from prison.

11)He pointed out that he had told this to Mr.Rodriguez as well,in May,
While he was in Segregation,but felt bad when he saw how Mr. Rodriguez reactd

to that fear of telling the truth;

ched
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on belief,I beleive them to be true.

12)I have not been offered any compensation by or from anyone in relation1
to this statement,nor have I been Coerced;

13)I declare under penalty of perjury,as Defined by the laws of the State
California,and its analogous Federal Statutes,that the foregoing is true and
correct to the very best of my knowledge,and belief,and as to those items stat

Executed this 16th day of June,2015,at Represa,Callfornla,by

of

Thurl ngﬁt #F6r}45’
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EXHIBIT

DCSCI‘iptiOn if this exhibit:Front Page News article of the Auburn Journal dated
October 5,2003,by reporter Ryan McCarthy,in which sever—
al jurors voice a lack of the finding of Specific Intent
to Kill,an Element Required by The CALJIC,minutes after
their verdicts were read.Article presented persuant to
People V. Cain(1995)10 Cal4th 1 (Pg.32) and evidence
code§210,as quoted in Cain,supra.

Number of pages to this exhibit: __ 2 pages.-

JURISDICTION: (Check One Only)

[ J]MUNICIPAL COURT

kx]SUPERIOR COURT

[ JAPPELLATE COURT

| ISTATE SUPREME COURT

[ JUNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
[ JSTATE CIRCUIT COURT

| JUNITES STATES SUPREME COURT
[ |[GRAND JURY




.2 Print Verston :. Page 1 of 2

i Journal

b A Gold Country Media Cnline Edition
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Wednesday, February 1, 2006 Last modified: Sunday, October 5, 2003 10:00 PM PDT

Rodriguez found guilty; sentencing set for Oct. 23
By Ryan McCarthyJournal Staff Writer

Shawn Rodriguez, 20, was found guilty of kidnapping for extortion and of conspiracy to commit murder in the
40-hour confinement of an Ophir man at the closed county juvenile hall in Auburn.

Jurors said Monday they were deadlocked 9-2 — with one abstention — for acquittal on attempted murder
charges stemming from the March 15-17 events at the county facility next to Gottschalks. Prosecutors said

Rodriguez and Anna Marie Rugg, 20, who faces her own trial next month, tried to drown and then gas 40-year-
old Nicholas Hamman after luring him into a holding cell.

Redriguez will be sentenced Oct. 23. He faces 38 years to life. Rugg has pleaded not guilty.

Jury Foreman Bob Stefun, 66, of Roseville, said a videotaped interview by Auburn Police detectives of
Rodriguez proved crucial during the five days of deliberations.

(?”\ “They asked the right questions,” Stefun said of Auburn Police Detectives Danny Cce and Dale Hutchins.
“They got the facts.”

Foreman Stefun said that Rodriguez’s testimony about the events at the juvenile hall differed from the account
he provided detectives.

“If it was different we trusted the video,” the jury foreman said.

Juror Michael Parsons, 45, of Meadow Vista said, “There were something things that were very damaging on
the videotape.”

Jury Foreman Stefun said that the criminal past of victim Hamman, a four-time felon and registered sex
offender, wasn't a factor during deliberations.

“His background didn’t have any effect,” Stefun said.

The foreman said jurors weren't swayed by arguments that Rodriguez, who stayed at the Eimwood Motel in
Auburn the day before the 40-hour confinement of the victim began, was looking for a place for his pregnant
girifriend to stay and went along with Rugg because he had little choice.

“It didn’t seem to sway the jury,” Stefun said.

Stefun said his father was a federal priscn warden. Some people make the right choice and avoid crimes and
others don't, Stefun said.

The 9-2 deadlock for acquittal on attempted murder stemmed from the jury not being convinced Rodriguez
intended to kill Hamman.

= “Did they plan it? Yes. They conspired,” the foreman said. But, “We didn’t see the next step — that they really
intended to do anything.”
http://www.auburnjournal.com/articles/2003/10/06/export9384.prt 2/1/2006
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Juror Parsons said, “There was no demonstration of intent.”

The attempted murder charge took up about three of the five days of deliberations, said juror Sharon Fields, a
Placer High School teacher. “We spent a significant amount of time on the attempted murder,” Fields said.

Juror Louise Daggett, 58, of Loomis, said the panel agreed that Rodriguez sought to get along with Rugg
during the March 15-17 events at the juvenile hall.

*He was kind of appeasing her,” Daggett said. “We all felt that.”

Victim Hamman's try to alert officials to his plight by striking a cigarette lighter next to the sprinkler system left
him soaked and was followed by attempts by Rodriguez to seal and flood the cell in order to extort Hamman's
ATM card and access code, the prosecution said.

Rodriguez later participated in an effort to gas Hamman by connecting a garden hose from the exhaust pipe of
a car to the cell where he was held, according to the prosecution. The District Attomey’s Office said the
defendant lured Hamman to the hall with a story of a friend being in trouble there.

Deputy District Attorney William Marchi, had told jurors in his closing argument that “there’s no license to kill or
attempt to kill a four-time felon — not in this country.

“We don’t go out to the church choir and pick our victims,” Marchi said of the prosecution.

The Journal's Ryan McCarthy can be reached at ryanm@goldcountrymedia.com.

Close Window

http://www.auburnjournal.com/articles/2003/10/06/export9384.prt 2/1/2006
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EXHIBIT

Description if this exhibit:Letter Dated April 17,2015,Addressed and sent to R.
Scott Owens,Placer County District Attorney,Formally
Requesting Discovery of the Fruits of his Office's
4-24-2015 interview Perjurous Witness Nicholas Hamman

Offer of Informél resolution.

Number of pages to this exhibit: 4 pages.
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-assistance they may have to offer,and so far,they are silent.

Shawn Rodriguez #V16387
PO Box 290066
Represa,Ca. 95671

April 17,2015

R. Scott Owens

Rlacer County District Attorney
10810 Jlistice Dr. Ste.240
Roseville, Ca. 95678

Re: People v. Shawn Rodriguez
Placer County Superior Court #6234689

Dear Mr. Owens:

I am the Defendant/Petitioner in the above referenced case.I was made

aware,last April 9th,that my alleged victim,Nicholas Hamman wrote the Attorney

Generals Office;Not for the first time,it would appear,concerning his commitihg

Perjury in the trial that resulted in my sentance to multiple Life Terms in
state Prison.

Around April 12th,I contacted the Public Defender's Office regarding any]

Fair Enough.

Today I was made aware that your office sent an Inveétgator toz interveip -

Mr. Hamman as to the basis for his assertions.

Even though,as a participant in the events that led us here,I am well awpre

of the details of his severe perjurous embellishments and fabrications,I woulfd

very much like to know the results of your investigation thus far.

As such,Here and Now,I am formally requesting that your Office Discover

me a copy of both the Audio recording (CD Format please,as I am limited to that

medium)and a transcipt of the interveiw: -

While there is some ambiguity to be found,I beleive that Statute calls
for this,as 1)I am a Prd Se litigant,and 2)the materials I am requeéting are,
neccesarily, Impeachment material,and as such,potentially exculpatory evidence
pointing to "A Reduced Culpability"having "a Substantially material or Probat
impact "On the Issue of gquilt or punishment"within the meaning of P.C.§1473(b

While initially I rely on Brady v Maryland(1963)373 U.S.83 as the basis

of this request,and see no statute which undermines my use of the case for thi

purpose,as there seems to be no ruling confining its use to pre-trial or sen-

tancing,or even the appeate level.

ve"

(1).




7N While there seems to be a large volume of analogous State and Federal
cases which also bolster my request,I see no reason to reason to dump them on
2 || you now if it is not neccesary.
_ I would also like to be quite frank with you,if I may:;12 years ago I
learned as a matter of fact and neccessity,to strongly distrust your office.
I would love to not nead to think that way:;however,in hindsight, knowing
5 || tha things I do now,I have become aware of several facets of the railroading
6 || I got back then. '
I have learned alot since then,and I will fight with all of my faculties
this time,as hard and as far as I need to. ’
In the spirit of candor I will tell you that I am not adverse to resolutlion
9 || outside of the public eye,quietly.I am willing to own what I did do,always have
been;I am just not willing to serve a day for the things I didnt do.
I just want my life back.

10

1 . . .
! Im broken,Im scared straight.I just want to go home to my family before

12 || any more of them die.I want to finally meet my son.I want to get married and
13 || have a normal life.TI dont use drugs,dont drink,Im not a gang member;I can
~ia "successfully complete parole.There is a job and a home waiting for me.’
Before w2 initiate a Knock down,drag out legal fight,why not take a
5 || new look at the record.His perjury notwithstanding,does it look to you that as’
16 || @ 19 year old I commit an act so heinous that I should shrivel and die alone [in

prison for it without a chance to apply the lesson learned with enough time

17
to have a successful life,to work to retirement,to pay off a homeloan,to
18 . . .
have some influence in-my teenaged son's life?
19 The jurors did not beleive so;Im sure you have access to what they wrote)

o0 || to the court post-trial.

Leo Lewis "Was shocked when (he)heard how severé the punishment could bel."

e "Nobody was hurt"he said,"Where is the justice?"It was his "Opinion that Shawn

22 || should spend no more than a year in confinement."

23 - Jennifer Baran sai that"at no time did"she "Feel that shawn was dgserving

o4 of life in prison."she did not"feel that this 'Go for the throat'attitude on
the part of the district attorney was appropriate in this case."She did not

25

bzleive that I was "a cold-blooded killer"or "Deserving of this punishment,on#

26 || that is usually given to thosz who are."

Another Juror did"Absolutely Mot!"think this "Was a fair Punishment".
| 2

=27
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|He or she said they "Felt tricked into these decisions by the prosecution."They

implored the court"give him 10-15-20 years in prison.But do not send him to
orison for the rest of his life."

They further followed that request with a'plea:"I beg the court...Please
do not throw this young life away".

Another Staed that they did"not feel it was a fair punishment."They
suggested "10-15-20 years or so,but not life."

Have I not paid my debt yet?The peoples who heard all the prosecutions
"Facts",and not ALL of Mine,sure seem to bz saying that they think so;

Yet another Juror stated that the sentance seemad "Very harsh given thad
I do not think he intended to kill him."

Jury Foreman Robert Stefun,by far the most conservative member of our
jury,said publicly that they found no intent to kill.

Michael Parsons,Sharon Feilds,and Louise Dagget all Stated publicly that
the agreed.

That not to mention the others who said that in their post trial state-
ments that half of Placer County didnt read.

So let us puat it all on the table and what I feel is the proper perspect
The lights and cameras are off,no-one cares anymore.Its baen .over a decade.No
one can politically benefit from Crucifying me publicly this time.

Even The Victim wants to make this right.He had to try Twice to make: him
self heard on this point,and feels stongly enough about the issue that he too
the time and made the effort. ’

Would it be political suicide for you to not heavily contest my petition
and work with me to plead to the things I did do?This is an opportunity to
discreetly dispose of what could be an embarrassing $ituation for your Office
and give Real Justice in this case.

Im not concerned with the politics of it;I dont care for civil lltlgatlo
or receiving a hand out some slick used-car salesman lawyer could get me.

I just want to take a bath,or even a shower that didnt have a 5-minute
timer on it.To hold my neice's newborn without being scolded for "Excessive
Contact"by a power drunk prison guard.

Am I wrong for wanting this out of 1life?I dont feel I am.Look at my pris

record:a handfull of fistfights,no real injury,typical guys disagreeing-stuff}

What about before that?Fist fights in CYA,while I did a term forJOYRIDING.
3

ive;

4
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Im not a Violent criminal.I see guys get struck out,while I never got a
chance to learn and grow,then try again.The prospect of violent or lonely dez
in prison,no matter what...That changes a man:;It changed me.

' Now,look:Im not adverse to meeting with you and talking,to settle this
like a couple of fellas sitting at the table together.

Im very uncomfortable with the prospect of sitting down with. Bill Marchi
If T am forced to,I can surpass the burden of proof for "Knowing Use of Perju
Testimony"with the evidence I have amassed.I have the New evidence neccesary
to now put this in front of a court,and to restate previous claims on the
ground of "Cumulative Effect of Errors not Singly prejudicial".

Its not a bluff or a threat,in fact I am loathe to go that far.I jUSt
mean to illustrate that I have ample reason to distrust him.

But again,I am Amenable to meeting with you for a discussion:bring your

recorder——At this point,I have nothing to hide:;the truth can only help me
now.

From the outset,Ill put this on the table:

Felony .False Imprisonment

Second Degree Robbery

Unlawful Driving or Taking Of a Vehicle
Second Degree Commercial Burglary

Usiﬁg Anothers Name To Obtain Credit or Goods

All at mid term.Thats at least ten years.ALL of my Twenties.

I will admit to those things because I did Do Them.I have never denied
them.

Im just asking you for a fair shake here,a chance to get what I had Comi
and move on with my life.

I really hope you éan look at this in a wider perspective,histbrically a
otherwise,and give me a shot.

PLEASE-Consider it.

If I must,I plan to file my petition by July lst.I sincerely hope to hea

from you before then.Thank you for your time and for your consideration.

%Z% /7 2as
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Sh\%p odrlgybz #v16387
PO Box

%fpresa,Ca. 95671
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EXHIBIT

DeSCI'iptiOH if this exhibit: post Trial jury questionairres from Jurors Leo Lewis,
' Jennifer Bafan,Ect.(S Jurors Total)In which they,by
and large,admit to not finding intent to kill beyond
a doubt on the part of the Petitioner,and express to
the court that the punishment far outweighed the
crime,was disproportionate,andexpressed a desire to

' find guilt on a lesser included offense to P.C. 236.
Number of pages to this exhibit: 15 pages.-
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1. How was the sury foreman selected? Did he elect, nominate, or vote for himself?

Bob had stao that he had served on two other juries, and he seerned to have a goad
understand:w of the process in general. | nominated him, and nobody disagreed.

Did you vede Mot Guilty on arrempted murder?
Yes.

Did you ccoduyde that the defendant had the Specific intent to murder Nicholas Hamman?
For me, the peint at which “conspiracy” became actual “attempt” was when the car was

turned op g~ A gas went into the cell. Ar this point, I concluded that it was not Shawn
Rodriguez*s intenr to kill Hamman.

How did yoo ¢ onclude that there was no intens Jor the attempred murder, but there was intent
Jor the consp\racy to commit murder?

This was 2™ igsue for us while we discussed this charge. I tried s much as I could to
follow the ;¥ instructions, and I read and re-read the definitions of conspiracy and
anempted morder, as well as all the other definitions we had. Those who were leaning
towards 4 “6@.ilty” verdict on the artempred murder charge also posed this question to me,
As I undestood the definitions, “conspiracy” is an agreement, and deals with only the time
during whick ¢he agreement is made, who it is made between, the overt acts commitred to
accomplist e goal of the conspiracy and if then: was malice aforethought. I believed at the
time that all ese criteria where met, Shawn willfully entered into the agreement with Anna
and commite A the overt acts, ie. geting duck tape and hoses, taping the door shut, hoaking
up the hoses ¢ ¢ the car and running it to the cell. At the time I also believed that there was

T'told myself mowever, thar despite my doubts as to Shawn’s intent, he still entered into an
agreement 't Anna, and he knew she wanted Nick Hamman dead. He helped formulate the
plan. He heped Anna Rugg get everything together. He was, therefore, a conspirator. So
how couldz'c ome to a guilty verdict on this charge and not on the atempted murder? Simple
— accordinaste the instructions as I understood them, I could not use the presence of a

thought J €0 treat these charges separately, and that conspiracy became artempt when the
car was tarved on. According to the instructions as I understood them, Shawn could do
everything inhe world to prepare to murder someone, but unless he had the intent to kill
while the g Htwapt was taking place, he was not guilty of atempted murder,

Did the juq S¢em 1o discuss and understand that the law requires the same specific intent 1o
kill for CoNspi racy as it does for attempred murder?
Yes, I belii¢ we understood that.

Did you or on y of the jurors ever suggest asking the judge a clarifying question regarding the
intent nece¢svy for the conspiracy charge?
No.

If s0, why wss such q question never given to the judge ?
N/A

Did the juradiscuss the False Imprisonment charges before debating the kidnap?

No, we digcos sed the Kidnapping charge first. All the elements pointing to guilt were being
mmet until g ceme to the issue of whether or not Nick Hamman was kidnapped with the
specific intt% . to extort him, The question was, did the intent have to be formulated before
the confiremennt took place, or could the plan 1o extort be formulated during the confinement.
While we ge-te wairing for the answer from the judge, we explored the other lesser charges of
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robbery, fa\>¢ mprisonment and the lesser charge of extortion that was attached to count one.
We all agreedrhat Shawn took an active part in extorting, robbing, and falsely imprisoning
Nick Hamwows. However, the words “violence and menace” in the false imprisonment charge
threw 2 wrendw in these discussions. We all agreed that Shawn took part in Nick Hamman's
confinement. He did nothing to get Nick out after the door was shur, but we saw no proof
that Shawn Wod anything 10 do with actually getting him in the cell. There was no violence or
menace on Shawn's part as far as we could see. It was 100 ing like we would be forced to
vote-not gw kon that charge because of the presence of those two words. However, as you
know, the Jodoye’s answer came back telling us that the Plan to extort someone can occur after
the confinea«it or detainment has taken place. Thus, in our eyes, all the criteria were met
for a guilry vefdict on the Kidnapping for Extortion charge.

Would you wave voted guilty for false imprisonment if it did not include the term “violence™?
Yes, thou Bhr don’t know what that would have meant once we got the answer back from the
Jjudge reganding count one.

At what p6 i did you conclude thar the defendant Jormed the intent to kidnap Nicholas
Hamman?

Going by e jury instructions and the definitions we were given, I concluded that the intent
was forme:A vohen Shawn saw thar Nick was locked in the cell and did nothing to get him out.
According lo+he definition of kidnapping, Just confining or detaining someone against his
will constitvles kidnapping. Shawn intended to leave him in the cell, he intended to confine
Nick when 1*was clear Nick did not want 1o be in that cell. Thus Shawn intended to “kidnap”
him.

Did you copc\osde that when the defendant intended 10 kidnap Mr. Hamman, he did so with
the goal of gla¥ing money from him?

I concludea wat when Shawn initially decided to not let Nick Hamman out of the cell, it was
Dot necessirety his intention to get money from him. By his own admission, though, once
Nick was a, tere, a plan was formulated to [eave him in there unti] they got his money, PIN
number ar} ATM cards. Based on what the judge told us, it didn’t mater that the initial
kidnapping wus not done with the intent to extort, That plan could be formulated later ~ the
intent coufd ¢ kange from one thing to another,

Do you hege any regrets regarding your decision in this case?

Iregret my decision on Count Two. I should have listened to what my gut was telling me and
insisted thatw e explore that Charge further. Perhaps I was unclear in regards to the
definidong cwd should have re-read them one more time. Upon further reflection, and
believe ma mare has been a lot of further reflection, I no longer belicve that Shawn had
malice afe¢ thought, namely the intent to kill when he entered into the agreement with Anna
Rugg. Itisno t because I now know that this charge carries a life sentence that I feel this way.
It is because 1) ow I realize that maybe I did not have as clear an understanding as I thought I
did when i same 1o the instructions and the definitions regarding this charge.

Is there anyWing about the jury instructions that Yyou feel you may not have understood
clearly?

Yes, asIgoi din the previous answer, I am not as certain of my understanding of the
instructions +o Count 2 as I thought I was. I don’t think I fully understood that Shawn himself
bad to pogcss: the intent to kill when the conspiracy took place. As I stared before, I thought
at the time WAt Shawn did have this intent, but ar the same time [ had doubrs of that fact, if
that make$ $snse to you, However, I thought the greater issue was that someone in the
conspiracy definitely had this intent, and that Shawn willfully entered into this agreement and
committed %s 10 carry out the goal of this agreement.
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14. I3 it you copd\o ssion after hearing all the evidence that Shawn Rodriguez wanted 10 kill
Nicholas Horman?

No. Upon er reflection, I do not believe thar Shawn ever waated Nick dead, much less
kill him himn s€({,

15. Based on she <vidence you have heard in this case, do you feel that life imprisonment is a Jair
punishmenk- S Shawn Rodriguez? Please explain, .
No, at no time during the mial or during the deliberations did I feel that Shawn was deserving
of life in prison. Shawn is unquestionably guilty of many horrible things, and I believe thar
he most defiwely must be punished for the crimes he commitied. I am not saying that he
does not desy (ve prison time. What I am saying is that I believe justice could have been
served and by, ishment been meted out without the kid spending the rest of his life in jail. I
don’t understaad why the district attorney bronght these particular charges to the table when I
know that sther charges could have been brought thar wonld have accomplished the same
goal. Talsc don’t understand why Shawn was not offered a Plea bargain. Why did the charge
of Kidnappsy for Extortion have to be brought? Why did the words “violence and menage”
have o be s on 1o the False Imprisonment charge? I just don’t feel that this “go for the
throat” att¥.Mgt on the part of the district awtorney was appropriate in this case. I do not

believe thirk Snawn Rodriguez is a cold-blooded killer, and I do not believe he is deserving of
this punishmerat, one that is usually given to those who are.

Hopefully thes¢ saswers will be helpful to you. If you need further explanation, or if you have
any other queghons, please don’t hesitate to call. If you need to meer with me, I am willing to do
thar also. Heré4 my coatact information if you need it:

Work:
916-631-9030 2014

Home:
916-797-1308

email:
baranjp0@lyei <om
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JURY QUESTIONAIRE

The following is a list of questions designed to explore some of the thought
_ process behind your findings and to clarify some of the actual conclusions. There is nor

right or wrong answer, and please understand it is not our goal to challenge your .. A
conclusions — only to clarify them. . .

Please feel free to expand on or explain in as much detail as you like any of(your ,
answers. ¢

o

1. How was the jury foreman selected? Did he elect, nominate, or vote for himself?
Vob wolon feercd B —The Fesihon. Wwhin we axk qei~inh D .
e - . w , . ™ Steaedl B B Screire LD
AT et et e, R ety v OuUtS D0t ol .
Lo vhak W wus ().c.'.s_é_ wheo vgyo\,»\-ctre,;l’ M&M KenekL b ©
o)‘h\% v D O Ne v 450 Mtk WLkere A .
2. Did you vote Not Guilty on attempted murder? A+ -he fine e tosh veic Leas Takine | ok
“YeST, Movrver, | wise St ed ot ot was whive | Wy fearing Onless sereer doulgl PIN
3. Didyou conclide that the defendant had the specific intent to murder Nicholas
Hamman? | ceeoweicd Fhat e o ~ hod e Speeific inkwt o
wew MG‘- cve e W‘F&o o.ts\“lc»bvi- | VIRV S W M ﬂ‘,s,&. M was
Wore miend an M Useid VA elp gue, S Yoo Vot Y Nagor of Ogricme

4. How did you conclude that there was no intent for the attempted murder, but there
was intent for the conspiracy to commit murder? 1 %t¢ Gke ST ol WS wmadle
e V' R buwt M ownderiesd . BVea A |\ Radt _h\'wus\-* here was
ataenp¥, X behasve - plrsir Can Conspive o de Senahe ng Ot e
o—oﬁw.o DT A0 he Indeaded € vini

5. Did the jury seem to discuss and understand that the law requires the same
specific intent to kill for conspiracy as it does for attempted murder? Yes and wo. ) persliy oF
brmgtt t W stiecdier ok e Jurors Dt L R e wees dn -"“"""-""""‘6 "
o g u Fowe iAA ! Dot
ﬁ.@,«zuus‘k- chrrjes. Wead R heme e law ce Jvt\-r\é'fﬂ- Same of ms
haded %o e preset . 1 Rik it e gremp had e ey Pot ey beed | >
Lven M»SL SNty e dad mad et o F.uscm'a Lt 'H,tm,.s. e SHu CMPI‘V‘Q&‘ w»‘H\’
6. Did you or any of the jurors ever suggest asking the judge a clarifying question P lj; \
regarding the intent necessary for the conspiracy charge? \—ipeoy detsne e Bt e dog o
One ot Tjovers votedh 10 ASE e yudlge b & qut U\J ngot" ™ P charge
COCUB. Mt oL \pza~Tr{ m W) W Msfw.n&‘hg "t charc
i‘:w‘,u\. nurclsr ct-.s.,-y.s) We dida 4 Beccw e V lociiew ke o p
A “ H - . >
o Gt dppirhe IThmd Y inshechen . Pad T ques o bidn aslad | oo oy ve ' iteio
g ﬁraP"&‘_If so, why was such a question never given to the judge? wl cigmed ;e cre i s

Ty ﬁ).° G'.Vk,\.lm S .
broavse \din'd vl ave e v Doy \)un;l‘s J"wl.u.o‘ vnec s srova. et Nere hasl tun iag
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W Tl B Spetibhie Tnkit Y i asieue b o o homber of Frrmes s

8. Did the jury discuss the False Imprisonment charges before debating the kidnap?
Yoy we s, Howcu.r‘ e Bl charge was fdse (npris emmmeri-
AT Vicience . Sing ve £t Trai Shawn was hot presest of e T
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9. Would you have voted guilty for false imprisonment if it did not include the term
“violence™? Yes, a‘wse\w\«,ha .

10. At what point did you conclude that the defendant formed the intent to kidnap
Nicholas Hamman? | cencivdid bat e’ wkk  comme ofter Anea hoole
chccAO Ve prisered N codas | Shaww come onfs e Scerc ubv oy .6,(,:1.
ol Do— ok a_n‘vo-«—"ﬁ.ag vb*‘_ sihaeten .

11. Did you conclude that when the defendant intended to kidnap Mr. Hamman, he
did so with the goal of getting money from him? 4,3‘.;’ ot Uast fo Wdlp

orwa %dm Mwua -Bu‘.‘\zﬂw .

12. Do you have any rcgrets regarding your decision in this case? My wiggest regret 15 Trav
v wanie A ~b ask P \udg M v conld haue e Chaige “Fuiac ow prisemiman b ] Vioterae
elhanged N ok “Rds biwprisoniment ) S 7 T jomny daid et 14 was Inepo ssible
+ qet 3 elarqe chhongecl. MA.‘ recret 19 AoT "Ju‘,)\-mj Naf jssve feask M‘Judcjg
rua’anu_gss D:{- whe + ofPer juro-s gaid .
'13. Is there anything about the jury instructions that you feel you may not have
understood clearly? Tumy insiruchicns eda bl ven compiicatrd . Trere uxre
Ao e s bhue | wishd we  eonld L‘ﬂ.vgo. \a.w»,cr Nere
™ inkerpret e \awWS, 1k scemed 35 v ve buws ab Bwes we
Voy SVbjeemive to mclviduod

13. Is it your conclusion after hearing all the evidence that Shawn Rodriguez wanted
to kill Nicholas Hamman? W was v comctusion Tet Shewsn did not
Wwant b Nieotas, bor trad he haad e Arna. ke waand
ot W15 Joine vhod e did Brocuage o4 WS Wel B A - woq
Dt comme We hod sy vad feelingg buwnA Nocudas,
14. Based on the evidence you have heard in this case, do you feel that life
imprisonment is a fair punishment for Shawn Rodriguez? Please Explain fiosolokcly Ne+t !
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JURY QUESTIONAYRE

an
in there to get us focused 8 & group. When it was apparent that he seemed
%0 be a leader that was willing ta take on the Poeition, someane in the group nominated him
and the group responded with a yes.

Did you vote Not Gullty on attempted murder?

No. At the last vote | made it clear to the group that [ a3 of that point I felt that the defendant
Wwas guilty based on how we had determined the Conspiracy verdicy.

Did you conclude thas the defendant had the Specific intent to myrder Nicholas
Hamman?

L felt that the defendant had the specific intent to follow through on the promise he had made
1o his co-conspirator,

How did you conclyde thar there was no intent Jor attempted murder, pyz there was
intent for the conspiracy to commit murder?
This question is not applicable to me.

I do believe | brought that up to the group,

If s0, why was such o question never glven 1o the judge? :
A number of the mors “outspoken” of the group did not see the need to do 50, 50 I did not
push the matter. I'm not sure why, however it sssmed that &ny time someone wanted 1 agk

the judge a question, some in the graup argued about it. It did not seem an easy thing to do
within this group,

Did the jury discuss the Faise Imprisonment charges before debatmg the kidnap?
Yes,

Would you have voteq uilly for faise imprisonment if it did nos include the term
‘“violence”?

Yes.

10. At what point did You conclude that the defendans  formed the intent to kidnap Nicholas

Hamman?

After the defendent was already imprisoned by Anna Rugg and the issus arose bezween hor
and Shawn as 10 what they should do,

11. Did you conclude thay when the defendany intended to kidnap Mr, Hamman, he dig sa

with the goal of getting money from him?

Leoncluded that after he saw the defendant was imprisoned, then it was a 8ood oppartunity ta
get what he could from him.
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12. Do you have any regress regarding your decision in this case?

Only that I did not push the maner regardin

8 asking the judge about the above stated question,

I saw an inconsistency in the group regarding the conspiracy and sttempt charges,

1 do not believe sq,

M. Is it your conclusion
Nicholas Hamman ¢

after hearing all the evidence that Shawn Rodriguez wanted to ki

It was my conclusion that Shawn Rodriguez wag following through with what he had told
Anna Rugg he would do. It wes an issue of being true 1o hig word.

15. Based on the evidence Jyou have heard in this case, do you feel that life Imprisonment Is 4
Jair punishment jor Shawn Rodriguez? Please explain,

. He was at the wrong place, at the wrong time,

with the wrong friends, | believe Shawn needs 1o be “reformed”, not discarded, 1 persapally
" would like to gee him Put in an environmen; that will allow him to change, not harden his

any more, o that possibly one day he
tums 50 years old.

can walk out of prison and live his fife before he

DorR ek
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. JURY QUESTIONAIRE

. The following is a list of questions designed to explore some of the thought
process behind your findings and to clarify some of the actual conclusions. There is nor
Tight or wrong answer, and please understand it is riot our goal to challenge your
conclusions ~ only to clarify them. :

Please féel free to expand on or explain in as m’ucﬁ detail as you like an& of your -
answers. , . 4

. 1. How was the jury foreman selected? Did he ;lect, nominate, or vote for himsel'f:? '
Volunteer

2.. Did }ou vote Not Guilty on attempted murder? Yeﬁ

3." Did you conclude that the defendant had the specific intent to murder Nicholas
Hamman? /V
s 0 .

4. How did you conclude that there was no intent for the attempted murder, but theré
was intent for the conspiracy to commit murder?

fe ;ﬂﬁ‘ef’&/ materals hose tape lheck rndseated
A plan togsformularte, -

5. Did the jury seem to discuss and understand that the iaw requires the. same
specific intent to kill for conspiracy as it does forattempted murdes? 0 °

UR disgussect but apwoustyy, did Kot tondustyn
Ut the par fitguies 7

6. Did You or any of the jurors ever suggest asking the judge a clarifying question
regarding the intent necessary for the conspiracy charge? '

o .

7. Ifs0, why was such a question never given to the judge? -

.8.' Diq the jury discuss Z:{? al/s&eﬂ 1;1(;( tigon'ment cha.rgtﬁfo‘r.e ciebaﬁng the kidnap? #ﬂg '
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9." Would you have voted guilty for false imprisonment if it did not jnclude the term
“violence™? : N P X
10. At what point did you conclude that the defendant formed the intent to kidnap

1. Did you conclude thet when the defendant intended to kidnap Mr. Haroman, he
did so with the goal of getting money from him? Aﬁ" '

| 12. Do you have anymgret§ regarding your decision in this case? %( 7, M M;‘
ewe cn adis ' dzm&?,me, Lht Rapre
%Wﬁ%ﬁ&mm@m ”

'13. Is there anything about the jury instructions that you feel you may not havj C ’
lmderstc_aod clearly? ' ) '

e

13.5s ;ct] {Iour conclusion after hearing all the evidence that Shawn kodﬁguei wanted
to kill Nicholas Hemman? . '
My, L ded nat-
et b Loty . Horrernar

14. Based on the evidence you have heard in this case; do you feel that life
tmprisonment is a fair punishment for Shawn Rodriguez? Please Explain -

Mt s 2050 fnid s thatsd A, 7L
il £ o o
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JURY QUESTIONAIRE

right or wrong answer, and please understand it i not our goal to challenge your .
conclusions - only to clarify them.

Please fee] free to €xpand on or explain in as much detail as you like any of your
answers.

1. How was the jury foreman selected? Did he elect, nominate, or vote for himse]f?
AC s EHLCD ) Sy P
CA THE oo, Cornecepor .
Mo e ecse .. TTOL TE .o,

/-:V?/d(-af-/— a/‘:'/"_//g /éz::/‘f{ﬁ

2. Did you vote Not Guilty on attempted murder?
es

3. Did you conclude that the defendant had the specific intent to murder Nicholas
Hamman? :

N

4. How did you conclude that there was no intent for the attempted murder, but there
was intent for the conspiracy to commit murder? :

~£ Belriecen 7 A7 72 o) LR 2D T A Cnr s e e

AR AARBE 5 Aoy CUl e Dm0 < P Co eSS, o
A7 e, ¢oé 2 ST FAAET A /{_uc A7 u?»é;-c( (Ew 220 4
7 EAS az AR AT 3 A/'_:f#?dli) ASlend ot ¢ FES7E— Berre :;,7";/_5' 7 A Serire e, f’_/>
3. Did the jury seem to discuss and understand that the law requires the same
specific intent to kill for conspiracy as it does for attempted murder?

/‘/I‘j:f: Do Me7T Bés,pe o S e

6. Did you or any of the jurors ever Suggest asking the judge a clarifying question
regarding the intent necessary for the conspiracy charge?

1/65

7. If so, why was such a question never given to the judge?

Cor 2 0D Asg THe JedGe . g Clre ;= ey P /L‘/
e sHe Resaop, BT At "5 00 A i

x ’ ~ CCe s ¢ .
0003y,

8. Did the jury discuss the False Imprisonment charges before debating the kidnap?
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9. Would you have voted guilty for false imprisonment if it did not include the term. 4
“violence™? }/ 25

10. At what point did You conclude that the defendant formed the intent to kidnap
Nicholas Hamman?

K€l 2772, A rmrr2i? ay #5e joBe foF e o=
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11. Did you conclude that when the defendant intended to kidnap Mr. Hamman, he
did so with the goal of getting money from him?

/5

12. Do you have any regrets regarding your decision in this case?
}/‘QS Penisotmeon 7= o5 70 Seve—a___

'13. Is there anything about the Jury instructions that you feel you may not have
understood clearly? )

XO

13.Is it your conclusion after hearing al] the evidence that Shawn Rodriguez wanted
to kill Nicholas Hamman?
Ao e o4 70.0 Fe pense. s Zude, BT
T NE F Do e BELiew @ Frooe cors X T T
CHN /A0S W3e S ~
14. Based on the evidence you have heard in this case, do you fee] that life
imprisonment is a fajr punishment for Shawn Rodriguez? Please Explain
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EXHIBIT COVER PAGE [~

EXHIBIT

Description if this exhibit:Evidence record indiéating existence of exculpatory
items of eviaence,in-the posession of the people;items
which were of tremendous impeachment value and Suppor-
tive of defense theory of the case.Both items disapp

eared and were .unavailable for defense at trial.

Number of pages to this exhibit: 3 pages.-

JURISDICTION: (Check One Only)

[ IMUNICIPAL COURT

kx|]SUPERIOR COURT

[ JAPPELLATE COURT

[_ISTATE SUPREME COURT
[_JUNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
[ ISTATE CIRCUIT COURT

[ JUNITES STATES SUPREME COURT

[ JGRAND JURY




VEHICLES INVOLVED:

VICTIM-1: RED

Victim Vehicle, Recovered: See 180

PROPERTY:

1.

Evidence, Miscellaneous, NOTE "HELP ME, SER:TRAPPED
INSIDE", OAN:076-02-03, collected from front door area
- under water ’
Evidence, Miscellaneous, STANDAR LATENT, SER:TAPE LIFT
FROM CELL, OAN:076-02-03, 1lift from cell window
(exterior)

Evidence, Miscellaneous, TOWEL FROM TABLE, SER:INSIDE
CELL, OAN:076-02-03

Evidence, Miscellaneous, TOWEL FROM, SER:SPRINKLER
INSIDE, OAN:076-02-03, cell ’
Evidence, Misc. music instrument/access., TAPE FROM,
SER:EXTERIOR OF CELLDOOR, OAN:076-02-03

Evidence, Gauge, TIRE GAUGE, SER:LOCATED AT CELL DOCR,
OAN:076-02-03, (exterior)

1992 CHEV BER 2D 3FHS432 ca

QTY

AUBURN POLICE DEPT 3101 DR 307602
CRIME REPORT SUPPLEMENT (30317003/6)
\

CODE SEC: 664/187 PC Attempted murder V-1
SECONDARY : 211 PC  Robbery'

236 PC  False imprisonment w/violence/etce V-1

459 PC  Burglary

10851 vC Auto theft

DATE/TIME REPORTED: Mon.  03/17/03 13:20 hrs.
DATE/TIME OCCURRED: Sun.  03/16/03 09:00 hrs. - Mon. 03/17/03 02:00 hrs.
LOCATION OF OCCURENCE: 200 Epperle Ln BLOCK AREA: 1
VICTIM-1: HAMMAN, NICHOLAS WILLIAM WM39 (05/28/63) 889-1615
ADDRESS: 10550 Werner Rd, Auburn, CA 95603
OCCUPATION: unemployed
INJURY EXTENT: Non specific. DESCR: Transported to SAFH
ASSIST OFFICE-7: JANE XEPOLEAS - PLACER COUNTY SHERIFFS DEPT
ASSIST OFFICE-8: OFFICER JOHEN ROYE - AUBURN POLICE DEPARTMENT
ASSIST OFFICE-9: OFFICER GARY HOPPING - AUBURN POLICE DEPARTMENT
REPORT OFFCR-1: DETECTIVE DALE HUTCHINS - AUBURN POLICE DEPARTMENT
SUSPECT-1: HUGHES, ERIN RACHEL WF28 (07/23/74) 889-9015
ADDRESS : 3420 Ridge Ln, Auburn, CA 95603 ‘
‘DL NO./STATE: B6905914/Ca _ A# NO.: - 0
EMPLOYER : PRIDE INDUSTRIES BUS. PHONE:' 888-0331
BUS. ADDRESS: 12524 Earhart Ave, Auburn, CA 95603
RACE: White SEX: F HT: 63 WT: 140 HAIR: BRO EYES: HAZ

VALUE
0.00

(¥7]



AUBURN POLICE DEPT 3101
CRIME REPORT SUPPLEMENT (30317003/6)

PROPERTY:

7.

8.
9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

ls.

17.

1s8.

1s.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

Evidence, Miscellaneous, SPRINKLER FROM, SER:INSIDE
CELL, OAN:076-02-03

Evidence, WINDOW, FROM CELL WALL, OAN:076-02-03
Evidence, Miscellaneous, VENT FRM ABOVE, SER:CELL DOOR
STUFFED W/, OAN:076-02-03, tissue

Evidence, Miscellaneous, PIPE COLLECTED, SER:IN
KITCHEN, OAN:076-02-03

Evidence, Miscellaneous, VIDEO OF CRIME, SER:SCENE,
OAN:076-02-03

Evidence, Miscellaneous, CHECK CARD,
SER:4789—4784-4170—2013, 0AN:076—02-03, "WASHINGTON
MUTUAL" recovered from his center console., (V-1)
Evidence, Miscellaneous, CHP CITATION, SER:#18304RL
ISSUED TO, OAN:076-02-03, issued to suspect Rodriguez
while driving HAMMAN's vehicle, on 03-15-03 at 1859
hours

Evidence, Hacksaw, Crescent, FOUND ON L-REAR,

SER : FLOORBOARD, OAN:076-02-03, of Hamman's vehicle
Evidence, Miscellaneous, WOOD BILLY-CLUB, SER:FOUND ON
R/FRONT, OAN:076-02-03, floor area of Hamman's vehicle
Evidence, Jacket, BLK, SER: "LETTERMAN STYLE",
OAN:076-02-03, found on r/front seat of Hamman's
vehicle with latex gloves, in the pocket

Evidence, Glove, BLK, FOUND ON REAR, SER:SEAT OF
HAMMAN'S VEH, OAN:076-02-03, consistent with glove
found at crime scene

Evidence, Miscellaneous, BLUMBING FIXTURE, SER:FOUND IN
REAR SEAT, OAN:076-02-03, area of Hamman's vehicle
Evidence, Miscellaneous, PLASTIC BAG W/, SER:LATEX
GLOVES, OAN:076-02-03, found in rear seat area of
Hamman's vehicle

Evidence, Knife, IN BRO LEATHER, SER:CASE FOUND IN
REAR, OAN:076-02-03, seat area of Hamman's vehicle
Evidence, Telephone (aAll Kinds), Nokia, FOUND IN
RT/FRNT, SER:0ASSENGER AREA OF, 0AN:076-02-03, Hamman's
vehicle possibly belongs to Rugg

Evidence, Miscellaneous, GRY, GARDEN HOSE,
SER:CONNECTED TO, OAN:076-02-03, grn garden hose found
in the trunk of Hamman's vehicle

Evidence, Letter, WRITTEN BY, SER:RODRIGUEZ TO FEMALE,
OAN:076-02-03, friend Erin Hughes during interview with
police detectives

Evidence, Miscellaneous, SER:VIDEO SURVEILLANCE,
OAN:076-02-03, from 49er Shell station 390 Grass Valley
Hwy

Evidence, Miscellaneous, WITHDRAWAL, SER:RECEIPT FOUND
ON, OAN:076-02-03, Rodiguez

QTY

DR 307602
Page 2

VALUE

e



AUBURN POLICE DEPT 3101 DR 307602

CRIME REPORT SUPPLEMENT (30317003/6) Page 3
\
PROPERTY : QTY VALUE
26. Evidence, Miscellaneous, ACCOUNT BALANCE, SER:INQUIRY 1 0.00
FOUND ON, OAN:076-02-03, Rodriguez
27. Evidence, Miscellaneous, ALBERTSON'S, SER:RECEIPT FOUND 1 0.00
ON, 0AN:076-02-03, Rodriguez
28. Evidence, Miscellaneous, TRANSACTION, SER:RECEIPT, 1 0.00
OAN:076-02-03, found on Rugg
29. Evidence, Miscellaneous, TRANSACTION, SER:RECEIPT FOUND 1 0.00
ON, OAN:076-02-03, Rugg
30. Evidence, Miscellaneous, NOTE LEFT BY, SER:RUGG AT THE 1 0.00
SHELL, OAN:076-02-03, station
31, Evidence, Wrench, ALLEN WRENCH, SER:FOUND ON RUGG, 1 0.00
OAN:076-02-03 '
*** Evidence: 0.00

DETAILS OF INVESTIGATION:

Refer to Property Record.

ADULT BOOKED/CLEARED

REPORTED: 03/17/03 by DETECTIVE DALE HUTCHINS INCIDENT: 30317003
RECORDED: 03/20/03 by JUDY JOHNSON SUPPLEMENT: 6
REVIEWED: by

Follow up: Yes/ / No/ / Copies to:Pat/ / Det/ / DA/ / Prob/ / Capt/ / Other




EXHIBIT COVER PAGE [ -

EXHIBIT

Description if this exhibit: Documentary evidence of all physical injuries
sustained by the vigtim in the case at bar,as

recorded pusuant to pre-trial investigation.

Number of pages to this exhibit: s pages.-

JURISDICTION: (Check One Only)

[ IMUNICIPAL COURT

[xJSUPERIOR COURT

| JAPPELLATE COURT

[ |[STATE SUPREME COURT

[ JUNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
[ |[STATE CIRCUIT COURT

| JUNITES STATES SUPREME COURT
[ [GRAND JURY




DR # 76-02-03

SUPPLEMENT
664/187 P.C./CA

3-24-03 AT 1300 HOURS

V- HAMMAN, NICHOLAS W. 5-28-63
CA-RUGG, ANNAM. 10-2-82
CA- RODRIGUEZ, SHAWN M. 8-30-83

On 3-20-03 at approx. 1520 hours, I went out to Sutter Auburn Faith Hospital to retrieve
Hamman’s medical records for when he was treated on 3-17-03, A copy of those medi
records are attached to this supplement.

D-boewg Q
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CR3300KI SUTTER AUBURN FAITH HOSPITAL 3/20/03 15:24:29

22.20 Clinical Repository Results SACTODC1
Patient: 00020885331 HAMMAN, NICHOLAS Age: 39 Years Sex: M
Location: Medical Record#:

P 03/17/2003 Expected oLy
a 03:26 Units Range 1t L

._._—._.————___...._________.__._......._.__.—____—_—-.-—..-._____.....__._.__.—..___.___.-__.__———-——-._...___
_._——.————.—_..—._——_.__-_..______..__—__-_—-_._——_.—_._....._____—.__________———————————_-~-=-—

-HEST 1 VIEW MOBILE

’ATIENT: HAMMAN,NICHOLAS MRN: 0238825

-

sXAM: Chest 1 View Mobile 03/17/2003
-LINICAL INDICATION: Chest pain.
‘OMPARISON: No previous studies for comparison.

'INDINGS: AP portable chest, 03-17-03, at 0340 hours.
[rossly clear except for what appears to be a l-cm-diameter

ardiac silhouette is not enlarged. Skeletal Structures are
nremarkable.

MF SSSION:

- " DSSIBLE OLD GRANULOMATOUS DISEASE BUT NO CLEAR-CUT SIGN OF

Cu.zx CARDIOPULMONARY DISEASE. WE ARE ATTEMPTING TO OBTAIN OLD
TUDIES FOR COMPARISON PURPOSES.

sport Dictated By:
JFER, GLENN A M.D. (AF)

adiological Associates of Sacramento
n

JATE: 03/17/2003

' N RC: N

)Y to Physician(s) : HARRIS, ANDREA L

24075

He 0238825 ACCT#: 20885331 ROOM: AF Emergency
TIENT: HAMMAN, NICHOLAS AGE/SEX: 39Y M

D™™#:  AFR0304225

DrING PHYSICIAN: HARRIS, ANDREA L
TENDING PHYSICIAN: HARRIS, ANDREA I,
TENDING PHYSICIAN: HARRIS, ANDREA L

**HEFHXXEND OF LISTING * * % % #

MAR242033 Oz/ 1 gzcb
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EMERGENCY ROOM NOTE

DATE OF SERVICE: 3/17/03
TIME SEEN: 2:50 a.m.
CHIEF COMPLAINT: "Cold".

HISTORY OF PRESENT ILLNESS: This is a 39 year-old male, who
states that he was "kidnapped" by some people that he apparently
knows and then locked in a Juvenile Hall cell for at least two or
three days. Apparently, somehow, he was coaxed into going into
this old Juvenile Hall facility where he was then put into a

He complains of feeling cold and states that he has been in cold
water for the last couple of days. He has at least been standing
in six inches of water with cowboy boots on and he states at one
point, the water was up to his shoulders last night. The patient
complains of being cold. He also states he has abdominal pain,
nausea, cough, some chest pain and some difficulty breathing. He
complains of pain in his feet. '

The patient states that the pain in his chest and his heart feels

like "angina". He states he takes nitroglycerin pills for this.
He states the pains started about twenty minutes ago.

PAST MEDICAL HISTORY: Psychiatric disease, ventricular septal
defect, asthma and possible coronary artery disease as well as

depression and bipolar.

PAST SURGICAL HISTORY: He had a gunshot wound to his heart in
1981. He states that he had an injury near his aortic valve and
it is unclear exactly the detail of the cardiac injury.

MEDICATIONS: Nitroglycerin, Depakote, Zyprexa, Cogentin and
Paxil.

ALLERGIES: PENICILLIN AND THORAZINE.

SOCIAL HISTORY: The patient smokes and drinks. He denies drugs.
He lives in a halfway house.

REVIEW OF SYSTEMS: GENERAL: The patient is shivering and he
states he is cold. ENT: He has a sore throat. RESPIRATORY AND
CARDIOVASCULAR: He states he is coughing and coughed up some
blood in the ambulance. He also has chest pPain and shortness of
breath which started on the way to the ER. ABDOMEN: The patient
states he vomited on the way to the ER. He denijes abdominal pain
or diarrhea. He has not eaten since he was "kidnapped" by these

—

N
=SUTTER AUBURN FAITH HOSPITAL PATIENT NAME: HAMMAN, NICHOLAS L
- . 1815 Education Street Aubum, CA 95602 MR#: 23-88-25
Page 1 of 3 DATE: 03/17/2003 ANDREA HARRIS, M.D.

MAR 24 2003 Ol/ ("
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people. GU: He denies dysuria or hematuria. EXTREMITIES: He
states his feet hurt. NEUROLOGIC: No headache, no syncope.

PHYSICAL EXAMINATION: GENERAL: Well-developed, well-nourished
male who is anxious and shivering. VITAL SIGNS: His temperature
was 94.4 orally, but the rectal temperature was 97 on two
occasions. Pulse was 120, respiratory rate 30, blood pressure
118/76. HEENT: The head is normocephalic, no trauma. The
pupils equal, round and reactive to light. Extraocular muscles
are intact. There is no icterus and no injected. TMs are not
visualized. Nose without discharge. Oral mucosa pink. Mucous
membranes are slightly dry. The pharynx is clear. NECK:
Nontender. CHEST: Clear, CARDIOVASCULAR: Shows tachycardia
with regular rhythm. Pulses are +2 radially, femorally and
dorsalis pedis bilaterally. ABDOMEN: Shows mild diffuse
tenderness. It is soft. Bowel sounds are Present. It is
nondistended. There is no hepatosplencmegaly. No rebound or
guarding. There is a midline surgical scar. EXTREMITIES: Shows
that the patient's feet and hands are whitish and look as though
they have been soaking in water for a long period of time. The
skin is macerated. On the feet especially are noted to be some
callus like lesions which may be chronic. The feet and the hand
are very cold to touch, but the rest of the skin is okay. The
patient does have good sensation in both the hands and the feet.
Pulses are intact in the feet bilaterally. There is good
darsalis pedis pulses and capillary refill is intact. .
NEUROLOGIC: Examination is unremarkable. The patient is awake,.
alert and somewhat anxious, but has no focal deficits. He is not
lethargic. The cranial nérves are intact. He has full strength
and sensation in the upper and lower extremities.

the water. The patient complains of being cold. He also is i
somewhat anxious and tachycardic, but he is given IV fluids and
this seems to improve. His Accu-Chek in the field was 86 with a
good blood sugar control despite the fact that the patient had
not eaten for a couple of days. He was able to eat here after
being given some Phenergan. He initially had some dry heaves and
Some coughing. He then ate well without difficulty. Heart rate
was still mildly elevated, but did come down to about 110. The
patient was talking to the police officers through most of his ER
course and this could have contributed to his tachycardia.

The patient had laboratories which showed a white count of 18.5,
hemoglobin was 16.2, 81% neutrophils. The white count is
slightly elevated although the etiology is unclear. Chem-7
showed mild dehydration with a@ BUN of 31 and creatinine of 1.3
and this was treated with over two liters of normal saline and

TN
SUTTER AUBURN FAITH HOSPITAL PATIENT NAME: HAMMAN, NICHOLAS "))
11815 Education Street Aubum, CA 95602 MR#: 23.88-25 az
Page 2 of 3 ANDREA HARRIS, M.D.

fEAR 24 2003 O
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EMERGENCY ROOM NOTE

then 175 cc an hour of saline. The CO2 was 18 consistent with
dehydration as well. EKG showed a heart rate of 130 but there is
a lot of artifact in the baseline. I believe it represents sinus
tachycardia. The monitor also shows sinus tachycardia and some
intermittent artifact. The patient gives a history of cardiac
disease. He states that he had an injury to his heart in the
1980's and since that time, has taken nitroglycerin and been told
that he has coronary artery disease and angina. However, this is
unclear and there is no documentation of this in the old chart.
Portable chest X-ray did not show any evidence of CHF,
infiltrate, pneumothorax Or pneumonia.

Basically, the patient is observed here in the emergency room for
about two and a-half hours, after which time, his tachycardia
improves. His tremulousness and anxiety improve and the white
discoloration and coldness of his hands and feet is much
improved. On reexamination, the patient is calm and sitting with
his board and care person, who helps to take care of him and his
hands and feet are now warm. He complains of some numbness in
them, but states that the sensation is coming back. The initial
discoloration has resolved and they basically appear pretty much
normal .

At this time, I do not think that the patient has sustained any‘j;;
significant hypothermia or cold injury and there is some mild
dehydration which has been treated. He is able to eat. There is
no evidence of other significant abnormality. No evidence of
significant trauma. Other than a small abrasion which was noted
on the patient's right inner .thigh, which I did not earlier
mention.- The patient States ‘that he may have been kicked in the
groin a couple of times, but”there is na evidence of any other
trauma.

DISPOSITION: The patient is discharged back to his halfway house
and board and care facility with his board and care person. He
is told to followup with Dr. Klistoff at the clinic in the next _
couple of days for a recheck to see if he has any injury to his
hands and feet from this cold exposure. He is told to return if
worse and rest.

&
FINAL IMPRESSION: (1) Mild "trench footn 3éa<gold injury to the

hands and feet which has now impiqved. (2) 4 mMiid dehydration.
(3) Psychiatric disease. (4) History of possible cardiac

disease.

ANDREA HARRIS, M.D.
AH/TL:332 /632589 D:03/17/2003 T:03/17/2003

&UTI’ER AUBURN FAITH HOSPITAL PATIENT NAME: HAMMAN, NICHOLAS ) )
© 11815 Education Street Aubum, CA 95602 MR#: 23-88-25 @‘7
Page 3 of 3 ANDREA HARRIS, M.D.
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EXHIBIT COVER PAGE [.

EXHIBIT

DeSCl'iptiOH if this exhibitpocumentary evidence of financial injuries sustained
by the victim in the.case at bar,as recorded pursuant

pre-trial investigation.

Number of pages to this exhibit: __ 2 pages.-

JURISDICTION: (Check One Only)

[ ][MUNICIPAL COURT

[ JSUPERIOR COURT

[ JAPPELLATE COURT

| ]STATE SUPREME COURT

[ JUNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
| |[STATE CIRCUIT COURT

| JUNITES STATES SUPREME COURT
| |GRAND JURY




DR # 076-02-03

SUPPLEMENT
664/187 P.C./ CA
5-14-03 AT 0940 HOURS

V- HAMMAN, NICHOLAS W. 5-28-63
CA-RUGG, ANNA 10-02-82
CA- RODRIGUEZ, SHAWN M. 8-30-83
C- GARCIA, KAREN

ASSISTANT BRANCH MANAGER WASHINGTON MUTUAL BANK
2520 GRASS VALLEY HIGHWAY, AUBURN, CA 95603 823-6157

On 5-13-03 at approx. 1145 hours, I met with Hamman at the Placer County Jail to ask
him about his bank records. I had previously asked Hamman to get me those records, but

I went to the Washington Mutual Bank located on Grass Valley Highway and spoke to
Garcia. I gave her the letter that was signed by Hamman so I could get a copy of his bank

statement. Garcia printed me out a copy of his statement starting with the date of 3-14-03.
The p

rintout showed the two $41.5 0 withdrawals from 2220 Sunset Blvd in Rocklin, and

normally takes two days to post on an account. A copy of those transactions is attached to
this supplement.

Forward this supplement to the D.A’s office.
s /?~(f;'<ﬂf— ' O/I—(

.COE#38 APPROVED

MAY 152003

)



. Washington Mutual Bank, e

De# Ti-02-03
ACCOUNT TRANSACTION HISTORY

ACCOUNT # ACCOUNT NAME PRODUCT
048600000779912 HAMMAN NICHOLAS FREE CHECKING
! CURRENT BALANCE: -$121.95
DATE WITHDRAWALS DEPOSITS CHECK #  DESCRIPTION -
05/07/2003 -$21.00 OVERDRAFT CHARGE
05/07/2003 $21.00 FROM 3/20/03
05/06/2003 -$450.00 1012 .
05/06/2003 -$20.00 CUSTOMER WITHDRAWAL 5
05/05/2003 -$1.95 VISA-Bargain Network 800-333-1915 CA
05/02/2003 -$39.00 CUSTOMER WITHDRAWAL
05/01/2003 $757.00 US TREASURY 310 SUPP SEC
05/01/2003 -$100.00 CUSTOMER WITHDRAWAL
04/22/2003 -$21.00 NON SUFFICIENT FUNDS CHARGE
04/17/2003 -$5.00 PLUS PACKAGE MEMBERSHIP
04/09/2003 - -$21.00 OVERDRAFT CHARGE
04/09/2003 -$21.00 NON SUFFICIENT FUNDS CHARGE
04/08/2003 -$400.00 1005
04/03/2003 -$56.32 CUSTOMER WITHDRAWAL
04/02/2003 -$200.00 CUSTOMER WITHDRAWAL
04/01/2003 $757.00 US TREASURY 310 SUPP SEC
04/01/2003 -$169.88 CUSTOMER WITHDRAWAL
03/31/2003 $21.00 REFUND OD CHARGE - BANK ERROR
03/27/2003 $29.65 VCC CLAIM HONORED
/03/24/2003 $42.00 REFUND OF OVERDRAFT FEE
J3/24/2003 $4.00 FOREIGN ATM FEES
03/24/2003 $83.00 ATM/POS PROVISIONAL CREDIT
03/20/2003 -$21.00 OVERDRAFT CHARGE
03/19/2003 -$5.00 *PLUS PACKAGE MEMBERSHIP
03/19/2003 -$1.00 *ATM BALANCE INQUIRY FEE - DOMESTIC
03/19/2003 -$8.00 *ATM WITHDRAWAL FEE - DOMESTIC
03/19/2003 -$29.65 VISA-SHELL OIL 2040402AUBURN CA
03/18/2003 -$21.00 *OVERDRAFT CHARGE
03/18/2003 -$21.00 *OVERDRAFT CHARGE
03/17/2003 -$21.00 *OVERDRAFT CHARGE
03/17/2003 -$41,50 2220 SUNSET BLVD  ROCKLIN 0316 P
03/17/2003 -$41.50 2220 SUNSET BLVD  ROCKLIN 0316 P
03/14/2003 -$100.00 100
=
TEAA) 20%
3124m (08/02) Page 1 of 1

05/13/2003 15:14:30
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EXHIBIT

Description if this exhibit: order Setting Evidentiary Hearing,By Judge Mark
' S. Curry.

Number of pages to this exhibit: 4 pages.-

JURISDICTION: (Check One Only)

[ IMUNICIPAL COURT

[ ISUPERIOR COURT .

[xJAPPELLATE COURT

[_ISTATE SUPREME COURT

[ JUNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
[ ISTATE CIRCUIT COURT

[ JUNITES STATES SUPREME COURT

[ JGRAND JURY
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Name: Shawn Rodriquez #V16387

| m———

k.gss: PO Box 290066

Represa, Ca. 95671 F E L E )

Superior Court ol Catiforniz
County of Ptacer

JUL 24 2015

CDC or ID Number: _V16387 ' Jake Chatiers

Executive Officer & Clerk
By: M. Anderson, Deputy

Superior Court of California

Cbunty of Placer
(Court)

T T PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

WK -00014n0

(To be supplied by the Clerk of the Court)

Jeff MacComber ,Warden,CSP-SAC
Respondent 2%

INSTRUCTIONS - READ CAREFULLY

Superior Court, you should file it in the county that made the order.

« Ifyou are challenging the conditions of your confinement and are filing this petition in the Superior Court,
you should file it in the county in which you are confined.

e Read the entire form before answering any questions.

» This petition must be clearly handwritten in ink or typed. You should exercise care to make sure all answers are true and
correct. Because the petition includes a verification, the making of a statement that you know is false may result in a conviction
for perjury.

« Answer all applicable questions in the proper spaces. If you need additional space, add an extra page and indicate that your

- n

answer is "coniinued on addilicnai page.
« If you are filing this petition in the superior court, you only need to file the original unless local rules require additional copies.
Many courts require more copies.

« If you are filing this petition in the Court of Appeal and you are an attorney, file the original and 4 copies of the petition and, if
separately bound, 1 set of any supporting documents (unless the court orders otherwise by local rule or in a specific case). If you
are filing this petition in the Court of Appeal and you are not represented by an attorney, file the original and one set of any
supporting documents.

o If you are filing this petition in the California Supreme Court, file the original and 10 copies of the petition and, if separately bound,
an original and 2 copies of any supporting documents.

« Notify the Clerk of the Court in writing if you change your address after filing your petition.

i Approved by the Judicial Council of California for use under rule 8.380 of the California Rules of Court (as amended
. effective January 1, 2007). Subsequent amendments to rule 8.380 may change the number of copies to be furnished to the
Supreme Court and Court of Appeal.

Page 1 of 6
Form Approved for Optional Use PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CcO RPUS Penal Code, § 1473 el seq.;
Judicial Council of California ,é@ MartinDean’s Cal. Rules of Court, rule 8.380
MC-275 [Rev. January 1, 2010] o9 BSEH“M H]RMS... www.courtinfo.ca.gov



SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF PLACER

DATE: 7/29/15 TIME: DEPT:
HON.  Garen Horst , Judge Sandy Vidal , Deputy Clerk
People of the State of California, FILE

“RIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA
SUPE COUNTY OF PLACER

VS.

Shawn Michael Rodriguez, JAKE CHATTERS

EXECUTIVE OFFIGER & GLERK
Defendant. (/._35)' g y/nzu% J

Order of Disqualification Pursuant to Code of | CASE NO. 62-34689
Civil Procedure §170.1

The Honorable Garen Horst hereby disqualifies himself/herself from hearing any further
matters of contested law or fact in the above entitled matter pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure

§170.1, subsection subsection (a)(6)A(i). Judge Horst will hear no further matters involving the

parties as stated above.

DATED: 7/29/15 m ——

< 3

“ The Hondlrable Garggl Horst
Judge of the Placer Superior Court




SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF PLACER

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE OF MAILING (C.C.P. § 1013a(4))

Case no.: 62-34689
Case name: People of the State of California vs. Shawn Michael Rodriguez

|, the undersigned, certify that | am the clerk of the Superior Court of California, County of
Placer, and | am not a party to this action.

I mailed copies of the document(s) indicated below:
CCP 170.1 Judge Horst

True copies of the document(s) were mailed following standard court practices in a sealed
envelope with postage fully prepaid, addressed as follows:

Shawn Rodriguez # V16387 o Placer County Dnstrlct Attorney
P.0. Box 290066 S Interoffice
Represa, CA. 95671

Placer County Public Defender

| am readily familiar with the court’s business practices for collecting and processing
correspondence for mailing; pursuant to those practices, these document(s) are delivered to
the US Postal Service [JuPs []Fedex - [X] Interoffice mail

[] Other: ‘ '

on 7/29/15, in Placer County, California
(date)

Dated: 7/29/15
Jake Chatters

Clerk of the Placer County Superior Court

« | O W@Q

ch/Sandy Vidal, Deputy Clerk

Form Adopted for Mandatory Use WWwW, s oV

Superior Court of California, County of Placer
Form No. PL-CW0002
Effective 12-04-2013



SUPERIOUR COURT OF CALIFORNIA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF PLACER

CLERK’S CERTIFICATE OF MAILING (C.C.P. §1013a(4))

Case number: WHC-1400
Case name: In Re: Shawn Rodriguez

I, the undersigned, certify that I am the clerk of the Superior Court of California, County of Placer, and I
am not a party to this case.

I mailed copies of the document(s) indicated below:

Court Order Finding Proma Facie for Relif, In Part, and Issuance of Order to Show Cause; Finding

of No Prima Facie Case for Relief Re: Other Contentions.
True copies of the documents were mailed following standard court practices in a sealed envelope with

postage fully prepaid, addressed as follows:

Placer County District Attorney
10810 Justice Center Drive, Suite 240
Roseville, CA 95661

Office of the Attorney General
Writ Department

1300 I Street, Suite 1101

PO Box 944255

Sacramento, CA 94244-2560

Shawn Rodriguez #V16387
California State Prison-Sacramento
P.O. Box 290066

Represa, CA 95671

Jeff Macomber, Warden
P.O. Box 290002
Represa, CA 95671

Placer County Public Defender
11760 Atwood Rd
Auburn, CA 95603

I am readily familiar with the court’s business practices for collecting and processing correspondence for
mailing; pursuant to those practices, the documents are delivered to

Xthe US Postal Service

[Jups

[JFedEx

[Jinteroffice mail

[JOther (via email)

On 08/05/15, Placer County, California

Dated: 08/05/15
, Deputy Clerk

Form Adopted for Mandatory Use www.placer.courts.ca.gov

Superior Court of California, County of Placer
PC-CW002 [Effective 4-23-15]
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DEPARTMENT 3
IN RE PETITION FOR WRIT OF Case No.: WHC 1400
HABEAS CORPUS, 62- 34689
COURT ORDER FINDING PRIMA
SHAWN RODRIGUEZ, FACIE FOR RELIEF, IN PART, AND
ISSUANCE OF ORDER TO SHOW
#V16387 CAUSE; FINDING OF NO PRIMA
Petitioner. FACIE CASE FOR RELIEF RE: OTHER
CONTENTIONS.

Procedural History

The petitioner is serving a life sentence for his 2003 conviction for
conspiracy to commit murder, kidnapping for extortion, Vehicle Code 10851,
and Penal Code 530.5. The conviction was affirmed in the court of appeal on
January 4, 2005. [People v. Rodriguez 3rd DCA #C045882 unpub.] On July,
24, 2015, the petitioner caused to be filed in the Superior Court a petition
for writ of habeas corpus. In a lengthy and somewhat unclear petition, the
petitioner raises many issues. As discussed below, the Court finds no prima
facie case for relief has been demonstrated for most of his claims. However,
regarding the claim of possible new evidence, specifically, the alleged
recantation of a material witness, the Court finds a prima facie case for relief
has been set forth and the Court will issue an Order to Show Cause

concerning that issue only.

uty
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Alleged Recantation of Victim/Witness

In his declaration, the petitioner has attached, as an exhibit, a copy of
a two handwritten letters purportedly written by the Hamman, the alleged
victim of the defendant’s crime. It is alleged Hamman testified at the
petitioner’s trial in 2003. Apparently, these letters were mailed to the
Attorney General’s Office on or about April 2015. On their face, the letters
appear to indicate that Hamman is stating that he “perjured” himself at the
defendant’s trial. However, the letters do not specify the precise nature of
the perjury. The petitioner has also attached declarations from prison
inmates who claim to have overheard Hamman (who is now apparently also
an inmate) make statements concerning false testimony at the petitioner’s
trial.

A court receiving a petition for writ of habeas corpus evaluates it by
asking whether, assuming the petition's factual allegations are true, the
petitioner would be entitled to relief. (In re Clark (1997) 5 Cal.4th 750 at p.
769, fn. 9.) In this case, although the precise nature of the alleged
perjurious testimony or its materiality is not set forth with clarity, the Court
nonetheless finds the petitioner has set forth sufficient facts to support a
prima facie case for relief. Accordingly, the Court issues an Order to Show

Case regarding this issue.

Other Claims - No Prima Facie Showing
In his petition, the petitioner makes other various unsupported and/or
unclear allegations concerning alleged errors from his trial in 2003. For
example, the use of his “confession,” the prosecutions failure to disclose or
preserve evidence, and the denial of his right to present a defense.

Additionally, he raises the same issues that were raised and rejected by the
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appellate court in his appeal, specifically, instructional error or inconsistent
verdicts.

For these claims, the Court finds the petitioner has failed to set forth a
prima facie case for relief. These issues could have been, or were, raised in
the appellate court. Habeas corpus cannot serve as a substitute for an
appeal, and, in the absence of special circumstances constituting an excuse
for failure to employ that remedy, the writ will not lie where the claimed
errors could have been, but were not, raised upon a timely appeal from a
judgment. Further, alleged errors addressed by the appellate court may not
be renewed again by writ. (In re Harris (1993) 5 Cal.4th 813, 828 - 829.)
In addition, the Court finds the raising of these issues now untimely given
that the trial occurred in 2003, and he has offered no explanation for the

untimeliness.

Order
Finding a prima facie case for relief concerning the existence of
possible new evidence (witness recantation), the Court issues an Order to
Show Cause as to this contention only and thereby directs the respondent
(Attorney General or District Attorney) to file a Return within 30 days from
receipt of this order (CA Rule of Ct. 4.551), or later, if an extension is
requested. Further, the Court will appoint the public defender to represent

the petitioner on this matter.

Dated/thfs 3™ Day of August, 2015.

—
p&/,//«

MARK S. CURRY
JUPGE OF THE SUPERIOR COURT
COUNTY OF PLACER




SUPERIOUR COURT OF CALIFORNIA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF PLACER

CLERK’S CERTIFICATE OF MAILING (C.C.P. §1013a(4))

Case number: WHC-1400
Case name: In Re: Shawn Rodriguez

I, the undersigned, certify that I am the clerk of the Superior Court of California, County of Placer, and I
am not a party to this case.

I mailed copies of the document(s) indicated below:

Court Order Finding Proma Facie for Relif, In Part, and Issuance of Order to Show Cause; Finding
of No Prima Facie Case for Relief Re: Other Contentions.

True copies of the documents were mailed following standard court practices in a sealed envelope with
postage fully prepaid, addressed as follows:

Placer County District Attorney
10810 Justice Center Drive, Suite 240
Roseville, CA 95661

Office of the Attorney General
Writ Department

1300 I Street, Suite 1101

PO Box 944255

Sacramento, CA 94244-2560

Shawn Rodriguez #V16387
California State Prison-Sacramento
P.O. Box 290066

Represa, CA 95671

Jeff Macomber, Warden
P.0. Box 290002
Represa, CA 95671

Placer County Public Defender
11760 Atwood Rd
Auburn, CA 95603

I am readily familiar with the court’s business practices for collecting and processing correspondence for
mailing; pursuant to those practices, the documents are delivered to

Xthe US Postal Service

[Jups

[JFedEx

[Jinteroffice mail

[JOther (via email)

On 08/05/15, Placer County, California

Dated: 08/05/15___ jteys
“ Placer County Superior Court

hon , Deputy Clerk

Form Adopted for Mandatory Use www.placer.courts.ca.gov

Superior Court of California, County of Placer
PC-CWO002 [Effective 4-23-15]



KAMALA D. HARRIS + State of California
Attorney General 3y DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

1300 I STREET, SUITE 125
P.0. BOX 944255
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 94244-2550
Public: (916) 445-9555
Telephone: (916) 324-5246
Facsimile: (916) 324-2960
E-Mail: Michael.Farrell@doj.ca.gov
August 10, 2015
—_—
The Honorable R. Scott Owens
Placer County District Attorney
10810 Justice Center Drive, Suite 240
Roseville, California 95678
RE: Inre Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus, Shawn Rodriguez V16387
Placer County Supesior Court No. WHC 1400 62-34689
Dear Mr. Owens: ,
i Our Office is in recelpt of the Order to Show Cause in the above-referenced matter.

Since this pertains to action. Ain the superior court, we are deferring to your Office for handling. If
the assigned deputy has any questions, he or she may contact Supervising Deputy Attorney
General Eric Chnstoffersen at (916) 322-0792 or Deputy Attorney General David Eldridge at
(916) 324-6291. :

Sincerely,

7

YICHAEL B FARRELL

Senior Assistant Attorney General

For KAMALA D. HARRIS
Attorney General

MPF:drb

csh Hon. Mark S. Curry
Shawn Rodriguez
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Shawn Rodrigquez#V16387
CSP-SAC-B5-217

PO Box 290066 3-(5
Represa,Ca.95671 %%_-Z,
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Superior Court of the State of California
In and for the County of Placer

Department 3 Hon.Mark S. Curry,Judge
In Re Rodriguez | Case # WHO1400
# v1e3s7 ) (62-34689)

Notice of Motions and Motions for
Discovery per PC§§1054-1054.10;
for Bail or Release on O.R.
pending decision;Motion to pro-
vide Trial transcripts;Memo-—
randum of points and Authorit-
ies in supportand Exibits.

To the Placer County District Attorney,and the Clerk of the Above Captioned
Court:

Please take notice that,as soon as the matter may be heard in Department 3,
Petitioner Shawn Rodriguez will move the Court for orders as set forth herein.

The Motions,and the arounds are set forth below. Exibits attached.

Discovery

The Petitioner has ,once informally,then formally,in his Petition,request-
ed Discovery of transcripts of the Interveiw conducted with Perjurous Victim
Hamman,on April 24,2015,by a representative of the Placer County District Att-
orney's Office.

To date,there has been no response whatsoever.

California has reciprocal Disovery Laws,described in the PC Sections descr-
ibed above,and Petitioner has provided,in his petition,Discovery of relevant
facts,to opposing counsel.Opposing Counsel seems to be "Sandbagging"the Peti-
tioner by holding on to potentially exculpatory evidence for purposes of Brady
V.Maryland,probably intending an ambush with an unknown and, for petitioner,un-
knowable, fact or string of facts at a later date,in order to prejudice petitioner
in the instant case,as was done with transcripts of the Erin Hughes interview at
trial in 2003.

Additionally,Petitioner seeks any other material in possession of the Plac-
er County District Attorney's Office or its related Law Enforcement departments,
Which may be reasonably linked to the facts or outcome of the case at bar.

Further,Petitioner seeks to develop,for further review,the Facts Allegged
in both Grounds one and two ofthe petition,by reveiw of any material discoverable

persuant to Pitchess V. Superior Court,11 C3d 531.
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This request is proper persuant to,Hurd V. Superior Court,(2006)50 C4th 890.

Specifically,Petitioner seeks an order for provision of any Pitchess Mater-—

ial involving the Following Participants in the 2003 Pre-trial and Trial of
Petitioner:Detective Daniel Coe,Currently or formerly of the Auburn Police
Department;
Detective Dale Hutchins,Currently or Formerly of the Auburn Police
Department;
officer Gary Hopping,Currently or Formerly of the Auburn Police
Department;
Sergeant Scott Burns,Currently or Formerly of the Auburn Police De-
partment;
Jane Xepoleas,Currently or Formerly of the Placer County Sheriffs
Office;
Assistant District Attorney William Marchi,Currently of the Placer

County District Attorney's office.

Provision of trial Transcripts

The Petitioner Has requested the Court order provision of transcripts of
prior related proceedings,to replace those lost over the last decade by the Mis-
handling of his personal Property by Correctional Staff.

Specifically,Petitioner has been deprived of Pages 42l-end,of the Reporter's
Transcript,and fairly litigate the case at bar without reference to the re-
porter's transcript,in that a large portion of the testimony of Victim Nicholas

Hamman,which is at the heart of the issue cited in the 0SC;is contained in those

missing Pages.

This request,in the request for relief at the end of the Habeas Petition,
seems to have been overlooked.
As such,Petitioner Now renews this requestin the instant motion,asserting

that a Due Process interest arises out of the requirement that a petitioner will

be made to prosecute this action without fair ability to reveiw and cite the

transcript of proceedings in question.

(while Petitioner recognizes that the "Legal Corporation"of Richard A.

Ciummo has been appointed as counsel,acting as Public Defender,Its very troubling

that the named Party has taken no steps toward making contact with the Petitioner,

and those Offices seem to have their telephone blocked against calls from him.In

Addition,Due to the primary function of the P.D. being a paralegal and trial one,

and due to what seems to be relative inexperience in habeas proceedings,this

appointed representation rings somewhat hollow to petitioner,who has already twice

2
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been ineffeétively assisted by counsel relative to his current Multiple Life term

conviction.As such,A motion persuant to People V.Marsden,2 C3d 118 is being con-

sidered,in which case,petitioner may be without representation and will have to
prosecute the instant petition Pro Se.Then,there are Possible Appellate remedies
in the future that must be prepared for in case.Hence,a real need for the requ-
ested transcript excerpts.)

Petitioner Makes this request persuant to GC§69952(a)(1l);People V. Smith,
34 C2d 449;ca. rules of court§8,320(a) and§§(c),as well as Griffin V.illinois,
351 Us 12.

Bail

Petitioner Moves this court to consider Bail or release of the Petitioner
on his Own Recognizance (O.R.)and or House Arrest pending the outcome of the
habeas proceedings.

while not common,this request,and a grant of the request,is not unprece-
dented.(See In Re Smiley, 66 C2d 606:In Re Newborn,53 C2d 786.)

While not approved in People V. Correa,54 C4th 331,Neal V. State,55 C2d 11

points out that a grant of the Writ in this case may dischargethe petitioner

from the excess portion of the restraint without releasing the petitioner from
all restraint,which seems to mean that if,for instance,a petitioner were co-
mmitted for a term of 100 years,and on habeas,won a 50 year reduction he would
still have to serve the remaining 37 years.

If this were a similar circumstance,this issue would not be brought up;,
however,If cause to deny the Writ in this case is not shown,the petitioner has
only admitted to facts supporting conviction on charges amounting to 6yrs/4mos
on the low end,to 17 years on the high end,with the Mid term set at 9 yéars
even.

This means that,should the Writ issue,the Petitioner could,at the Court's
discretion,be long overdue for release,not counting "Goodtime"credits to be
recalculated given the new earning status declared by the sentencing guidelines
for a non-"Life" prisoner.

petitioner would present the following facts in support of consideration
of Bail or O.R.:

1)Local residence-petitioner has a solid Parole Plan that includes living

Locally,in Roseville,at 321 Canterbury Ave.,Roseville,Ca. 95678.This means
It would not be hard for law enforcement to keep tabs on him or to be pre-

sent at proceedings related to the instant petition,or to facilitate prompt
return to custody in the event the Writ does not issue:;

3
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2)Lack of Financial resources-Petitioner is mostly without means to do

much more than live a simple existence.This makes ability to abscond next
to nil.He would not get far and is very much aware of this.

3)Ties to Community-Petitioner has,in Placer and Sacramento Counties,the

entirety of his family.Not only a support system neccesary to success on
Parole,several members would greatly benifit from the joining of the Petit-
ioner into the workforce,including his elderly father and grandfather,his
very young neices and infant children of them,his Mentally ill baby sist-
er,a single mother with two children of her own:

4)No Substance Abuse Issues-While never Addicted to any drug or to Alcho-
hol,Petitioner has been Sober for 2,295 days as of August 19th,2015,and has
not used any illegal drug since June 22,2002.Petitioner has never been

arrested for,or issued a rules violation report for,any drug or alchohol
related accusation at all.This ver much decreases the liklihood of re-
cidivism in this case;

5)No Gang Involvement/Ties-initially,upon entry to CDCR,Petitioner was rout-

inely labled a gang member simply by virtue of having fair hair and skin.
However,in the twelve years since,not a single time has he been accused of
any participation whatsoever in gang related activity;records show active
participation in efforts to deescalate racial tensions and ease relations
between various gang factions.He has has taken an active role in locating
and reporting inmate manufactured weapons in the interest of prison sec-
urity,and reporting gand activity which presents immediate threat to pri-
son security.

6)Relatively Non-Violent History-The Court has sentenced Petitioner to serve

a lengthy,indefinite sentence in an environment which has a recurring role
on the evening news due to its level of violence.Notably,The California
State Prison Sacramento "B" Facility was recently on the news for a violent
riot between Black and White inmates,in which initially,one inmate was
Stabbed to death,and twelve others left in ambulances due to their injuries.
More than fifteen deadly weapons were involved,in an altercation lasting
twenty minutes and involving over seventy inmates.Stabbing another inmate
has become a right of Passage.Petitioner resides on the facility mentioned
above,is a white prisoner and went to lengths to stay Mninvolved.This has
been a theme:Petitioner has never been involved in a group disturbance,never
Stabbed another person,and has had a significantly low number of simple fist-
fights (6,in 12 years,with 4 of these resulting in findings that the other

5
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inmate was observed,or admitted to being,the aggressor).This lack of tendancy

toward violence,so prevalent in the Petitioners home,and ability to refrain,
would serve to dramatically reduce the likelihood of recidivism as to this
petitioner.

7)Employability-As is evinced by the documents Labled Exibit "A" to this

Motion,petitioner is posessed of above average work ethic,ability to learn

and overall capability.His ability to problem-solve and to deal with peers
and authority figures has resulted in never having been "Fired" from a job
in prison.Currently,he is Barber to a section of mentally ill and Develop-
mentally disabled prisoners,while earning nine units this semester toward
an AA in Social SciencejFunctions asSecretary ofthe Mens Advisory Council
to the prison's Warden,and concurrently makes time to research and prose-
cute the instant petition.He is experienced in the following prison occu-
pations:Chapel Clerk;Literacy Tutor,Janitor;Lead Kitchen Cook:Librarian;
Law Clerk;Barber;Electrician;Plumber;and has ten years experience repair-
ing consumer Electronics in prison.This makes the petitioner infinitely
Employable,and means that finding and maintaining gainful employment should
not be a problem;indeed,there is a tenative offer from the Concrete com-
pany petitioner's Father works for.These Facts serve to greatly decrease
the likelihood of recidivism in the case of this petitioner:

8)Rehabilitation-Petitioner has sought to better himself during his term,

and in addition to the higher education mentioned above,has gained sig-
nificant mental health insights in order to promote better function in
society at large.Petitioner has participated in,voluntarily,hundreds of
hours of Anger Management classes.He took initiative to find and prtici-
pate in Cognitive Behavior Therapy long before it became a standard in CDCR
(See Ca. Code of Regulations §§3040.1)by mail(See Attached letter from Roy
Frye,Exibit "B").Before,but especially since,his Suicide,and subsequent
revival by paramedics,in July,2012,has participated in group and individual
Psycho-therapy sessions to gain insight into his behavior,its causes and
effects.The amount of time dedicated to this runs into the thousands of
hours.He is Currently a Participant in the CbCR Mental Health Services De-
livery System (MHSDS) at the Enhanced Outpatient(EOP) level of Care(LOC).
He is not on any psychotropic Medications,participates in weekly group

and individual Psycho-therapy seesions,and functions well in the micro-

cosmic society that is the prison world.
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9)Benefits of Release-Many people benefit from the petitioner's release

from custody pending the outcome of these proceedings,as described in §3
above,but also for other reasons:a)Petitioner himself will benefit from an
opportunity to catch up on the over a decade he is behind his peers,soci--
ally and especially financially;b)While petitioner manages 4-6 hours per
week of access to legal materials to further litigation,release would allow
unhindered acees to both material and the opportunity to retain counsel
that is not the Public Defender's Office;c)Petitioner's Presence in court
and availability to counsel for both sides would eliminate the costs asso-
ciated with mailing documents to prison,conducting interveiws in prison,and
Producing the petitioner for proceedings which would require his presence;
d)the People of the State of California benefit from easement of the tax
dollars spent to house the petitioner in the interim,which runs into sev-
eral thousands of dollar's each month.A matter of Judicial economy can be
considered as well:Like so many Prisoner release plans in recent years,
this issue is slowed,plagued by concerns over what will come to pass if

the release does take place.In this case,an answer will come sooner,not la-
ter,and an answer which tends to show a success on the part of the petition-
er may eliminate the need for further argument by counsel for the people,

saving both time and money in connection with protracted court proceedings.

Conclusion

For the Reasons stated above,the petitioner moves this Court for the Follo-
wing orders:1)Discovery from the People,of Transcripts of the April 24th inter-
view of the victim,any other relevant documents,and Pitchess material regarding
the 6 named parties to the 2003 actions;2)Preparation and mailing,by the Clerk,
of the requested portion of the Reporter's Transcript,to the Petitioner;and 3)
bail in an amount to be determined by thecourt,or release of the Petitioner on
his own recognizance or on a supervised release.

These Motions will be based on this notice of motions,and the pleadings

contained herein.
Executed this 19th day of August,2015,at Represa,Ca.,By the Petitioner,

Rodriquez#Vv16387
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Description if this exhibit:supervisory opinion of Correctional Officer H.Dang,
Evincing work ethich of Petitioner upon his promotion
to Lead Cook;iRequest of Senior Librardan Arno Nappi
and Librarian David Green to holfd Law Clerk job for
Petitioner and Assign him to it. :

Number of pages to this exhibit: __ 2 pages.

JURISDICTION: (Check One Only)

[ ]MUNICIPAL COURT
[ x]SUPERIOR COURT
| JAPPELLATE COURT
| ]STATE SUPREME COURT

[ JUNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
[ |[STATE CIRCUIT COURT

[ JUNITES STATES SUPREME COURT

[ JGRAND JURY




March 4,2014
To: Assignments Lt.Schultz
From:Inmate Rodriguez,# V16387

Re: Assignment of Inmate to open clerX position in Facility A
Library

I am currently an EOP inmate,Awaiting a Jdrop in Level
Of care,which is projected for March 12,2014.

This means that I cannot currently,technically,be hired into
the library as a clerk.

Given the acute shortage of inmates on this facility who are
actually qualified to work in the library here,the librarians,
both' Mr Nappy ané Mr.D. Green€ are enthusiastic at the. prospect of
hiring me,but are worried that you may fill the open position with

someone un- or under-qualified in the interim.
The purpose of this memo is to formally request that you keep

the position open pending my Jrop to the CccCMS Level of care and
subsequent move to Bldg. 8 of this facility in order to assign me
to it.

I will,this morning,request that Mrls Nappy and Greenesign
this document if they endorse the contents of it.

Thank you so much for your time and anticipated cooperation
in this matter,and you have a good one.

rRespectfuuly submitted this 6th day of March,2014

e —

Shavn Rodrigugz ¥ V16387
W'

— "//’ L\ R2IR Y
D}%EgeﬁéFééilIEy‘ITLibrarian

Nappy,Faciliﬂp B Law Librarian




CALIF ORNIA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS AND REHABILITATION
INMATE JOB DESCRIPTION

LOCATION CODE: A223 JOB TITLE: 1ST COOK POSITION #: DRCFA.007
HRS W/MEAL BREAK: 1200-1500 / 1530-1930 RDO'S: SUM PAY: 2/ $40.00

WIP CODE: S MAXIMUM CUSTODY: CLOB SKILL LEVEL: Yes

DOT: 315.361.010 REQUIREMENTS/RESTRICTIONS:

SPECIFIC DUTIES:

Your responsibilities are listed below, but are not fimited to those duties only. You will be expected to perform any additional duties requested or
ordered by your supervisor and staff. When you have completed your duties for the day, report to your supervisor. If you are doing duties that are
not on this list, please let your supervisor know so that they can be added to the list if needed. If you have any questions regarding your job duties
or expectations, you should ask your supervisor for clarification.

Your responsibilities as the First Cook will be preparation of the meal, inventory of food items, and helping in the general cleanup. You will also be
required to perform other duties as required by staff. You must be medically cleared as a food handler, and be free of communicable diseases.

Prior experience as a cook is desirable, but not mandatory.

ACCEPTABLE STANDARDS:

You are expected to perform your assigned work duties and responsibilities to the BEST of your ability at all imes. You must maintain a good
working relationship with staff and peers. You are expected to report to work on time and may not leave work without permission from the work
supervisor. You are expected to maintain and display an acceptable attitude and demeanor at all times. Personal appearance and hygiene are to
be neat and clean. You must be dressed in state issued ciothing and wear all applicable safety items. You must perform assigned tasks
diligently and conscientiously and must not pretend iliness or otherwise evade attendance in your assigned work and program activities. The
expected amount of work hours is to be kept as near to eight hours per day as the institutional procedure and security needs will aliow. You
may be required to work more than eight hours when institutional need occurs. Performance will be evaluated continually and a written report
(CDC 101) will be submitted quarterly. “You are responsible for notifying your supervisor immediately should you receive any duty limitations
(CDCR Form 128-C or CDCR Form 1845) from the Medical Department. Failure to comply could result in disciplinary action and unassignment.”

=== FAILURE OR REFUSAL TO MEET WORK PERFORMANCE EXPECTATIONS:

If you fail to comply with the requirements of this job and/or the California Code of Regulations, Titie 15, progressive discipline wiil be adhered io.
Any "A" time, regardless of duration, will preclude the earning of work time credit for the day (California Code of Regulations, Title 15, Section

3043.4).

| have read and received a copy of this signed job description and fully understand my duties and responsibilities.

[2-3-\3

@@ | Dat

eoST ZeCiove Vo bze7

CDCR Number

Inmate's Printed
v/
R4 4 . .
Work/Training Supe(xsor's Signature and Title. Date

One copy each o work supervisor and inmate

/ o %%//M A %/;&/ﬂ%
? wdl % Hss Wj / Gte Ao %/’Z o A WM7

O A oAnte—

J245 /0%



EXHIBIT COVER PAGE |-

EXHIBIT

Description if this exhibit:Referral Letter from Mr. Roy Frye regarding five
years CBT therapy and insights

Number of pages to this exhibit: _1 pages.-

JURISDICTION: (Check One Only)

[ JMUNICIPAL COURT

[x ]SUPERIOR COURT

[ JAPPELLATE COURT

[ ISTATE SUPREME COURT

[ JUNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
[ JSTATE CIRCUIT COURT

[_JUNITES STATES SUPREME COURT
[ JGRAND JURY
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California Superior Court 7/25/15
Sacramento, California

Re: Shawn Rodriguez (# V16387)
Rational Self-Counseling Skills Education

Dear Honorable Justice:

The purpose of this letter is to inform the court that | have been in contact with Shawn for almost five years, in a teaching and
emotionally supportive capacity, via the mail. | am retired from the State of Alaska System after twenty years of service in the
fields of Child Protection Social Work and Juvenile Probation. For approximately eight years | taught this cognitive / behavioral
skill at the Youth Facility in Anchorage. Individual classes, for the more violent youth who requested them, were conducted as
well as one hour groups, twice a week, with 5 to 13 youth. | have been teaching this skill nationwide by mail, in the prison
system, for the last five years.

Because of the basic ABC homework format (Rational Self-Analysis form), adolescents and aduits relate to this factual and
common sense approach very well. The various, pictorial printouts and information on brain physiology also add to the clarity
of this process for most levels of intellect. A strong focus on semantic ads even more clarity. This is very evident in the
elimination of “demands and negative, non-factual self-labeling”, in thinking, that are the major causes of almost all major,
negative feelings.

Shawn readily filled out the Rational Self Analysis form, with vital background information, and | have completed and corrected
the incorrect, irrational and non-factual thoughts that were the basic cause of his self-defeating and harmful behavior.

Shawn has been willing to entertain some of the information to better his situation and view the world and himself differently.
His attitudinal change, for the better, since my initial contact with him, is very evident. He is more aware of his self-defeating
thoughts and seems to have progressed well in the system, in regards to jobs, staying free of troubles and acting in a more
altruistic manner to those less fortunate.

Over the last five years, Shawn has never given me the impression that he has an innate criminal, nature or any sociopathic
thinking. He continues to have a sincere determination to better his life situation by engaging in honest work and staying
connected to his supportive family members. Shawn is very intelligent and able to use his intellect to correct self-defeating
thinking and better his future living situation. From the onset, | have not viewed him as a danger to society and do not view him
this way now, after five years of contact. It is likely that a manic, depressive condition could have added to his pervious harmful
behaviors.

Brain Control: Rational Self-Counseling Skills is a clear thinking skill that teaches psychological independence, how to control
your brain instead of it controlling you and how to better learn to think about your thinking. Physiological and psychological
factors of feelings, and the brain, are discussed for the purpose of eliminating or lessening self-hate and the three major
negative feelings of anger, depression and unnecessary fear which most people want to have less of.

| hope this information has been helpful in regards to any deism you make. Please contact with any questions regarding this
matter.

Sincerely, 7/-\,
Roy Frye j%—’”
726 “0” Place #404

Anchorage, Alaska 99501

rofrye2003@yahoo.com
907-332-0428(home)
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VERIFICATION

(C.C.P. §§446,2015.5; 28 U.S.C. § 1746)

N
I, shawn Rodriguez , declare under the penalty of perjury that:

1 am the Movant/Petitioner - in the attached matter; I have read the foregoing documents(s)
and know the contents thereof; and the same is true of my own personal knowledge, or upon information and
belief therein that they are true; that if called to testify as to the contents hereof I could do so competently as a

sworn witness.

Executed this 19th day of August , _2015 | at California State
Prison/Sacramento, Represa, California 95671.

(Signature
eclarant
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DECLARATION OF SERVICE BY MAIL

(C.C.P. §§ 1013(a), 2015.5; 28 U.S.C. § 1746)

I, Shawn Rodriguez , declare:

That I am a resident of California State Prison/Sacramento, State Of California; I am over the age of
18 years; I am/am not a party to the above entitled action; My address is P.O. Box 290066, Represa, California

¥5671-0066; 1served the attached document(s) entitled: )
Notice of motionjMotion for Discovery,Bail or release on O.R.,Production of

transcripts; Exibits

On the persons/parties specified below by placing a true and duplicated copy of said documents into a
sealed envelope with appropriate First Class Postage affixed thereto and prepaid, and placing said envelope(s)
into the United States Mail in a deposit box provided at the California State Prison/Sacramento, Represa,

California, addressed as follows:

Hon. Mark S. Curry,Dept.#3, Hon.R. Scott Owens
10820 Justice Center Dr. Placer County District Attorney
P.O. Box 619072 10880 Justice Center Dr.Ste.240
_ Roseville,Ca. BE§Y 95661-9072 Roseville,Ca. 95661

Placer County Public Defender
11760 Atwood Rd.
Auburn,Ca. 95603

There is First Class mail delivery service by United States Mail at the places so addressed and/or regular
communication by mail between the place of mailing and the addresses above. I declare under the penalty of
perjury that the foregoing is true and correct and that I executed this service on this _ 23d  day of
August , 2015 , at California State Prison/Sacramento, Represa, California 95671.

— i
(Si gnature ,

Declarant
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Shawn Rodriguez #V15387

CSP-SAC-B5-217 LA
P.O.Box 290066 SB = >
Represa,Ca. 95671

August 19,2015

James Shin,Chief Defense Attornay

Placer County Public Defender
11760 Atwood Rd.
Auburn,Ca. 95603
Re:Request for case file
Persuant to Professional rules of Conduct3-700

People V. Rodriguez,Case #62-3438%

Dear Public Defender,

My name is Shawn Rodriiguez#V16387.1 am the Defendant in the abovecaptioned
case and Current Petibion attacking its judgement of Conviction.

Persuant to Prof. Rules of Conduct 3-700,I am requesting that you provide me
my complete casefile,Commonly referred to as a "Trial File".

I was recently made aware of issues which appear to be Cognizable as ineffec-
tive Assistance of Counsz2l Claims,and the Case file is neccesary to preparemy
Petitionefor Writ of Habeas Corpus.

If it helps,Jesse Serafin,Esq.,Now deceased,was assigned trial Counsel,and
before him,Patrick Benca Botched my defense before resigning and skipping town.

I would very much appreciate your prompt assistance in this Matter.

Thank you.

; Shahggzpdriguez #v16387

{ titi
\__Egﬁe nt/Petitioner

CC:Ca. State Bar association
Hon.Mark S. Curry,Placer County Superior Court,Dept.3



PROOF OF SERVICE

(C.C.P. §§1013(a); 2015.5; 28 U.S.C. §1746)

I, SW\aw> s Redsio €7 , am over the age of eighteen (18) years,
and I (am) (am not) a party to the within cause of action. My address is:

QeP- SAC- BS™- 2IF
D6, Box  29C0EC

On, @©-27-\% , I served the following documents:

Tw S el Yeq vest Q{" Caze File X ?ea?\t N -'ch&“cge-él_
Aecel Cov oty @ 62-3ER

on the below named individual(s) by depositing true and correct copies thereof in
the United State mail in Represa, California, with postage fully prepaid thereon,

addressed as follows: Stode B 0€  Ce.
ds 5. Fiquesen SL
1. '3:1\*{5 SWirs _ ' 2. %A ng. 3¢oet7«25ls‘
e Cneroém\ Vobli e A e _ 1 '
NHo  Ablovsoed 24 Hoo. Matyv S. (ot
Aobg-;q\- Ne qstdd Pecec CN‘\'\H SJ'}(_C'U-‘V (gg'\"(’
S

Ceseade, Qo aSLl|

I have read the above statements and declare under the penalty of perjury of
the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executéd this 27-  day of 4-5505* , Qe . | at California State
Prison - Sacramento, Represa, California.

(Signamre)%/——\




wm e W 18]

e e =1 &

Shaim Rodriguez #v1i6387

CSP-SAC-B5--217

2.0.Box 290066

Represa,Ca. 95671 8 s

August 25,2015

Deputy Attorney General
David Eldridge

C. Departrnent of Justice.
P.0.Box 944255
Sacramento,Ca. 94244-2550

Re:Informal request for discovery
US V. Agurs,427 U.S. 97
Kyles v. Whitley,514 U.S. 419
People V. Ruthford,14 cal 34 399
Merril V. Superior Court,27 Cal App 4th 1586
Rules of Professional Conduct 5-220

In Re Rodriguez on Habeas Corpus,Placer #WHC-1400

Dear Dep.A.G. Eldridge:My name is Shawn Rodriquez,I am the Petitioner in
the abovementioned Habeas Proceedings.I was forwarded a letter from Sr.Ass.A.G.
Michael Farrel which informed the Placer County District Attorney's office to
Contact you for any questions.

I hope that extends to m e as well?

As your Office is aware,The Superior Court issued an OSC on 8-3-15.

Pursuant to constitutional Due Process and established Statute,I am serving
this informal Request on your office,seeking Material Evidence I do not have
and was not provided,To wit:

1l)Letter to your office From Victim Nicholas Hamman,sent prior to 3-30-15,

Admitting to Perjury in People V Rodriguez.

In the Letter to your Office Dated 3-30-15,Mr. Hamman's Salutation is
followed by an opening line which indicates that he contacted your office Re:
his Perjury previously:"Mame Mabey you didnt understand:But I perjured Myself
In"..."Sawn Rodriguez case #C045882"(Sic).

Please take notice that Material exculpatory Evidence Must be Disclosed
whether a defendant makes a specific request,general request,or none at all.

(U.S. V. Agurs,427 US 97)
The Scope of the disclosure obligation extends beyond the contents of the
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case file and encompasses the duty to ascertain,as well as divulge,any favor-
able evidence known to others acting on the governments behalf.(Kyles V. Whitley
514 US 419,437)

There is a duty on the part of the Prosecution,even in the Absence of a

request thereof,to disclose all substantial Material evidence favorable to the
accused which relates to the credibility of a material witness.(People v. Ruth-
ford,14 Cal 3d 399,406)

The Ca. Court of Appeals has established that rules of ethical Conduct

for attorneys prohibits suppression of evidence that they have a legal obli-
gation to disclose.(Merril V. Superior Court,27 Cal App 4th 1586)

Professional Rules of Conduct mandate that a member shall not suppress any
evidence that the Member has a legal obligation to reveal or to provide.(Rule
5-220)

I request that you provide the requested document and anything reason-
ably related to it within thirty days.After that,I will seek an order to compel

the disclosure of this material .

I will appreciate your prompt attention to this Matter.

Sincerely,

C.C.Clerk of the Placer County Superior Court
Placer County District Attorney's Office




PROOF OF SERVICE

(C.C.P. §§1013(a); 2015.5; 28 U.S.C. §1746)

I, shawn Rodriquez #v16387 , am over the age of eighteen (18) years,
and I (am) (am not) a party to the within cause of action. My address is:

Shawn_Rodriquez $#Vv16387
-POBox 290066
-RepresarCa—95671

On, August 26,2015 , I served the following documents:

Informal request for discovery to Ca.A.G. for Hammans lst Letter

on the below named individual(s) by depositing true and correct copies thereof in
the United State mail in Represa, California, with postage fully prepaid thereon,

addressed as follows:
Dep.A.G. David Eldridge

P.O.Box P44255 2. clerk,

Sacramento,C. 942442550 Placer County Superior Court
Y0820 Justice Canter DL —
Roseville,Ca, 95661-0072

Placer County District Attormey
10810 Justice Center Dr.Ste. 240
RosevilleCa—95678

I have read the above statements and declare under the penalty of perjury of
the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed this 26th day of auqust , 2015 , at California State
Prison - Sacramento, Represa, California.

(Signature)




RICHARD A. CIUMMO & ASSOCIATES
A PROFESSIONAL LAW CORPORATION

PLACER COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

James Shin, Chief Defense Attorney

11760 Atwood Road, Suite 4 Tel: (530) 889-0280
Auburn, CA 95603 Fax: (530) 889-0276

August 28, 2015

Mr. Shawn Rodriguez
CSP-SAC-B5-217
P.O. Box 290066
Represa, CA 95671

RE: Writ of Habeas Corpus
Case No.: WHC 1400

Dear Mr. Rodriguez:

Enclosed please find the Placer County District Attorney’s Response to Order to Show Cause.

Sincerely, /

Enc.
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R. SCOTT OWENS,

Placer County District Attorney

State Bar No. 146406

10810 Justice Center Drive, Suite 240
Roseville, CA 95678-6231

Tel: (916) 543-8000

SUPERIOR COURT OF PLACER COQUNTY

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

~=@IP==
THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF | No. 62-034689 & WHC 1400
CALIFORNIA,
RESPONSE TO ORDER TO SHOW
Plaintiff, CAUSE
Vs.

SHAWN MICHAEL RODRIGUEZ

Defendant.

The People hereby respond to the court’s issuance of an
order to show cause on the above-captioned matter as
follows:
I
BACKGROUND
On or about March 17, 2003 at 2 A.M., Officers

Hopping, Hamblin and Sgt. Burns of the Auburn Police
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Department responded to the old juvenile hall located at
200 Epperle Lane in downtown Auburn, Placer County,
California. This hall had been locked up and abandoned as
a holding facility for some time prior to this incident.
The officers found a broken window at the hall and entered
the facility. (RT 62-64, 96-99) Just prior to responding to
the hall, Officer Hopping had received information éhat
there may be someone trapped inside the abandoned hall.
The officers found Nicholas Hamman, the victim, locked
inside a holding cell inside the facility. The door could
only be opened from outside the cell. When the officers
arrived outside the holding cell, the victim appeared up
against a window in the cell door and yelled at the
officers to get him out of the cell. (RT 68-69, 103-105,
113, 247-248) The victim had water dripping on his head
from overhead fire sprinklers inside the cell and a great
deal of water was inside the cell. The officers removed
the victim who they described as hysterical and suffering
from hypothermia. (RT 71, 73, 108-109) The victim named
the parties responsible for locking him in the cell as
Shawn Rodriguez and Anna Rugg. (RT 74, 249) The victim was
taken to Auburn Faith Hospital and was treated for
hypothermia and trench foot and then he was released.

(RT 127-129)
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The victim indicated to the police that he was locked
in the cell by Rodriguez and Rugg after 9:30 A.M. Saturday
March 15, 2003; he was not released until the police
arrived on Monday March 17, 2003 at about 2 A.M. The
victim was pushed into the cell and the door slammed shut
on him. The victim could not pnlock the door- - from inside
of the cell. (RT 204-207, 210, 212) Between 1 P.M. and 2
P.M. on that same day, the victim decided to use his
lighter to hold against the fire sprinklers on the ceiling
of the holding cell since no one had returned to the hall.
The victim believed that the sprinklers would be activated
and the fire department would respond to his location. The
sprinklers activated releasiné a constant stream of water
in the holding cell, but the fire department did not
respond (the alarm system had been deactivated after the
juvenile hall had been closed and abandoned). (RT 220-221,
223) Later that afternoon, Rodriguez and Rugg reappeared
at the hall. Rodriguez walked up to the holding cell door
and demanded the victim’s ATM card and pin number.
Rodriguez promised to break the window in the cell door and
let the victim out if the victim gave up those items. The
victim indicated he would give up the pin number only. The
victim did so and Rodriguez struck the cell window a couple

of times and it did not break. (RT' 223=224, 225; 227)
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Rodriguez came back 20 minutes later and told the victim
that he wanted the victim’s ATM card, money, ID card and
car keys. If the victim gave up these items, Rodrigue:z
promised to call the police to get the victim out. The
victim refused to give up the items. Rodriguez and Rugg
placed towels and a large box in front of the holding cell
door and told the victim that he was going to drown if he
didn’t give up the items. (RT 225-230) Rodriguez and Rugg
left the hall and were gone about two hours. By the time
Rodriguez and Rugg returned, the victim claimed the water
had risen above his shoulders (both Rodriguez and Rugg in
their statements stated the water was about waist high or
three feet high in the holding cell). This time the victim
gave up the items that Rodriguez and Rugg wanted.
Rodriguez and Rugg pulled away the items placed outside the
cell door and the water drained down to about 4 inches
inside the cell. (RT 236-239, 463, 578) Rodriguez and Rugg
said they would call the police—they did not.

On Saturday 3/15/03 and Sunday 3/16/03 Rodriguez and
Rugg stayed in Sacramento County with Richard Romines, a
foster brother of Rodriguez. Rodriguez and Rugg told
Romines that they had locked the victim in a holding cell
in the old juvenile hall. Romines told them to let the

victim go. Romines indicated that Rodriguez and Rugg told
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him about the water in the cell and that Rodriguez and Rugg
were planning to kill the victim by filling the cell with
water; then they developed a separate plan of gassing the
victim with carbon monoxide. (RT 115-158, 160, 173, 177,
181) Romines was told that Rodriguez and Rugg were going
to place a hose in the vehicle tail pipe and run the hose
to the cell in ordef to kill him. Rodriguez and Rugg
returned to the juvenile hall after they obtained duct tape
and two hoses. They tried to connect the hoses to a duct
near the cell and the other end in the vehicle exhaust.
They were not successful in killing the victim since the
hose kept coming out of the exhaust pipe. (RT 400, 459-
461) Rodriguez and Rugg left the hall and stopped at a
Shell gas station in Auburn. Rugg went to the bathroom and
left a note indicating where the victim was, and requesting
that the police be called. Rugg told the attendant that he
needed to check the women’s bathroom. The attendant found
the note and called the Auburn Police Department. (RT 143-
141, 148) Rodriguez and Rugg were going to return to cut
the water line and reroute the water. (RT 580-581) Both
Rodriguez and Rugg were arrested together and made several
admissions/confessions regarding this conduct. During the
trial Detective Coe related the statements made by

Rodriguez. Rodriquez also testified about what had
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happened that weekend. Rodriguez claimed the water in the
cell was about three feet high. Rodriguez admitted he
plugged up the crack under the door to get the water to
rise so as to scare the victim. Rodriguez admitted to
obtaining the ATM card and pin number which he and Rugg
used thereafter. Rodriguez also admitted the plan to gas
the victim in the holding cell after they had obtained his
property. Rodriguez admitted that he and Rugg went fo
Albertsons to buy the duct tape and then went to the Dgwitt
Center in Auburn to get two hoses. (CAT 1-18, CLERKS
AUGMENTED TRANSCRIPT) He further admitted to duct taping
the bottom of the cell door. He then stated that he and
Rugg attached one end of the hoses to the duct leading into
the holding cell and the other end of the hose to the tail
pipe of the victim's car. However, the plan to gas the
victim did not work. (RT 459-461)

Defendant Rodriguez was charged in an Information
dated June 4, 2003 with Kidnapping For Ransom with a
special allegation of confining in a manner which exposed
the victim to a substantial likelihood of death in Count
one, Conspiracy to Commit Murder with four over acts in
Count two, Attempted Murder in Count three, Robbery in

Count four, False Imprisonment in Count five, Unlawful




10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

15

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Taking of a Vehicle in Count six, and two counts of
Identity theft in Counts seven and eight. (CT 201-206)

On October 3, 2003, defendant Rodriguez was convicted
of Count one Kidnapping for Extortion, a violation of
209 (a) of the Penal Code (the special allegation was found
to be not true), Count two, a violation of 182 (a) (1)/187(a)
of the Penal Code, Conspiracy to Commit Murder, Count 6, a
violation of 10851 (a) of the Vehicle Code, Unlawful
Taking/Driving of a Vehicle, and Counts 7 and 8y 930:5 Bf
the Penal Code, Identity Theft. (CT 313-318)

On December 5%, 2003, Defendant Rodriguez was
sentenced to 25 years to life on Count 2, Conspiracy to
commit premeditated murder. Count one, Kidnapping for
Ransom, was run concurrent to Count 2. Count six, seven
and eight were run concurrent to count one with count six,
10851 of the Vehicle Code, also stayed pursuant to 654 of
the Penal Code. (CT 465-469)

On April 7, 2015 the District Attorney’s Office
received a letter from Attorney General Rachelle Newcomb--
the AG who was the assigned AG opposing the defendant’s
appeal. Attached to her letter was a letter from the
victim who claimed he had perjured himself. The victim did
not indicate in his letter what the discrepancy was in his

testimony. It is to be noted that when this letter was
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received both the victim and the defendant were housed in
Folsom prison at the same time. For the first time after
12 years, the victim now indicates there is a part of his
testimony that was not true. Since it was not known what
the witness was recanting, Investigator Jeff Potter from
the Placer County District Attorneys’ Office was sent to
Folsom prison to interview the victim. Attached as Exhibit
“A” is a report from Investigator Potter of his interview
of the victim Hamman on April 23, 2015. The interview was
taped and the tape can be supplied to the court upon
request. The only change in the victim’s testimony is that
he says the water only came up to his thighs and not his
neck. This was the first time the victim came up with this
version. Even the defendants Rugg and Rodriquez stated
that the water was waist high/three feet high. A copy of
the tape and Investigator Potter’s report were sent to both
the Public Defender’s office, who represented Rodriguez,
and to Conflicts Counsel, who represented Rugg.  Attached
as Exhibits “B” and “C” are copies of the letters to the
defense_attorneys. It was indicated to the defense that
the level of the water did not seem to be material to the
overall facts of the case as it related to the crimes
Rodriguez was convicted of. Neither counsel for the

defense brought a Writ of Habeas Corpus after receiving
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this information. BAs will be discussed in subsequent
paragraphs, the water level does not seem to rise to the
level of materiaiity regarding the facts needed to support
the crimes the defendant was convicted of by the jury.

II

CASE LAW REGARDING NEW TRIAL BASED ON “NEW EVIDENCE”

The trial court is to determine whether the new
evidence is credible—worthy of belief by the jury—after
reviewing all the facts regarding the issue. If the court
finds the recantation Credible, it must then decide whether
it would render a different result on a retrial reasonably

probable. People v. Minnick (1989) 214 cal. App. 3d 1478;

People v. Cole (1979) 94 Cal.App.3d 854 [155 Cal.Bptr,

892]. The evidence must show that the defendant’s
conviction was based upon false testimony in order to grant
habeas corpus relief. The false evidence must be
substantially material or probative on the issue of guilt
Oor punishment. False evidence is substantially material or
probative if there is a reasonable probability that, had it
not been introduced, the result would have been different.
The court must consider all the evidence on the particular
issue under consideration and determine if it undermines

the confidence in the outcome. In re Larry H. Roberts

(2003) 29 cal. 4™ 726; In re Sassounian (1995) 9 Cal. 4%k




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

535,546 [37 Cal.Rptr. 24 446]; People v. Marshall (1996) 13

Cal. 4% 799, 830.
It has long been recognized that “the offer of a
witness, after trial, to retract his sworn testimony is to

be viewed with suspicion.” In re Weber (1974) 11 cal. 3d

703, 722 [114 Cal.Rptr. 429]; People v. Minnick, supra, at

p. 1481; People v. McGaughran (1961) 197 Cal.App. 2d 6, 17

[17 Cal.Rptr. 121]. 1In the matter before this court, it is
suspicious that the victim comes forward after 12 years
when both the victim and defendant Rodriguez are housed in
the same state prison. However, as it will be discussed
below, the new statement does not change the outcome of any
of the counts the defendant was convicted of. The new
level of water as claimed by the viectim was not known to
the police or prosecution until Detective Potter obtained
this information from the victim in April 2015. The two
suspects believed the water level was waist high and the
jury heard defendant Rodriguez’ statement to that effect.
The victim’s new statement is not entirely consistent with
defendant Rodriguez, who has the water level at waist high
or about three feet-not thigh high. The jury had Rodriguez’
statement to consider at the time of the trial.

/1Y
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COUNT TWO CONVICTION NOT AFFECTED BY NEW EVIDENCE

Defendant Rodriguez was convicted in count two of the
Information of a violation of 182/187(a) of the Penal Code,
Conspiracy to Commit Premeditated Murder. The Information
contaiﬁed the followinglfour overt acts with respect to

said count:

OVERT ACT NO. 1
Defendants Shawn Michael Rodriguez and Anna Marie Rugg
drove to Albertson's Supermarket in the city of Auburn,

County of Placer and purchased duct tape.

OVERT ACT NO. 2
Defendants Shawn Michael Rodirguez and Anna Marie Rugg
drove to the DeWitt Center, in the City of Auburn, County
of Placer, and obtained two garden hoses.

OVERT ACT NO. 3
Defendants Shawn Michael Rodriguez and Anna Marie Rugg
drove to the old juvenile hall in the City of Auburn,
County of Placer and taped duct tape around the outside of
the holding cell door behind which Nicholas Hamman was

confined.
OVERT ACT NO. 4

Defendants Shawn Michael Rodriguez and Anna Marie Rugg

11
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drove to the old juvenile hall in the City of Auburn,
County of Placer and attached one end of a garden hose to a
vent above the holding cell door behind which Nicholas
Hamman was confined, and tied the other end of the garden
hose to the exhaust system of a 1992 Chevrolet Beretta,
California License number 3FHS432.

The jury convicted defendant Rodriguez of count two
with the Four overt acts charged. None of the evidence
used to convict the defendant was based on the water level
in the holding cell even if the court believes the victim’s
new statement. The victim’s change in his statement that
the water level was lower in the cell than he had testified
to is immaterial. Based on the above case law, defendant
Rodriquez’s Writ must fail as to this count. The court
sentenced the defendant to 25 years to life based on this
count alone. All other counts Were either run concurrent
or stayed pursuant to 654 of the Penal Code. The claimed
partial recantation has no effect on the defendant’s
sentence of 25 years to life.

Iv

COUNT ONE CONVICTION NOT AFFECTED BY NEW EVIDENCE

Defendant Rodriguez was convicted in Count One of a

violation of Penal Code Section 209(é), Kidnapping For

12
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Ransom. The jury found the special allegation that the
victim was confined in a manner which exXposed him to a
substantial likelihood of death to be not true. The
victim’s change in his statement about the water level in
the cell may have had some materiality if the jury had
found the special allegation to be true. They did not, so
the water level discrepancy, if the new information is to
be believed, would not be material to the conviction in
this count.

The evidence was uncontroverted by the victim and
defendants that ultimately the victim gave up his property
so that the defendants would contact the police to let him
out of the cell, however high the water level was. The
police found the victim suffering from hypothermia and was
hysterical. The water was constantly hitting the victim on
the head as the officer observed. Once the victim gave up
his property after being confined for some time, this crime
wés complete and was not dependent on the water level in
the cell. The jury had the discrepancy in the water level
before it anyway, since Rodriguez thought it was three feet
high. The new claim by the victim that the water level was
thigh high would not be material to this count. It is to
be noted that this crime was run concurrent to count two.

Therefore, there would not be a change in the sentence no
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matter how high the water level actually was in the holding
cell if in fact it has any materiality.
v

COUNTS SIX, SEVEN, AND EIGHT NOT AFFECTED BY NEW EVIDENCE

Count Six, a violation of 10851 of the Vehicle Code
and Counts Seven and eight, violations of 530.5 of the
Penal Code, were not affected by the new statement of the
victim regarding water level in the holding cell. However
high the water level was (neck high per victim, waist high
or three feet high per defendants, or thigh high per
victim’s new statement), the victim gave up his keys, ATM
card, and cash under the cell door after items were removed
from the bottom of the cell door and the water receded to
four inches. However high the water was, these items were
given up by the victim with the hope that the defendants
would let the victim out of the holding cell or call the
police. (RT 236-239) The suspects then used the vehicle
and ATM card without the permission of the victim.
Defendant Rodriguez was found driving the victim’s vehicle
without permission. Found within the vehicle were documents
supporting the unauthorized use of the victim’s ATM card.
(RT 79-81, 84-85, 253-255, 495). The level of the water
was not material to the victim giving up these items and

the unlawful use of these items by the defendant.
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If the court were to find any materiality to the new
statement of the victim, Counts Six, Seven, and Eight were
all run concurrent to count Two and would not affect the
sentence the defendant received of 25 years to life.

VI
 CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing facts and law, the claimed
change in water level in the cell by the victim would not
be material to any of the convictions the jury rendered if
this new information had been available. The jury heard
from defendant Rodriguez that he thought the water was
three feet high or waist high. 1If the victim’s new
information were brought before a jury, the jury would
consider whether the water was thigh high or three feet
high—a difference without a distinction. In view of the
fact that the jury did not find true the special allegation
to count one (the kidnapping subjected the victim to a
substantial likelihood of death), the water level was not
material to the convictions rendered. The jury was told by
the victim that he stepped on top of the seat next to the
table so the water only reached his stomach. (RT 235=2386)
With this information, it seems clear that the water level
was not material to the decisions made by the jury. The

conspiracy to commit murder charge that the defendant was




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

convicted of resulted in a sentence of 25 to life. This
count did not involve the water level as demonstrated by
the overt acts charged.

The People respectfully request that the writ be

denied in its entirety.

Dated: August 26, 2015.
Respectfully submitted,

R. SCOTT OWENS,
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

N - Oa;'%m{&

WILLIAM D. MARCHI
DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
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PL. _.ER COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNL. .
R. SCOTT OWENS
10810 Justice Center Drive, Suite 240
Roseville, CA 95678
916-543-8000 fax 976-543-2554

BUREAU OF INVESTIGATIONS
Supplemental Information

CASE NAME: RODRIGUEZ, SHAWN MICHAEL
NUMBER: 32-034689

CHARGES: 664/187 P.C.

DATE: April 23, 2015

h

INVESTIGATOR:  J. Potter #25 rj’b

o’

Person contacted: V/Nicholas Hamman, CDC #J98016

I'was contacted by Deputy D.A. B. Marchi who asked me to contact V/Hamman
regarding the above case. (V/Hamman is currently housed at Folsom Prison on an un-
related incident). This request came about because of a letter that V/Hamman sent to the
California Attorney General. In this letter, V/Hamman said that he “perjured” himself in
the above case. The Attorney General’s Office sent the information to DDA Marchi who
was the prosecuting Attorney. (See attached letter from the AG’S Office and the letter
from V/Hamman). In V/Hamman’s letter, he was not specific in how he “perjured”
himself but only requested the names and addresses of the J udge and prosecutor in the
case.

Note: The original crime occurred in March of 2003 and was investigated by the Auburn
Police Department. D/Rodriguez was found guilty, at jury trial, on numerous felony
charges and sentenced in December of 2003. D/Rodriguez’s co-defendant, Anna Marie
Rugg, 10-02-1982, negotiated a plea agreement for numerous felony charges.

I contacted Sacramento County D.A. Investigator J.Simms. Inv. Simms 1s
assigned to Folsom Prison and assisted me with arranging an interview with V/Hamman
on 04-23-15.

On 04-22-15, DDA Marchi provided me with two more letters from V/Hamman.
These letters were addressed to D.A. “Phenochio”, who was the District Attorney at the
time of prosecution and D.A. “Scott” (Owens), who is the current District Attorney.

In these letters V/Hamman said that he lied about how deep the water was in the
cell. He said that the water did not get up to his neck but only reached the lower part of
his thighs. He said that he removed the rags that D/Rodriguez and Rugg placed under the
door and the water was able to run out. (See attached).

YT A
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I
04-23-15
0930 Hrs. I contacted V/Hamman at Folsom Prison. The interview took place in the
Sacramento County D.A. Investi gators office in the prison. Also present for the interview
was Inv. Simms. V/Hamman told me the following in summary:

I identified myself as an Investigator with the Placer County District Attorney. I
told V/Hamman that we had received the letters that he sent regarding his “perjury” in the
Rodriguez case. I showed V/Hamman the letter that he sent to the Attorney General’s
Office. He said it was the letter he wrote. I also showed him the two copies that he sent to
“Phenochio” and “Scott”. He said that they were the letters he wrote. I also told him that I
had a copy of his statement that he provided Auburn Police at the time of the incident. I
told him that we were not going to review his entire statement and asked him if his
statement was truthful and accurate when he gave it. V/Hamman said that it was truthful
but the part about the water in the trial was not true. I confirmed with V/Hamman that he
mentioned the water depth in his letter. He said yes. I asked him what he lied about. He
said that the water did not come up to his neck and that it was only up to his thighs. I
confirmed with V/Hamman that the original report said that the water was up to his
shoulders and that the water drained down once the items were removed from the bottom
of the door. He again said that the water never got higher than his mid thighs.

I asked V/Hamman if that was the only issue he wanted to tell us about. He said
yes. I told him that I would write a report and send it to the public defender’s office. I
asked him why he told us the information. He said that he wanted to clear his
conscience. - :

Iasked V/Hamman if he has spoken or communicated with D/Rodriguez. He said
no. I asked him if D/Rodriguez tried to persuade him in any way or is looking for a favor
to help his case. He said no. I asked him if he has had any contact with Anna Rugg. He
said no. I asked him if had ever communicated with D/Rodriguez in the yard. (I learned
through Inv. Simms that D/Rodriguez and V/Hamman were not housed together but
probably had yard time at the same time and could communicate through the chain link
fence). He said no initially and then asked if D/Rodriguez was housed there. I told him
that I did not know and was wondering why he was bringing this to our attention since it
had been since 2003. He said that he has been praying a lot and that the Lord told him to
come clean about the incident. I told him that the Police arrived at the incident and saw
what had occurred. He said that the water was not high when the Police arrived. I asked
him if he had anything to add. He said no. I again told him that I would send his
information to the proper authorities and that the case has already gone before the appeals
court and may not proceed any farther at this point.

The above conversation was recorded. Please listen to recording for further detail.
I'made copies of the recording and gave them to DDA Marchi.

Nothing further.

Placer Co D.A. Investigations Page 2 of 2



R. SCOTT OWENS PLACER COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

DISTRICT ATTORNEY 10810 Justice Center Drive, Suite 240 ¢ Roseville, CA 95678-6231
916 543-8000 * FAX 916 543-2550

www.placer.ca.gov

-April 24, 2015

Placer County Public Defender

Re: Shawn Michael Rodriguez, case #62-034689
To Whom It May Concern:

Your office represented this defendant for a crime that
occurred in March 2003. The defendant was sentenced to 25
years to life for Conspiracy to Commit Murder and other
charges. I am enclosing a statement from the victim who is
housed at the same prison (Folsom) as your client. The victim
has indicated that he lied about how deep the water was in the
holding cell of the old Juvenile Hall. However, the water
level was not material to the conspiracy to commit murder. The

~ police described the water level when they freed the victim
from the holding cell and a cousin of your client testified
regarding the way in which your client tried to kill the
victim. Your client attempted to kill the victim by carbon
monoxide poisoning. I am enclosing the DVD of the victim’s
recent information regarding this case for you to decide what
if anything this means. David Cohen of the conflicts firm
represented the co-defendant Anna Rugg who plead guilty afterf
your client’s trial to a different charge and was sentenced to
7 years to life. If you have any questions give me a call.
Your trial attorney was Jessie Serafin who is deceased.

Very truly yours,

R. SCOTT OWENS, DISTRICT ATTORNEY

BY: j{')
/William D. Marchi
Deputy District Attorney

-

VICTIM SERVICES : 10810 Justice Center Drive, Suite 240 * Rosevitle, CA 95678-6231 « 916 543-8000 » FAX 916 543-2594
MULTI-DISCIPLINARY INTERVIEW CENTER: 10810 Justice Center Drive, Suite 230 * Roseville, CA 95678-6231 » 916 543-2530 » FAX 916 543-2539
AUBURN JUSTICE CENTER: 2929 Richardson Drive, Suite C, Auburn, CA 95603-2687 * 916 543-8000 + FAX 530 886-3889
LAKE TAHOE OFFICE: 2501 N. Lake Blvd. ¢ P.0. Box 5609 * Tahoe Citv, CA 96145-5609 » 530 581-6348 » FAY. 530 581-6357
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R. SCOTT OWENS PLACER COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

DISTRICT ATTORNEY 10810 Justice Center Drive, Suite 240 * Roseville, CA 95678-6231
916 543-8000 » FAX 916 543-2550
www.placer.ca.gov

April 24, 2015

Conflicts Level #1
Attn: David Cohen

Re: Anna Rugg, case #62-034689
Dear Dave:

You represented this defendant for a crime that occurred
in March 2003. The defendant, as you probably remember was
sentenced to 7 years to life for her part in this matter—
codefendant was Shawn Michael Rodriquez. Your client plead
guilty after Mr. Rodriguez went to trial and was convicted of
Conspiracy to Commit Murder. This is the case where the victim
was locked in a holding cell of the old abandoned Juvenile
Hall. Your client and Rodriguez tried to extort property from
the victim. Later they tried to kill the victim by carbon

— monoxide poisoning. The victim and Rodriguez are housed at the
same prison (Folsom) currently. The victim has now indicated
that he lied about how deep the water was in the holding cell
of the old Juvenile Hall. However, the water level was not
material to the conspiracy to commit murder. The police
described the water level when they freed the victim from the
holding cell and a cousin of Rodriguez testified regarding the
way in which Rodriguez tried to kill the victim. I am
enclosing the DVD of the victim’s recent information regarding
this case for you to decide what if anything this means. I do
not believe the recent information contained on the DVD would
exonerate either defendant and was not material to any issue in
this matter. If you have any questions give me a call.

Very truly yours,

R. SCOTT OWENS, DISTRICT ATTORNEY

BY://tgi)

William D. Marchi
Deputy District Attorney

- VICTIM SERVICES : 10810 Justice Center Drive, Suite 240 * Roseville, CA 95678-6231 » 916 543-8000 » FAX 916 543-2594
MULTI-DISCIPLINARY INTERVIEW CENTER: 10810 Justice Center Drive, Suite 230 * Roseville, CA 95678-6231 * 916 543-2530 « FAX 916 543-2539
AUBURN JUSTICE CENTER: 2929 Richardson Drive, Suite C, Auburn, CA 95603-2687 * 916 543-8000 * FAX 530 886-3889
LAKE TAHOE OFFICE: 2501 N. Lake Blvd « P.O. Box 5609 » Tahoe City, CA 96145-560¢ + 330 583-631% » FAY, 530 581-6332
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PROOF OF SERVICE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF PLACER )

I, the undersigned, declare:

That I am a citizen of the United States.
That I am over 18 years of age.
That I am a resident of Placer County, California.
That I am not a party to the within action.
. That my business address is Placer County
District Attorney’s Office, 10810 Justice Center Drive,
Suite 240, Roseville, CA 95678-6231

6. That I am readily familiar with the business
practices of the County of Placer for collection and
processing of correspondence for mailing with the United
States Postal Service on the same date of placement for

collection.
7. That on this date I served a copy of the within

s wN PR

Response to Order to Show Cause

X by placing a true copy thereof and placing it for
collection following ordinary business practices and
addressed as follows:

[] transmitting said document(s) by facsimile to the
number (s) set forth below:

E] personally served said document (s) to the person(s) at
the address(es) set forth below:

PLACER COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
(Served at front counter)

Executed under penalty of perjury this 26th day of
August, 2015, at Roseville, Placer County, California.

(CCP 10133, 2015.5) {D ' s |
] 4(2’ ij T tir

Pat Mathews,
LEGAL SECRETARY
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Shawn Rodriguez V16387

CSP-SAC-B5-217
P.0.Box 290066

Represa,Ca. 95671

Superior Court of the State of

California,County of Placer

\5

Department 3 CI\'1'CD 3 Hon.Mark S. Curry
In Re Rodriguez #V16387) Case No:WHC-1400
On Habeas Corpus ) (62-34689)
) Motion Requesting initiation of

Contempt Proceedings,and/or a
finding of Contempt,and sanctions
against Deputy District Attorney;

Defendant's Declaration in Support
To:The Honorable Mark S. Curry,Department 3,Placer county Superior Court

I,Shawn Rodriguez #V16387,do declare the Following:

1)I am the Petitioner In the Abovecaptioned case,proceeding in Pro Per;

2)On August 26,2015,Deputy District Attorney William Marchi did,Knowingly
and Intentionally,Submit claims to this court which he knows to be False,in an
Effort to use his own Perjury to secure a conviction he has obtained by use of
perjured testimony;

3)Having Submiited a Document Sworn by him,under penalty of Perjury,Mr. Mar-
chi,did attempt to perpetrate a fruad apon this Court,to wit:

4)On page 2 of his response to the 0SC,he claims that Responding Officers
removed the Victim from the Holding Cell,implying to the Court that it occured
without incident;in fact Mr. Marchi is well aware,Due to his participation in
the Preliminary Hearing and trial Proceedings,that,contrary to what he would have
this court believe,It was not understood,by anyone,that the door could be cpened,
and as such,responding officers Contacted the Auburn Fire Department to help
free the Victim(CT pg 58); '

5)0n page 5 of his response,he claims that the Petitioner was not successful
in an attempt to kill the Victim due to"the hose Kept coming out of the Exaust
pipe",while he spent the entirety of the trial trying to convince the jury that
the petitioners misleading statement to the Codefendant that fifteen minutes
was enough,when creating pluasible cause to leave the scene that would leave the
victim alive,was evidence that the petitioner had quit only because he thought

the victim was dead,Not,as he would have the court bellieve,simply becuase it did
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not work.

6)On Page 6 of his response,he claims that the Petitioner admitted to Duct
Taping the Bottom of the Holding Cell Door.Not only is this False and misleading,
given the water flowing out the bottom of the Door,continuously,It is not even
possible for this to have happened;

7)Most Importantly,on pages7&8 of his response,Mr Marchi hif attempted the

most outlandish fraud:he claims,on page 8,that on April 7,2015,ﬁ?fqﬁamman,the
Victim in the case at bar,the A.G.'s office received the first peice of informa-
tion indicating that False Testimony had been adduced at trial,Calling it"The
first time after 12 years".In fact,as will be discussed later,he attempts to use
this claim in conjuntion with another,to diminish the Crediblity of the admission
by the Victim...However,a look at his Exibit"A" to the response tells a much
different story:

8)The Exibit,A report from Placer County District Attorney's Investigator
Jeff Potter,Indicates,at Paragraph four, i :. that Bill Marchi,and the D.A.s
office,has been in possession of two additional letters from the Victim,one of
which was addressed to Former District Attorney Bradford Fennochio,who has not
been in office this year.

9)Not only is Mr. Marchi well aware of these letters,the opening line of the
April 7,2015 letter Makes reference to a prior letter sent to the A.G.s office,
and,as Petitioner Has repeatedly been denied Discovery on this issue,we still
cannot rule out that a)there are other letters,or that b)the Letter to Bradford
Fennochio is not much older than currently,conservatively,thought:

10)Cn page 13 of his response,Mr. Marchi states that"ultimately the victim
gave up his property so that the Defendants would contact the police to let him
out of the cell."This is a falsehood designed to make the court think that the
kidnapping allegation was predicated on these events,which is an outright lie.
All throughout trial,Mr. Marchi told the Jury that it was the threat of death by.
drowning that caused the victim to surrender his property.The "Substantial Like-
lihood Of Death"special Allegation is irrelevant:The jury was told that if they
found that the fear of drowning,as a proximate result of the petitioner's cond-
uct,was the Cause of the Victim surrendering his property,than they must make
a finding of guilt as to the 7-Life 209 charge.

11)Knowing this as he does,after spending the better part of 2003 arguing it,
Mr. Marchi now commits perjury to dissuade the Court from finding now that the
current attacks miss their mark,when in. fact he knows firsthand that they are
precisely on target:the lack of Intentional confinina:and the use of force or

fear to extort property completely undermines the verdict under attack:

2
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12)On page 14 of his response,he again makes this Demonstrably false claim,
even going so far as to cite the Reporter's Transcript(RT),but a Look at the cite
reveals the depth of his deceit:(RT 237,line 14)"He said'you got one choice,
either give up your ATM card,keys,cash,or youre going to drown.'"

13)To be clear,these are answers by the victim,at trial,elicited by Bill
Marchi personally,so he cannot in any way claim to be unaware that he is lying to

the court on this point.At line 16,we continue:

Q. At that point were you starting--were you afraid--
A. Yes,sir.

Q. ——for your safety?

A. yes,sir.

Q. And what did you say back to Mr. Rodriguez?

A. I said,"Let the water out,"and I'd give it to him.

1l4)very clearly,the items were allegedly given as a result of fear of death,
a fear allegedly brought about by the water level,and just as clearly,Mr. Marchi
knows this,and knows that he Fruadulently attempted to use his perjurous version
of the RT to indicate otherwise,hoping that the court would just take his word for
it;

15)Lastly,the Respondent claims,at page 8,10,and in his Exibit "A",that both
the Petitioner and the Victim are in "Folsom Prison" and can communicate between
their separate facilities through a fence of some sort.He knows this to be a
falsehood,or he should,given that he,or his representative has been,here,to
California State Prison-Sacramento (Not Folsom Prison) and seen that several
hundred,if not thousant feet,and two- and three-story concrete walls,sveral inches
thick and rebarred,separate the facilities.Several of these walls.It is a flagrant
lie that communication is possible between the three facilities,and records will
prove that the Inmates in question were not housed on the same facility until
May 1,2015,and only for 15 days,separated by walls and staff the entire time,
with no opportunity to privately converse.

16)The fraud perpetrated by Mr. Marchi is to serve two exponential purposes:
First,misinforming the Court about the location of the Inmates does bring to
mind images of an old prison with lax security,and images of communication of this
nature taking place,from hollywood movies,so that,second he can fraudulently '
claim to the court that this happened and thus undermine the credibility of the
victim he once championed,and whose credibilty he vehemently argued for.

17)As stated,there is factual evidence to show that Députy District Attorney

3




perjured himself before this court concerning these Matters,Namely,the Transcripts

14

1 |Eor Placer Case #62-34689,the Report by Investigator Jeff Potter,Pictures of the

2 prison from above,which would be provided by prison officials at the courts reg-
hest ;and testimony of witnesses,the two letters from the victim reference in the

3 report by the Investigator,Mr. Potter(Which still,to date,Have been denied to the

4 |petitioner in violation of Brady V. Maryland);

5 ~ . o .
Btatutory support for findings and sanctions

6

7 Blacks Law Dictionary defines Perjury as:"The act or an instance of a person'sg
deliberately making material false or misleading statements while under ocath."

8 California Business and Professions Code §6068(d) states that the duties of
9 |an attorney include"To employ,for the purpose-of maintaining thé causes confided
10 to_him or her,those means only as are consistent with truth,and never to seek to
mislead the judge or any judicial officer by an artifice or false statement of

1 fact or law."
12 The commision of an act involving moral turpitude,dishonesty,or corruption
13 ronstitutes a cuase for an attorney's suuspension from practice.Moral turpitude,
roadly defined,is conduct that is contrary to justice,honesty,and good morals.
{ zada V. Sinclair,86 cal Rptr 387)
15 An Attorney's misrepresentation of a fact to a courtfor the purpose of obtain-
16 1ng a continuance,that was a deliberate deceit and a willful obstruction ofthe

drderly processes of the court,amounted to an intentional violation of his duties
17 lis a member of the Bar and officer of the Court,and Constituted contempt.(Vaughn
18 [Y- Municipal Court of Los Angeles Judicial dist.,60 Cal Rptr 575)

The concealment of facts from a court,when it is an attorney's duty to speak

19

amounts to deceit and may form the basis of a charge for contempt.(Daily V Sup-—
20 jerior court,4 cal app 2d 127)
21 (Dealing Specifically with Concealing letters relevant to pending litigation)

2 ..he admitted he did not disclose the letter's receipt or its contents to the

kourt.Under business and professions code 6068(d) and 6128(a)an attorney has an

23 unqualified duty to refrain from acts that mislead or deceive the court.(Sullins
24 [Y_State Bar of California,125 cal rptr 471)
B&P C § 6068(d) (Duty of Truthfulness),requires an attorney to refrain from

25 ||. . . . .o . .
> isleading and deceptive acts,without qualification or exception.(Rodgers V State

26 1256 cal rptr 381)
27 Attorney's for plaintiff breached their duty of candor and truthfulness to

Hhe court and the defendant under Ca. Rules of Professional Conduct 5-200,5-220,
28 4
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@nd B & P Code §6068 by repeatedly asseting that there was no evidence supporting
defendants position when,in fact,there was such evidence.(Oliner V. Kontrabecki,
2009 Bankr LEXIS 639)

The offense of misleading the court need not be successful,but merely tend

to mislead,in order to violate this section.(Pickering V. State Bar of California,
24 cal 2d 141)

The presentation to a court of a statement of fact known to be false presumes

ection(Pickering,supra;Vickers V. State Bar of California,32 cal 2d 247)

in intent to secure a determination based thereon and is a clear violation of this

It is not necessary that actual harm result to merit disciplinary action
against attorney where actual deception is intended and shown.(Coviello V.
State Bar of California,45 cal 2d 57)

Under Business and Professions Code §6068(d),the conduct denounced is not

the act of an attorney by which he successfully misleads the court,but the pre-
sentation of a statement of fact,known to him to be false,that tends to do so.It
is the endeavor to secure an advantage by means of falsity that is denounced.
(vaughn, supra)

A member of the State Bar should not under any circumstances attempt to
deceive another person;whether or not any harm is done,an attorney's practice of
deceit involves moral turpitude.(CutlerV. State Bar of California,78 Cal Rptr
172)

B&P Code§6068(d) unqualifiedly requires an attérney to refrain from acts
that mislead or deceive the court.Concealment of material Facts is just as mis-
leading as explicit false statements,and,accordingly,is misconduct calling for
discipline.(Di Sabatino V. the State Bar,27 Cal 3d 159)

Counsel May not offer testimony of a witness that he knows to be untrue,

since to do so may constitute subornation of perjury.(People V. Davis,48 Cal 2d
241)

An attorney who attempts to benefit his client through use of perjured test-
imony may be subject to criminal prosecution as well as severe disciplinary
action.(The People of the State of California are the D.D.A.'s client for pur-
poses of this section)(In RE Branch,70 cal 2d 200)

Untruthful testimony from a Deputy District Attorney,following reversal on

Brady grounds,did not support dismissal of an information in the absence of an
impact to a fair resolution of the case:;however,the reveiwing court did not con-
done the breach of the prosecutor's ethical obligations under B&P Code §6068(d).

(People V. Uribe,132 Cal rptr 3d 102)

Presentation to a court of an account that an attorney knew to be misleading
5
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is ground for disciplinary action.(Clark V. State Bar of California,39 cal 2d 161)

"A member shall not Suppress any evidence that the member or the member's
client has a legal obligation to reveal or to produce."(California Rules of Pro-
fessional Conduct,Rule # 5-220)

Suppression of favorable Evidence vioates Due Process.(Brady V. Maryland, 373
U.S. 83)

Prosecution's obligation under Brady to disclose exculpatory evidence ext-—
ends to impeachment evidence,and to evidence that was not requested by the defense
(Paradis V Arave, [9th Cir]240 £3d 1169)

Even an inadvertant failure to disclose information may constitute a Brady
violation.(Bailey V. Rae[9th cir 2003]339 F3d 1107)

Under Brady and its progeny,the State violates Due Process when it suppress-—
es or fails to disclose material Exculpatory evidence.(Richter V. Hickman, [9th
cir.2008]521 F3d 1222)

There is a duty on the part of the Prosecution,even in the absence of a re-

quest thereof,to disclose all material evidence favorable to the accused.(Peo-
ple V. Ruthford,14 Cal 3d 399,406)

Conclusion

The suppression of substantial material evidence bearing on the credibilty
of a key prosecution witness is a denial of due process within the meaning of
the 14th ammendment.(People v. Ruthford,Supra.)

Wherefore,the petitioner requests that this court issue an order to Deputy
District Attorney William Marchi,requiring him to show Cause,if he has any,why
he should not be judged in civil and criminal contemp of court by reason of his
actions,as alleged above,and should cause not show,levy sanctions against him
by way of fines,suspension from practice of law,and or imprisonment in the Coun-
ty jail as reccommended by the California Penal Code.

Additionally,the petitioner requests the court take notice that this
filing is not a Traverse responsive to the District Attorney's response to this
court's OSC.The traverse will be submitted,separately and expiditiuosly,upon
petitioner's receipt and reveiw of the items requesed in the prior formal and
informal discovery requests,which,thus far,have been completely ignored not only

by the People.but this court as well for some reason

N [0 N N
[+ -] ~ N oy

Lastly,The petitioner urges this court to consider that,while he is technic-
ally represented by the Public Defender's office at this time,a refusal by the
superior court to receive and consider the filings of a Pro Se litigant,in the

absence of action by appointed counsel,could be construed by a reveiwing court as
6
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an abuse of discretion which denies the petitioner Due Process,and a Judicial
sanctioning of ineffective Assistance of counsel,as the petitioner,by this filing
and the filings of August 23,2015,seeks to overcome a lack of experience and
expertise in Habeas Proceedings on the Part of Appointed Counsel,without alien-
ating counsel prior to evidentiary hearing,which would be The Public Defender's
area of expertise,not that of the petitioner.

Please note,that petitioner in not seeking to anger or alienate the court,is
not merely being recalcitrant,or arrogant,or even any hint of beliéerant:he seeks
only to highlight the existaence of strong and weak points in himself and the
public defender's ofiice and an attempt to make do and vindicate a right to fair
adversarial proceedings and Assistance of counsel,as guaranteed by the rights
articulated in the 5th and sixth ammendments.

It is not unprecedented for a court to acknowledge Appointed Counsel in an
assisting,as opposed to a representation,role;indeed,in the first of two written
communications from the public defender's office since th issuance of the order,
Martin A. Jones does characterize his role and intentions this way:"I received
notice by mail that I was appointed to assist you with your writ on August 10,
2015."

I do declare under penalty of Perjury as defined by California Law and its

analogous Federal Stautes that the foregoing is true and Correct.

Tiguez #V16387

,at Represa i, fornia

Executed this 16th Day of September,201f
o
S

©driguez #V16387

C.C.:0ffice of Chief Trial Counsel

The State Bar Of California
845 S. Figueroa street
Los Angeles,Ca. 90017-2515




PROOF OF SERVICE

(C.CP. §§1013(a); 2015.5; 28 U.S.C. §1746)

I, __shawn Rodriquez #v16387  , am over the age of eighteen (18) years,
and I (am) (am not) a party to the within cause of action. My address is:

Shawn Rodriquez #V16387
CSP-SAC-B5-217

P.0.Box 290066
Represa,Ca. 95671

On, september 20,2015 , I served the following documents:

Motion For Contempt Proceedings,Sanctions,Against DDA William Marchi

on the below named individual(s) by depositing true and correct copies thereof in
the United State mail in Represa, California, with postage fully prepaid thereon,
addressed as follows:

Placer County Superior Court Martin A. Jones Esq.

Department 3 Richard A. Ciummo and Associates
1.10820 Justice Center Dr. 2. 11760 Atwood Rd.Ste.4

Roseville,Ca. 95661 Auburn,Ca. 95603

State Bar Cheif Trial Counsel Placer County District Attorney =

845 S. Figueroa St. 10810 Justice Center Dr.Ste.240
—rLos Argetesyca. 90017=2515—— = ——FRoseville;Ca.- 95678

I have read the above statements-and declare under the penalty of perjury of
the laws of the State of Califomia that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed this __ 2oth day of september , 2015 , at California State
Prison - Sacramento, Represa, California.

(Signature)

S@d{ﬁuaz #V16387
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Shawn Rodriguez#Vv16387

CSP-SAC-B5-217 & \8 e X §
P.0.Box 290066 \O

Represa,Ca. 95671

Superior Court of the State of California
County of Placer

In Re Shawn Rodriguez) Case#WHC-1400
On Habeas Corpus) (62-34689)
In Dept 3

)

Hon. Mark S. Curry
Petitioners Traverse
[Ca. Rules of Court 4.551(e)]

Petitioner hereby responds to the People's Response to the Order to Show

cause (0SC) in the above captioned Habeas Proceedings,As follows:

Denial
The Return"Must allege FACTS tending to establish the legality of the
Petitioner's Detention."(People V. Duvall, [1995]9 C4th 464,at 476)More than the

existance of a judgement and sentance are required.The factual allegations in
the return must be responsive "To the allegations of the petition that form the
basis ofthe petitioners claim that the confinement is unlawful."(Duvall,Supra)
"General Denial" is insufficient to place the facts alleged in the petition in
dispute. (Duvall,Supra;In Re Lewallen,[1979]23 C3d 274@258).

"any Material Allegation of the Petition not cotroverted by the return is

deemed admitted for purposes of the proceeding."[Ca. Rules of Court 4.551(d)]
"Return must be responsive to allegations of petition."[Duvall,Supra,@474;
In Re Connor, (1940)16 Cc2d 701 @711;People V. Green, (1980)27 C3d 1@43 n.28]

The people have not,therefore met their burden and,as a colorary,have not

placed facts in dispute enough to a)require an evidentiary hearing,or b)deny
the truth of the allegations made in the Petition,which form the basis for re-
lief the OSC is predicated on. ‘

The extent of the People's response seems to be'"yes,false testimony was
used,we knew it,but who cares?we have a conviction,that is enough."

As will be shown,the two other points made by the people fail on their own
lack of merit;a)Nicholas Hamman cannot be trusted,and b)if he is,only so far as

their investigator deems appropriate,and only regarding what they Misrepresent
to the Court as Fact,when in reality is a perjurous misstatement of the trial

record.
1
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Material Allegations

The court issued an OSC persuant to the claim of Newly Discovered Evidence,
Specifically,Recantation by a witness who happens to be the Victim,the only
victim,and therefore,the STAR witness,who admits giving false testimony at
a trial proceeding which affected the guilt and sentancing phases of the pet-
titioners court proceedings.

As such,the OSC requires response to the following material allegations;

1)False Testimony was adduced at trial which was Significantly Probative
on the Issues of Guilt and/or Punishment;

2)The allegation that Petitioner used a ruse to lure the victim into the

- crime alleged was false and a fabrication;

3)The allegation at trial that Petitioner Physically Assualted the victim
to Accomplish the purported Aggravated Kidnap for Extortion was False and a
fabrication;

4)Therefore the Allegation that the Petitioner participated in the 7-Life
crime and its planning,and its allegations tending to support that theory were
Falsehoods and a fabrication;

5)The Victim,Nicholas Hamman has stated that he saw the petitioner take
the hose out of the vent,preventing any real danger to him,consistent with the
claims of the Petitioner at trial,and the omission of this at trial amounts
to False Testimony bearing on the conviction of the Petitioner and his sentanc-
ing;

6)There was an allegation made that the victim was invited to commit
perjury,by the people;

75The Bruise Alleged to have been given by the petitioner and the kick
that caused it were False and fabrications;

8)The Petitioner,Contrary to the Claims of the People at trial,was not
anywhere near the victim when he was Kidnapped by Ms. Rugg.and the Claim that
he was is false and a fabrication;

9)The claim that the water was caused to rise to the level of the Victims
neck/shoulders to cause sufficient fear to extort the victim with the threat of
death,was false and a fabrication;

10)The Claim that the victim saw the petitioner attempt to remove the
screws of the window to facilitate escape of the victim,the omission at trial
of which was false and a fabrication;

11)These facts tend to negate the notion of the petitioners intent to kid-
nap the victim for purposes of extortion and render that verdict void;

12)These facts tend to negatizthe notion of the Petitioners intent to
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commit a crime extended to a specific Intent to Kill Nicholas Hamman,therefore

rendering the verdict as to that Crime Void as well.

Response to OSC

In their Response to the OSC,the People Do Not expressly deny a single
allegation made in the petition,which results in the Material Allegations of the
petition,each and all,being deemed admitted,as a matter of Law.

To the extent that the Response is aimed at any material allegation,it

“has only addressed the Water Level in the Room Mr.Hamman was confined in at the

time of the Extortion/Robbery.

In their respcnse,the People Allege that Yes,false testimony was adduced
re this issue,which seems to be perfectly fine with them,but that is was not
significantly Proba¥i¢?on the issue of quilt or of punishment.

Their argument seems rooted in another perjurous claim:that the alleged
extortion was a result of a promise by the Petitioner that Mr. Hamman would be
released should he reliquish his property,and the People Even quote the RT in
thier argument,hoping,probably,that the Court will just take their word for
it(and why shouldnt they think this-How often does a judge question the People
or their claims?)

However,as stated in the Petitioners request for contempt proceedings and
sanctions against the people for their perjury,they are lying to the court,pre-
tty blatantly.Referring the court to the trial transcript,the Reporter's Tra-
nscript (RT) page 237,starting at line 14,these are questions asked of the vic-
tim,Nicholas Hamman,by the Prosecutor,William Marchi,who is also the Author of

the Peoples Response to the 0OSC:

A. "He said'You got one choice,either give up your ATM card,keys,cash,or
you're going to drown.'"

Q. At that point were you starting--were you afraid——

A. Yes,sir.

Q. —-—-for your safety?

A. yes,sir.

Q. And what did you say back to Mr. Rodriguez?

A. I said,"Let the water out,"and I'd give it to him.

Obviously,at trial,the People presented to the jury a theory that the cha-
rge of Aggravated kidnap for extortion was predicated on the extortion being

accomplished through fear of death,which in turn was predicated on the victim-
3
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s claim that the petitioner caused the water level to reach the height of the
victim's shoulders/neck,then threatening death by drowning.

The People have gone to great lengths to gain evidence that yes,it is true
that this was a fabrication,and willingly admit to using it at trial.

They now must stick with the consequences of it,they cannot change the
prosecutions theory after trial;Courts time and again have ruled against such
practice,as it denies a Defendant/Petitioner Due process and the right to con-
frontation of witnesses and to present evidence and a defense,as they were not
given notice.

The facts being what they are,being forced to rely on the trial record and
having no other facts in dispute,an evidentiary hearing does not seem neccesary
to grant the Petitioner a new trial as to the affected crimes/verdicts.

However;knowing that it is never that easy for justice to prevail and that
the deck is stacked to heavily favor the side opposite a criminal defendant,we
will itemize a further denial to the response.

Express Denial
On page 1,the people make reference to "officers...Hamblin".this is factual

error,and the petitioner beleives the people mean to refer to Officer Stanley
Hamelin of the Auburn Police Department; ,

On Pg.2 the people Allege that the victim was simply removed from the
room in that building,and the petitioner disputes this,as it is well held that
the Auburn Fire Department was called to "Extricate Hamman from the Cell".

On Pg.3 the People Allege that the petitioner pushed the victim into the
cell,the petitioner disputes this,as he presented at trial that it was not
so and the victim has now come to admit this as a fabrication;

On Pg.4 the people Allege that the Water level in the room was up to the
Victim's shoulders and that this was used to extort ‘the Victim,The petitioner
disputes this and refers the court to his testimony at trial and the Current
recantation of the victim;

On Pg.4 the people Allege that Witness"romines indicated that Rodriguez
and Rugg told him about the water level in the cell and that Rodriguez and Rugg
were planning to kill the victim by filling the cell with water",The petitioner
disputes this as false and perjurous,as Mr. Romines Testimony covers Pg.sl152-186
of the RT,and NOT ONE SINGLE TIME does he say that,in fact,on Pages 173(Line
2) and 181 (Line 6),among others,Mr. Romines says exactly the opposite of what

the People are trying to convince tha court;
On Pg.5 the people Allege that the petitioner was not successful in the
alleged attempt to kill the victim with Carbon Monoxide"Since the Hose kept
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coming out of the exaust pipe.",Petitioner Disputes this,as it was clear at the
Preliminary hearing and at trial that the petitioner told Co-Defendant Rugg

they should leave after 15 minutes and convincing her that it was enough,without
actually believing this to be true himself;

On Pg.5 the people claim that Rugg told the Attendant to Check the Women's
Bathroom, this is factual error,there was no Women's Bathrobm,Rugg used an Em-
ployee Restroom;

On Pg.6the People allege that the petitioner Admitted to a plan to "Gas
the victim in the Cell" and would like the court to infer that he therefore
admitted to intent to kill the victim by that act-this is a smokescreen and
the people are well aware that the petitioner maintained,from arrest to the
present,that he had no intent to kill the victim this or any other way,and had
only agreed to the plan assuming it would not harm the victim and that it would
pacify Codefendant Rugg and Buy him time to find a way out of the situation;.

On Pg.6 the People State that the petitioner Admitted to Duct taping the
Bottom of the Holding Cell door,Petitioner Disputes this as it is no where in
evidence and is,indeed,not physically possible,given the continuously flowing
water beneath that door;

On Pg.6 the Peopledllege that the Petitioner Attached the Hoses to the
places indicated and attempted to "Gas" the Victim to death;What the People do
not tell the court while telling them this,is that virtually in the same breath,
the Petitioner also stated that he a)removed the end of the hose from the Vent,
and b)never intended,in any way,for the victim to be harmed by the actions.
described.Indeed, he was not.Therefore,Petitioner disputes the People's present-
ation of the allegation as untrue and misrepresented;

On Pg. 7 the people characterize the perjury of the victim at trial as a
"Discrepancy",the petitioner diputes this as an attempt by the prosecutor to
minimize the affect of the illegal actions described;

On Pg.s7-8,the People describe the lettér received at the D.A.s office on
April 7th,2015 as"the first time after 12 years" that the victim has attempted
to bring all this to light.Petitioner Disputes this and points to the People's
own investigator and his statement,that William "Bill" Marchi gave him two
letters sent to the Placer County District Attorney's Office from the Victim.
These letters are still,at the writing of this document,being suppressed by the
People,despite three written requests by the petitioner.The existence of these
prior letters and the one alluded to in the first sentance of the one in evidence
which was the catalyst for these instant proceedings,proves Mr. Marchi an out-
right Liar and a Perjurer,and also dispute,on their own,this allegation:

5
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Also on Pg. 8,the People claim that the Victim and the petitioner were at
"Folsom Prison" together at the time.This Demonstrably false claim was to serve
two purposes:to have the reveiwer envision a 100 year old prison where,as seen
in films,both parties could communicate through a fence,and to therefore,con-
vince the reveiwer that this was all set up by the Petitioner and victim working
in cahoots to swindle the court and legal system.Petitioner Disputes this claim,
pointing out that he has never set foot in folsom prison,and is currently,and
for two years prior,housed at California State Prison Sacramento,which is HUGELY
separate and different from Folsom Prison,and where the two prisoners Cannot
communicate as Perjurously described,because they are separated by over 1,000
feet of Space Occupied by 20+ foot high concrete walls averaging a foot thick,
with rebar.The two have not ever been housed near eachother previously.If that
is not enough to show this claim for what it is,What about the other Three
letters,which pre-date the one at issue?Why have these letters been hidden so
thoroughly from the petitioner?;

On Pg. 10 the people Allege that the true water level was not known to them
until April 2015,Petitioner disputes this,and refers the court to,againthe
prior letters,but also to the Transcripts of interveiws with Richard Romines,
Anna Rugg,Shawn Rodriguez,all Conducted by the People's Agents pre-trial,which
told of a water level inconsistent with the claims the People presented,or
allowed to be presented,uncorrected,at trail;

On Pg.l2,the People Allege that the fabricated Water Level and its story
as presented to a jury at trial would have no Bearing on the Verdict redered
as to the Conspiracy to commit murder charge,Petitioner,while maitaining that
the other Fabrications also affect this,will dispute this by asserting that:

The verdict,as evidenced by the Post trial Affadavits from the Jurors,which are
a part of the Clerks Transcript(CT)was already on very unstable footing,with
several jurors Claiming to have found no Specific Intent to kill.A further look
would show that,were there any finding that the petitioner DID have this intent,
it must be based on testimony at trial,which,when accumulated,convinced a jury
that the petitioner had the Capacity to kill,had a callous disregard for the
victims safety,was indifferent to his plight or his pleadings.

A Drawn out story about how the Petitioner Watched the victim suffer in
fear,callously disregarding his safety while the water reached his neck,and

still demanding the victim's property,exploiting his fear,and reveling in his

" pleas for help...would very obviously have been a factor that influenced the

jury to believe the petitioner might have had intent.The Petitioner thus
disputes the Peoples claim:without this information,they might have decided to

6
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him not guilty of Conspiracy to commit Murder;

On Pg.12 The people Allege that if the Current Evidence of False Testimony
Adduced at trial is found true only to the extent they claim(While The petitioner
Does Not Stipulate to their very skewed version of the current information)and
does nothing to upset the 25-1life Conviction,it has no effect on the conviction
and sentance imposed as to that crime;Petitioner Disputes this claim,asserting
that without the 209,several factors covered by various Due Process are affected.
For instance,One less felony count would neccesarily force a reduction of
restitution.One "Life"sentance instead of "Multiple Life Terms"affect several
aspects of prison life that implicate due process issues,such as Custody level,
Classification Score,Access to employment and rehabilitative programs bearing
on parole eligibility and ability to earn wages which pay restititution,ect.

Thus,Petitioner very much disputes the Peopie's VERY Narrowminded and
ignorant view of the implications of the sentances they seek to impose,and
how those discretionary choices affect defendants in general and the petitioner
in particular,in the DECADES that follow;

On Pgs 13,14,and 15,the People again attempt to decieve the Court by
claiming that they did not argue the case to the jury in the light of Extotion
based on fear of death,caused by the water level.Petitioner Again disputes this
series of claims the same way as before:The Trial Record indicates,glaringly,
that they are lying:they predicated their allegations at trial on the theory
that the petitioner used the water level to cause fear,and used that fear to
extort.Further this developed an image in the minds of the jurors that the
petitioner was that person,who did that,which affected their decisionmaking
as to the Conspiracy charge as well.

Without the Water level at his neck,alot changes,such that"the Outcome
might have been Different" as to both of the "Life"term charges.

Analysis of Statute

The People Claim that some trial court is now to determine whether this
evidence is"worthy of belief by..."some"...Jury."

This is not the case.

Currently we find ourselves in the position where it must be decided if,
but for the False Evidence,it is "reasonably Probable" the out come"Might"
have been different.

To Support its erroneocus standard,counsel has misquoted and misapplied
a small handful of state cases,most of which were decided prior to the revision
of applicable law to the less stringent reveiw that we see today,where a peti-

tioner need not prove Knowing Use by the Prosecutor.
7
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firstly,the People make Reference to Minnick,and while that case does in-
struct that recantation should often be veiwed with suspicion,it does not say
that it is never worthy of consideration.But,see People V. Smallwood, (1986)228

Cal Rptr 913:"Even if the recantation of the trial testimony was not reliable,

these events cast some doubt on the credibility of (Insert witness name here)
as a witness."

Killing two birds with one stone,lets skip ahead to the people's citation
of the Larry Roberts case:29 Cal 4th 726-While related to the issue here,this
case is severely distinguishable,preliminarily because it was decided based on
the Knowing Use of Perjured Testimony standard,and the petitioner has made it
perfectly clear in this case that,while it is "Newly Discovered evidence",and
that the People May have known it was perjured,the argument that has been persued

is False Testimony,which comes with a less stringent standard of reveiw.

Next,The Declarant/Wihess refused to testify at the reference hearing,and
thus,a determination Re credibility could not be made by the reveiwer.This is
not the case here.

Last,similar to Sassounian,and helpful to the petitioner here,was the det-
ermination that:"Because Long has made inconsistent declarations,it is clear
that he has lied at some point.%.

... "But would not reverse based on a declaration without personally ass-
essing credibility in reference hearing.Thus,Petitioner,by witness refusal to
testify at reference hearing,failed to show that the conviction was based on
false testimony." . ’

There are other commonalities that would serve to guide us here:In that
case,Prison records were used to prove that those two prisoners were within 6
cells of each other in AdSeg.Here,prison records can prove that petitioner and
Victim were not ever in that sort of proximity,and also that the victim was
in close proximity to those witnesses currently volunteering testimony as to
his admissions of perjury.

Moving now to In RE Weber,yes,it is appropriate to"veiw the offer of a wit-
ness,after trial,to retract his testimony,with suspicion."That does not seal
the deal and bar reveiw though.

A reveiw of that decision is telling...While very similar to the case at
bar,several factors,not present here,were considered in the denial of that case.
First,and again, It was a newly discovered evidence case,not a Case of
False Evidence adduced at trial,as is here,and thus,the standard of reveiw was

more stringent.Under that other standard the petitioner could not "Point un-
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erringly to innocence".

Next,as was made clear,"In the present case,on the other hand,there was corro-
boration for Devins' testimony,while Owen's testimony merely raised an issue of
credibility without providing the petitioner with a complete defense establishing
innocence."

Wwhile explaining that one of the reasons for denying the petition in the
Weber case was the existence of other evidence which outweighed the recantation
of a single,peripheral witness,they went to the trouble of specifically dis-
tinguishing it fromPeople V. Williams,57 Cal. 2d 263,where,similar to the case

at bar,"The sole evidence of the defendants guilt was the testimony of a single
witness...'Whose"testimony was uncorroborated,and,subsequently,four unbiased per-
sons executed affadavits which provided the defendant with a complete defense..."

Argueably,Williams is a template for the relief sought here,where the vic-
tim is the sole witness which contradicts the defense theory of the case,and
where several unbiased witnesses,including the victim himself,have provided evi-
dence such that "A complete defense"has emerged;that is,that as a defense,it
has been shown that he is guilty of other crimes,similar and related,yes, but
not those currently used to sentance him to multiple "Life"terms in prison.

Is not a"Reduced Culpability" both a defense and a reason permitting
granf of a habeas petition,in accordance with statute?

It should also be pointed out thaf,upon close inspection,the bases for
such suspicion regarding witness recantation seems to be born of the overwhelming
numbers of victims of sexual molestation who are guilted into recantation by
their family members,who often are related to the perpetrators of the crimes.Of
course this makes perfect sense that in case after related case the petitioner
read related to this issue,the victim,often a child,was stigmatized so badly,or
outcasted from their family or peers,or guilted,that they chose to eat crow and
retract their statements rather than bear the brunt of their disenfranchisement
as a result of their testimony.

Again,that only points to the need for subjective and individual review of

recanting witness declarations;hence the purpose of the Evidentiary hearing.

Conclusion
Petitioner Generally denies the Allegations made by the People in their
response to the 0SC,andExpressly denies those items as stated herein above.
Petitioner Reallges all the Material Allegations set forth in the petition,

and incorporates the petition by reference.
Petitioner asserts that as a matter of law,the people have not made a show-
9
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ing of cause to deny the petition,and similarly that in their admission of facts
not disputed,they have not disputed enough facts to require an Evidentiary hear-—
ing,relying instead on the record and the evidence presented by document.

A case has been made that false testimony was indeed presented at trial,
and it was significantly probative on the issues of guilt and of punishment,and,
if not for whichever degree of false evidence is accepted as true by the reveiwer,
the result Might have been different,thus reversal is required,and the People
may conduct a new,and more fair,trial of the petitioner on the facts which
remain now,if they choose.

Overwhelmingly,the courts,in their opinions,make the decision here very
distinct and simple:Abiding by the parameters of the "False Evidence"rubric,
does the evidence,taken as a whole,serve to undermine the reveiwers confidence
in the results of the trial?

The petitioner votes "Me¥ ‘and hopes the courts agrees.

It is clear that the victim lied,to whatever extent,at trial,motivated by
vengeance,enticement,romance,or any other reason or combination of reasons.
There is a clear legal doctrine that has shifted over the last several
decades to almost exclusively working For the prosecution,rarely against it,due
in part,to an assumption that the fella on trial must be dishonest or dishonor-
able,one would guess.Even so,it does make its own sense:"Falsus en uno;Falsus en
Omnibus."

For those of us who didnt go to law school or take Latin:False in one
thing;False in all.

So where is the Appropriate place to draw the line between true and false
here?To err on the side of caution,one must first determine which side caution
lies with.

Petitioner would argue,naturally,that it is his side.

The facts tend to agree:The totality of the evidence available for reveiw
including the record and the current offerings by both sides,but also the pre-
trial interveiws of witnesses;even the ones who did not get infront of the jury,
seems to paint a picture consistent with the current allegations:No Kick or
shove to force the victim into that room;no luring of the victim into the build-
ing;The petitioner was not present at the time the kidnap or false imprisonment
occured; there was no intent to kill;it was all a snowballing situation that got
out of hand,could have been handled differently,but the level of malicious
intent was not at all what it was made out to be at trial.

The totality of the evidence for reveiw,consistent with Evidence Code
§210 and People V. Cain,10 Cal 4th 1(@32)(Relevant evidence means evidence,in-

10
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cluding evidence relevant to the credibility of a witness or hearsay declarant,
having any tendancy in reason to prove or disprove any disputed fact that is of
consequence to the determination of the action."...the trial court is "Vested
with wide discretion in determining relevance under this standard.")is indicative
of a very shaky verdict to begin with:The jurors went to great lengths to tell

us that they were uncomfortable with it.There was evidently doubt already:it
could have gone either way.

Now come several revelations,any of which could have been that straw that
would break the Proverbial camel's back,that would tip the scales.

And this is evidence that beat the 0dds:It is clear from recent developments|,
like the inadvertant admissions by Investigator Potter that the D.A.s office has
hidden exculpatory evidence,and even now that the cat is out of the bag,so to
speak,will not disclose it,or a transcript of their 4-23-15 interveiw of the
victim to the petitioner...Its clear as day that they have not been playing fair;
where does that end,but more important,where did it start?What else is unknown?

It is particularly significant that the victim has gone to such great
lengths,after so long:Even the recipient of the criminal acts feels that this
has gotten out of hand,has gone way too far.

After almost 13 years,he went so far as to write at least four letters;when
the first two were ignored by the Placer County District Atdorney,he went above
their heads,to the State Attorney General!He somehow got ahold of the Appellate
Court case numbers;The petitioner Doesnt even have his in memory,and had no
idea that Anna Rugg had Appealed her Plea Bargain.

That is compelling.

And one must wonder:Why the sudden change?all of a sudden its just a
twenty inch difference in water level...but he desires a private meeting with
counsel for the petitioner?Why?What is he afraid of saying in a more public forum
like non-confidential mail?

And does the court really buy that after all this time and effort,his
Conscience is eating at him over that twenty inch difference in water level?

This seems unlikely.

So we make our way back around to two ifmportant questions:

Inside proper context amd perspective,is this all significantly probative
on the issues of guilt and punishment such that without the falsehoods a diff-
erent result Might have been rendered?

And is this all such that cafidence in the trial proceedings must be
questioned?

The word "Yes" can change a life for the better;"No"virtually ends it.

12
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For the reasons stated above,the petitioner prays this court issue the
Writ,reverse the findings of guilt as to the charges of Aggravated Kidnap for

Extortion and Conspiracy to Commit Murder,and order a new trial.

Respectfully submitted this 17th day of October,2015,b

Rodriguez #V16387

I,shawn Rodriguez #V16387,Declare the foregoing to be true and correct to
the best of my knowledge and belief,and as to those items stated on belief,I do
believe them to be true,under penalty of perjury as defined by the Laws of the
State of California and its analogous Federal Statutes.

z

Rodriguez #V16387

Executed this 17th Day of October,2015,at Represa,California,by

. <:fc§bag§&ﬁg§;i?uez #v16387

13




PROOF OF SERVICE

(C.C.P. §§1013(a); 2015.5; 28 U.S.C. §1746)

I, Shawn Rodriguez #v16387 , am over the age of eighteen (18) years,
and I (am) (am not) a party to the within cause of action. My address is:

CSP-SAC-B5-217

P.O.Box 290066
Represa,Ca. 95671

On, _october 18,2015 , I served the following documents:

Petitioners Traverse/Denial

on the below named individual(s) by depositing true and correct copies thereof in
the United State mail in Represa, California, with postage fully prepaid thereon,
addressed as follows:

Placer County Superior Court Martin A. Jones Esg.
10820 Justice Center Drive 11760 Atwood Road Suite 4
1. Roseville,Ca. 95661 2. Auburn,Ca. 95603

Placer County District Attorney
10810 Justice Center Dr.Ste.240
T Roseville Ta.95678"

I have read the above statements and declare under the penalty of perjury of
the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed this 1sth day of october , 2015 , at California State
Prison - Sacramento, Represa, California.

(Signatur e

15
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Shawn Rodriguez #V16387

CSP-SAC-B5-217

P.0.Box 290066 1\S
Represa, Ca. 95671 %

Superior Court of California

County of Placer

Department 3 Hon. Mark S. Curry
In Re Rodriguez ) Case #WHC-1400
On Habeas Corpus g (62-34689)

Petitioner's Augmentation of

Exibits in Support of Petition
for writ of Habeas Corpus

(Ca. Evid. Code§210;People V.
Cain,10 Cal 4th 1)

Having discovered another witness to victim Nicholas Hamman's Admissions

to Perjury in the 2003 trial of Case#62-34689,People V. Shawn Rodriguez,and
obtained a Declaration Under Penalty of Perjury regarding such,the Petitioner

in Placer County Case#WHc-1400 hereby submits it to this court as Exibit "N"

to the Petition For Writ of Habeas Corpus

Attached as Pages 2&3 to this motion,Offered as Discovery and served to

The People by mail before the decision of the court or possible Evidentiary
Hearing,it does not prejudice the ability of The People to effectively and fair-
ly litigate the case at bar.

Indeed,The People,in their Response to the Order to Show Cause, have implied
that they have no wish at all to comment on the Affadavits of the petitioner's
Witnesses or their veracity,and as this newest witness only restates what has
been previously alleged in the case at bar,no prejudice can be claimed or
assumed.

As such,Petitioner hereby submits the Sworn Declaration of Mauro Moreno
CDCR#V31661 as Exibit "N" to the Petition.

I declare the Foregoing to be true and correct under Penalty of Perjury,as

Defined by the Laws of the State of California;Tfijj/f§éf%gfff,ﬁﬁd95al Statutes
Al
. CRodtiguez#V16387
+tloner

Executed this lst day of November,2015,at Represa, i{prnia, by

Wguez V16387




PROOF OF SERVICE

(C.C.P. §§1013(a); 2015.5; 28 U.S.C. §1746)

I Swew g /\ZOC\QL.‘SU-CK , am over the age of eighteen (18) years,
and I (am) (am not) a party to the within cause of action. My address is:

CaP-sAc- BS * 2/F
P-L. Box 24906 ¢
Qé\?\’t%x Ce. GSTIF|

On, A 2-15 , [ served the following documents:

Augm«\%érww 3% Zxkas

on the below named individual(s) by depositing true and correct copies thereof in
the United State mail in Represa, California, with postage fully prepaid thereon,

addressed as follows: B
Place . (ouiy gca?e;:'\c- (oot

10e1e Soonvice Cewder DT,

1. ZoseoiNe. Cu. A5 Bl 2. J\c\(‘x;‘,; A Sopes ZES
NZeo Abmted 2A Sk Y
Placee (ooady DC&‘K\.:A—)&L;:& Adpoce- (e, QLo 3
t-‘

10210 Seerilce. ‘(‘m\)«gc D3
LescoNe, Ce. qa5629

I have read the above statements and declare under the penalty of perjury of
- the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed this 2 day of Nowewde( , Zows , at California State
Prison - Sacramento, Represa, California.

(Signature) -
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Shawn Rodriguez #V16387
CSP-SAC-B5-217
P.0.Box 290066
Represa, Ca. 95671 "
p ! \\. -z S \5

In Pro Per

Superior Court of California
County of Placer

In Dept.33 Case #WHC-1400

In regard to
(62-34689)

Shawn Rodriguez
on Habeas corpus Hon. Mark S. Curry

Petitioner's Motion Stipulating

— e e s

to withdrawal of the Public
Defender as Counsel of Record;
Reinstatement of Pro Per Repre-
sentationjRequest for"Neccesary
Defense Services";Request for
Disposition of motions filed
previously.

To the Honorable Mark S. Curry,and the District Attorney of Placer
County,Please take note that on December 2,2015,at 1:30 p.m.,in department 33
of the above captioned court,or as soon thereafter as the Matter may be heard,
the Petitioner willmove this Court for the Following:a)Petitioner will stip-
ulate to the motion by the Public Defender to withdraw as counsel of record;b)
Petitioner requests to represent himself in Propria Persona;c)Petitioner requests
the Court order"Neccesary Defense Services";and d)Will respectfully request this
Court make Disposition of the motions filed by the Petitioner,dated as Follows:

1)8-23-15 Motion for Discovery;Bail/O.R.;trial Transcripts

2)9-20-15 Motion for Contempt proceedings against the Placer D.A.

3)10-18-15 Petitioner's Traverse

4)11-2-15 Motion to Augment Exibits to Petition

This motion is based on this notice of motion and the attached Memorandum

of Points and Authorities and Petitioner's Declaration in support.

Memorandum of points and Authorities

Stipulation to Withdrawal of counsel
Having initially moved this court to appoint Counsel due to the extreme

difficulty presented by the circumstances of prison life,Petitioner is now of

the opinion that,for the reasons articulated in this section,Pro Per represen-
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tation seems the lesser of two evils in this situation.

The "Legal Corporation" of Richard Ciummo and Associates seems ill
equipped and unprepared to prosecute Habeas Corpus Proceedings.Indeed,their
Assistant Chief Defense Counsel,Martin A. Jones evinced at the outset that he
was not sure if he was adversarial to the State Attorney General or the Placer
D.A.,and had to have this explained to him by the petitioner,who in August
took measures to brief him on the case developments he had‘missed,by mail.

Inexperienced in Habeas Law and the practice of representation of,and
communication with,a client by mail,Mr. Jones has not been communicative with
the Petitioner in a manner which could be construed as productive.Written
Communication since the OSC was issued consists of Approximately 165 words over
the course of two missives.Each of these had something provided by the D.A att-
ached:the Summary of the D.A's investigator the first time,and the response to
the 0SC the other. .

In fact,Petitioner did provide counsel,per his request,with Transcripts
of Pretrial interviews of the victim and Codefendant Rugg,by mail.Attached was
a letter to counsel,with seven,numbered,questions.When finally the materials
were returned,the letter was also returned,with no reply whatsoever to any of
the questions or the statements.The letter is still in the possession of the
Petitioner. '

The rest of the efforts to communicate are thus:Petitioner made express
request that a Face to Face meeting be had before a traverse was filed.On
9-18-15,Mr. Jones Conversed® with the Petitioner for Approximately thirty
minutes,and took three notes on a notebook page:A note to ask the District
attorney to hand over the Two letters received at their office from the victim
prior to the filing of the petition;a note to ask the Attorney General's Office
to provide the Last missing letter from the victim,and another note,about the
transcripts mentioned above;In October,Petitioner Spoke by phone,for thirty of
the sixty seconds GlobalTelLink(The Prison Collect Call phone Service Provider)
allows free to First time call recipients,the other thirty was spent on hold.
Prior to this,Petitioner was routinely hung up on by the Receptionist for coun-
sel,and arrangements still have not been made to facilitate phone contact with
counsel.During that call,Petitioner was finally able to confirm receipt by
Counsel of the Abovementioned Transcripts. '

Petitioner was grateful to be served with a copy of counsel's motion to
withdraw,as he had spent the entire month of November 2015 assuming that the

court had filed a traverse of some sort and would,any day,be calling him to
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Evidentiary hearing or some proceeding Any Day.

Having now received the motion,provided almost Two weeks after it was filed
by counsel,as an afterthought,Petitioner at least now knows What has been
transpiring,unbeknownst to him,in the case that will affect the entirety of
his life.

To be blunt,Petitioner can see no action taken by Counsel other than two
requests for extension of time,the most recent of which being completely unnec-
cesary and a waste of Everyones time.While having claimed to have left a copy
of the Interveiw of the victim conducted by the D.A.'s investigator on 4-23-15,
for the Petitioner,with prison officials,it never materialized,and questions
about this went unanswered.To date,Two letters that were admitted to be in the
possession of the District Attorney's office have somehow not been obtained by
counsel,the disclosure of which is required by law,and has been requested by
the petitioner several times.Similarly,the first letter sent to the Attorney
General's Office has not been Aquired by counsel,not even after the Petitioner
Requested it by mail explicitly(A copy of the request was submitted to this co-
urt on 8-26-15).0n 8-23-15,Petitioner formally requested access to the file
kept at trial by Public Defender Counsel Jesse Serafin.A copy of that request
was also sent to this court.It went unacknowledged by counsel.

If the parties in posession of the abovementioned exculpatory evidence
have dragged their feet or refused a request by counsel to provide lawful
discovery,a motion to the court compelling discovery,by appointed counsel,has
not been forthcoming,to the petitioner's knowledge.

The net profit of the Petitioner's Request for appointment of counsel
seems to be sixty days of wasted time and frustration,for himself,and probably
for the court as well.The hope that,as a result of the truth finally coming to
light,that the petitioner would spend the first Christmas since 1993 with a
blood relative,seems to be completely unfounded due to the time lost to
failure to prosecute.

For these reasons,Petitioner Realistically fears the result of continued
representation by the "Legal Corporation"of Richard Ciummo and assoéiates,and
even while the case cited by counsel in his motion picks up exactly where he .
left off in his motion and continues by permitting this court to allow hybrid
representation"when the interests of justice support such an arrangement,"the
fear remains even under those circumstances.

Cognizant of the time required to acclimate substitution counsel,and desir-
ing to get to the heart of this matter as soon as possible if it will facilitate

3
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reunion with his family and entry to the workforce at the job being held for him,

Petitioner will forego request of Substitue Counsel.

Pro Per Representation

For the reasons articulated above,and having mentioned these issues in
his previous filings with this court,Petitioner moves this court to allow him
to assume representation In Propria Persona.Should the Court have any doubts,
the petitioner would at this time call the courts attention to People V. Marsden,

(1970)2 C34d 118,and assert that there does exist a conflict that cannot be
overcome,between counsel and the petitioner,and,of courseFarretta V California,

(1975)422 U.S. 806.

Request for Services

The Public Defender having cited People V. Moore, (2011)127 Cal Rptr 3d 2,
the Petitioner will now elaborate in his request for services:"The Federal and

state Constitutional Provisions concerning the Assistance of €ounsel for cri-
minaldefendants Include the right to access reasonably Neccesary Defense ser-
vices.depriving a Self-represented defendant of all means of presenting a def-
ense violates the right of Self-representation under the sixth Ammendment to
the Federal Constitution.thus,a defendant who is representing himself or herself
may not be placed in the position of presenting a defense without access to a
telephone,Law Library,Runner,Investigator,Advisory Counsel,or any other means
of developing a defense.But the 6th Ammendment requires only that a self rep-
resented defendant's access to the resources neccesary to present a defense be
reasonable under all the circumstances. In assessing the reasoableness of the
access provided under all the circumstances,institutional and security concerns
...may be considered in determining what means will be accofded to the defend-
ant to prepare his or her defense.”

In the prosecution of the instant petition,the petitioner plans for the
requirement of an evidentiary hearing if the Court does not agree with the
assertions of the Traverse,which are that the People Have not met the burden
neccesary to require the hearing.

As such,it will be neccesary to produce witnesses and documents,by Sub-
peona,which,in some cases,will entail locating the witnesses or documents,and
and in some cases,making requests by phone or person that would preclude the
expenditure of time and resources aséociated with the use of Subpeonae.in add-

ition,interveiw of witnesses to further develop facts and evidence, as well

4
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asservice of documents that need be served by a non-party to this action will be
impossible for the Petitioner.

As such the Petitioner will move this court for the following,should it be
decided that the petition cannot be decided on the documentary evidence sub-
mitted thus far,requiring an Evidentiary hearing:1)An order to the California
Department Of Corrections and Rehabilitation to Stop Violating Ca. Code of Reg—
ulations,Title 15,§3139(b),and allow the petitioner to contact the inmate
Witnesses by mail.(Petitioner has already utilized the proper vehicle to attempt
lawful approval of contact by mail.This Effort and the Administrative Appeal to
overcome the arbitrary denial of the right articulated in CCR§3139(b),was met
with a refusal to even process the Administrative Appeal in CDCR log#SAC-B-15-
03041.);

2)Use of a regular,Non-Collect-Call phone in a confidential setting during
reasonable hours and for reasonable periods of time to conduct buisiness in
furtherance of litigation:

3)The use of ,or funds for,a "runner' and/or Investigator to conduct that
buisiness outside the realm of prison and beyond the reach of the Petitioner;

4)A competent and willing member of the Bar Association in good standing
who may be contacted for priviledged dialogue concerning advice or guidance in
Ehe furtherance of the pendent litigation.(Being Familiar with the case and held
in high esteem by the judges of the Third District of Appeal,David Cohen Esg.,
conflict Counsel for Codefendant Rugg in 2003,comes to mind.)

Disposition of previously filed documents
The Petitioner here incorporates by reference and renews the requests set
forth in the motions and the Traverse filed by him previously in this court.
Specifically,Petitioner would like some reaction by the court to the motions
filed on 8-23-15,9-20-15,and 11-2-15,as well as the Traverse filed on 10-18-15.
On a related note,Petitioner would call the courts éttention toCalifornia
Rules of Court,rule 4.551(f),and,bearing in mind the Public Defender's Assertion

in his motion,that the Traverse was filed in court on October 21,2015,and,30

days having elapsed,and the Extension of time to December 2,2015 never having
bean communicated to the Petitioner,would very respectfully beg this court to
render a decision soon if it can,please.After thirteen years incarceration,if
relief is to be found with this court,the Petitioner is very eager to return to

his family,go to work,and catch up in life,to put this unfortunate chapter of

his life far behind him.
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I, Shawn Rodriguez,do declare under penalty of perjury,as defined by the
laws of the State Of California and its analogous Federal Statutes that the
foregoing is true and correct to the very best of my knowledge and belief,and

as to those matters stated on beleif,I do believe them to be true.

e

Sha odriguez #V16387
er

Executed this 21lst déy of November,2015,at Represa, California,by
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EXHIBIT

DeSCI'iptiOIl if this exhibit:Declaration of Petitioner Shawn Rodriguez in support
of Motion to stipulate;For Pro Per;For Defense Srvices;

and for disposition of previously filed motions,ect.

Number of pages to this exhibit: 2 pages.
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Declaration of Petitioner Shawn Rodriguez

In support of November 21,2015 motion

I,Shawn Rodriguez,Do declare the following under penalty of Perjury,as
defined by the Laws of the State of California,and its analogous Federal sta-
tutes:

1)I am a party to this action;

2)I am currently represented by the Placer county public defenders office;
3)I have experienced several conflicts with the counsel of record,including

a communication barrier that cannot be overcome,and a lack of action on the

part of Appointed counsel that places their performance below any reasonable

contemporary standard of practice and which renders the assistance ineffective

4)Counsel has not provided me any real updates regarding the status of my
case,and as such,has forced me to assume that nothing has been done and to the-
reforec file my own documents;

5)This issue has been exacerbated by the inaction of counsel, the cause of
which could not be determined by the petitioner,including a failure to obtain
Exculpatory evidence,at least as far as can be ascertained by the declarant,as
well as the unneccesary delay in the filing of documents with the court to
prosecute the petition which the representation is predicated on:

6)Counsel has refused to answer specific questions posed to him in writing
which are relevant to the case at bar,and refused to provide copies of evidence
he admits to possessing which are material to the case at bar;

7)0On September 18th,2015,during a very short visit in person,counsel was
made aware of the filings of the petitioner and the plan to file a traverse
independently by the Petitioner,and his response was the prediction that the
court would simply deny the filings,no admonishment against such action was
given,nor indication that he would quit as a result;

8)on November 5,2015,counsel scheduled a legal visit with the Petitioner
at the California State Prison-Sacramento and simply never showed up,causing
much confusion and expenditure of institutional resources as aresult,a good
example of the character of the representation rendered thus far:

9)No mention of a second request for extension of time in this case was
ever communicated to the Petitioner,nor confirmation of any extension granted
by the court,either in September or October 2015,thus petitioner was left,
without choice,to assume,in October,that it was time to file the Traverse;

1@)Petitioner has,on several occasions,requested discovery of material,
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exculpatory evidence known to be in the possession of the Placer county Dis-
trict Attorney's office and that of the Attorney General,and has been uniform—-
ly ignored and denied access to this evidence:

ll)Petitioner is still without the second half of the reporter's Transcript
of the trial in 2003,portions of which are at issue in the case at bar,rendering
the provision of the transcript very much neccesary;

12)As another demonstration of the deficiency of counsel,Petitioner would
point out that Counsel,during the September 18 meeting mentioned that the
extent of his research into the trial was to read the decision rendered in
the Direct Appeal of the case.With the central issue of the Petition here
being the trial testimony of the Victim,and its details,thisapproach seems
ridiculous;

1301, shawn Rodriguez,Do declare the Foregoing to be true and correct to
the very best of my knowledge and belief,and as to those matters Stated on
belief,Y believe tham to be true.I declare so under penalty of perjury,as defined
by the Laws of the State of California and its analogous federal statutes.

Executed this 21st day of tiovember,2015 at Represa,California,by

Shawn \Rodriguez V16387




PROOF OF SERVICE

(C.C.P. §§1013(a); 2015.5; 28 U.S.C. §1746)

I, shawn Rodriguezivl63a7 , am over the age of eighteen (18) years,
and I (am) (am not) a party to the within cause of action. My address is:

CSP-SAC-B5-217 .
P.0.Box 290066
Represa,Ca. 95671

On, November 22,2015 , [ served the following documents:

Motion stipulating to Withdrawal of counsel,ect,w/ Exibits

on the below named individual(s) by depositing true and correct copies thereof in
the United State mail in Represa, California, with postage fully prepaid thereon,
addressed as follows:

1. placer County Superior Court Clerk Placer county District Attorney
10820 Justice center drive 10310 Justice ceatar drive
Roseville,Ca. 95661 nosawille 0205578

Richasd] CiummosAssociates
11760 atwood rd.suite 4
Auburn,Ca. 95603

I have read the above statements and declare under the penalty of perjury of

- the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed this 23 day of november
Prison - Sacramento, Represa, California.

(Signature) %

- >

ar

, 2013  , at California State




49 : PLACER COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT
ARRAIGNI' T /PLEA /JJUDGMENT & SENTENCE

Date:12/2/2015 Court met at: 1:30:00PM  Department: 33 Judicial Officer : Mark S Curry
Rodriguez, Shawn - In Re the Petition of Case Number: W-HC-0001400
ture of Proceedings: Motion Hearing Case Status:

ited Case Information:PD Withdrawal
ndditional Case InformatioAttorney Withdrawal

Clerk: Renee Harmon / Reporter: Teresa Munz Kenworthy Custody Status: Petitioner
Defense Counsel: / Q CNes DDA; “\QQN— -
Interpreter: [ Certified [] qualified Language: V[ oathonfile
NEXT COURT APPEARANCE: Time Estimate
o Lortt 1 —raen \/\PC\\QF SuDMission
@iendam pmermnot preseii. dered booked/released rob summasly revoked E Prob. Reinstated
waived [ JAcn completed [ JViol of prob ised pymt of bodking/ W ordered. Bail § [INCIC
Appt.  [JPublic Defender [[JConflict Firm incarceration fees. [ JArrest warrant ordered
Advised fimancial resp. W Held [ JO/R revoked
ot guilty nied Arbuckle Waiver W recalled | ] Whrrant remains active
uilty lo contendere [ ] Admitted Appeal Waiver forfeited| |Exonente [ JForfeiture set aside
[[JViol of prob[_] Mandatory Sup Vid [ Jstipulate to Pro Tem [ Bail is Reinstated [ ] Reinstatement fee is waived
[IPRCS Viol [ ]Parole Vioicn CLETS fled & served [JDeferdant skl pay reinstatement fee
PLX time waived [ 110 [[J60 [ not waived Amended CLETS filed & served  Reinstatement [] hls not based upon payment
Trial time waived [ Jto next date [ Jgenera [] not waived Dropped from calendar [IBail © be ap;ixed to fine
[[]Time waived for sentencing ["JRPO waived [C]Civil assessment ordered
ismissed [CJGivil assessment confirmed Defendant ordered to report to the:
ded fiminal Division ic Defender
oykin/Tahl rights waived. [JOml [JWrstten evenue Services [ |Probation Department
[JPreliminary examination waived [ JComplaint deemed Information [JForthwith [ JOn
oof [} Shown [ JNot shown [OBAC_____[(IDUI with Drugs
tend & provideproof of _______ self help meetings perweek until fucther order of the court
! . [JTmanscrpt request date Reporter, requested by [ JCourt [ JDeferse Counsel [ [District Attomey
ull nsultation [ JGeneral [ JEC730 [(JEC1017 [JPC1368 [JPC1026 [JPC288.1 [JW13051
Reqmted by ut A [JDefense, with Dr.

[(Doubt declared, criminal proceedings suspended [ JReferred to MH Director for placement report [ JPlacement report reviewed by cout.
IC st firds Defendant [] IS NOT ordered suitsble for MHC [ ] IS suitsble & placed in

[CJOn stipulation of parties, waive jury trial, proceed to court tral, submit on repart dated
Court finds Defendant [] IS campetent to stand trial, criminal proceedmgs reinstated [ JISNOT campetent to stand trial
JRequest for newjail turn in date [ Jgranted Ddena.d Newijd! tumin date Previors jail rurn in date,

EEB N TOCH\ OGN —{C Ao 0% \&ﬁ*\\i QA?
e eoeey VS Q\T“Q e\
C

—
[JREMANDED to custody of Sheriff until next appearance. Bail [ s set or$ [Jcpc CICRC [JPCiim ) [JPC1roghy(s)
[] Committed to state hospital
[(JDISCHARGED (present case only) [ ] RELEASED OR [] OR Terms on backof form Supervised: [ JOR Release [] Bail [ [Pretrial EMP
— [[] Committed to custody of Sheriff until sentenceis satisfied: Jail Credits ( actual+ goodtime+. pretrial)
PROMISE TO APPEAR-- 1 will appear atall tinxs and piace s as avie red by the Carrt a nd bare read andn nderstand all conditions set farthon reserse side of this farm
Defendant’s signatre Address

Defendant Jad RevenueServices Probaion DA Defense Counsel shared/print shop forms/Criminal/Arraignment Plea Minutes  Revised 62012
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IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF owies Shattors
BYA K
e et cter
DEPARTMENT 3 HON. MARK S. CURRY, JUDGE
IN RE PETITION FOR WRIT OF Case No.: WHC 1400
HABEAS CORPUS, 62- 34689
COURT ORDER SETTING
SHAWN RODRIGUEZ, EVIDENTIARY HEARING.
#V16387
Petitioner.

Procedural History

The petitioner is serving a life sentence for his 2003 conviction for -
conspiracy to commit murder, kidnapping for extortion, Vehicle Code 10851,
and Penal Code 530.5. The conviction was affirmed in the court of appeal on
January 4, 2005. [People v. Rodriguéz 3rd DCA #C045882 unpub.] On July|
24, 2015, the petitioner caused to be filed in the Superior Court a petition
for writ of habeas corpus. Upon review of the petition, the Court found a
prima facie case for relief was stated regarding the issue of whether there
was new evidence in the form of the recantation of a material witness. The
Court issued an Order to Show Cause to the respondent and appointed the
public defender to represent the petitioner for this writ. Subsequently, on
August 27, 2015, the respondent (Placer County District Attorney) filed a ’
“response.!” The petitioner, through his counsel, filed a request to extend

! The correct response should have been a “Return.” The return ... must allege facts establishing the legality of thj
petitioner's custody. In addition to stating facts, the return should also, “where appropriate, ... provide such

-1 -
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the time to file a Traverse, however, in the meantime, the petitioner filed
his own Traverse on October 21, 2015, and a motion “stipulating to the
withdrawal of the public defender.” On December 2, 2015, the public
defender withdrew their representation citing the petitioner’s desire to
represent himself.

Evidentiary Hearing Ordered

In their “response,” the People do not dispute that the witness
Hamman has recanted portions of his prior statements and trial testimony,
however, they argue the recantation is not material and does not affect the
petitioner’s ultimate conviction. Further, they suggest the witness’
recantation is not credible. However, the People did not attach any trial
exhibits, transcripts, or even a copy of the actual letter written by the
witness for the Court to review to make such a determination. In his
Traverse, the petitioner’s disputes the People’s rendition of the trial evidence
and its significance.

Accordingly, the Court will order this matter to be set for an
evidentiary hearing to allow the Court to review the trial evidence, the
alleged recantation, and to permit the parties to argue their respective
positions regarding the significance and materiality of the witness’ alleged
recantation.

The Court directs the clerk to calendar the matter for January 13,
2016, or soon thereafter, in Department 33, for a hearing setting
conference. [The actual evidentiary hearing will be set thereafter once the
petitioner is personally present] The People are directed to prepare for the

documentary evidence, affidavits, or other materials as will enable the court to determine which issues are truly
disputed.” (People v. Duvall (1995) 9 Cal.4th 464.)
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clerk and the court an order for production sufficient to produce the
petitioner from the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitations for such

hearing.

It is so ordered.

Dated tifs/22™ Day of December, 2015.

ARK S. CURRY
UDGE OF THE SUPERIOR COURT
COUNTY OF PLACER




SUPERIOUR COURT OF CALIFORNIA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF PLACER

CLERK’S CERTIFICATE OF MAILING (C.C.P. §1013a(4))

Case number: WHC-1400
Case name: In Re: Shawn Rodriguez

I, the undersigned, certify that [ am the clerk of the Superior Court of California, County of Placer, and |
am not a party to this case.

[ mailed copies of the document(s) indicated below:
Court Order Setting Evidentiary Hearing

True copies of the documents were mailed following standard court practices in a sealed envelope with
postage fully prepaid, addressed as follows:

Placer County District Attorney
Attn: Bill Marchi

10810 Justice Center Drive, Suite 240
Roseville, CA 95661

Office of the Attorney General
Writ Department

1300 I Street, Suite 1101

PO Box 944255

Sacramento, CA 94244-2560

Shawn Rodriguez #V16387
California State Prison-Sacramento
P.O. Box 290066

Represa, CA 95671

Jeff Macomber, Warden
P.O. Box 290002
Represa, CA 95671

I am readily familiar with the court’s business practices for collecting and processing correspondence for
mailing; pursuant to those practices, the documents are delivered to

IX]the US Postal Service

C]ups

[]FedEx

[interoffice mail

[ClOther (via email)

On 12/22/15, Placer County, California

Dated: 12/22/15 //

¢ Placer County Superior Court
Fm— , Deputy Clerk

Form Adopted for Mandatory Use www.placer.courts.ca.gov
Superior Court of California, County of Piacer
PC-CW002 [Effective 4-23-15]



#1 PLACE .« COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT
ARRAIGNMENT /PLEA /JJUDGMENT & SENTENCE

Da;e_:ll13!2016 Court met at: 1:30:00PM  Department: Judicial Officer : Mark S Curry
I”  .guez, Shawn - In Re the Petition of Case Number: W-HC-0001400
Nawre of Proceedings: Habeas Corpus Case Status:

Related Case Information:Set Evidentiary Hearing/62-34689

Additional Case Information:

Clerk: Sheryl Steves /[, . ? Reporter: Ne~-Gourt-Reporter Custody Tétus: Petitioner
; DDA f

Defense Counsel: /

Interpreter: [] Certified [ ] qualified Language: I:] oatkan file
NEXT COURT APPEARANCE: /2 } Time Estimate
oord 12U 19D p3ES
%en‘c’ﬁnfp&seﬁ (ot preserr. rcered booked/ released %mh summarily revoked [_] Prob. Reinstared
vwaived [ trpleted [_[Viol of srob vised pymt of bodsing/ W ordered. Bail 3 [NCIC
Appt. Public Defender [_]C nflict Firm incarceration fees. [JAwrest warrant ordered
O vised fimancial resp. W Held [ ]JO/R revoked
INot guilty enied buckle Whaiver W recalled [ ] Warrant remains active
BGuilty lo contendere [_JAdmitted @\\Epeal Waiver %ﬁﬂ forfeited [_|Exonerate [_|Forfeiture set aside
[Jviol of prob[] Mandatory Sup Vid [Bapulate to Pro Tem [ JBail is Reinstated [_] Reinstaterment fee is waived
[JPRCS Viol [[JParole Violaten TS filed & served [ [Defendant shall pay reinstatement fee
PLX time waived%l{) [¥0 [not waived Amended CLETS filed & served  Reinstaterment [ ] is h is not based upon payment
Trial time waived |_|to next date [ fenera [ not waived pped from calendar [IBail o beapplied to fine
[JTime waived for sentercing [_JRPO waived [CICivil assessment ordered
ismissed [JGivil assessment confirmed Defendant ordered to report to the:
mended riminal Division [ JPublic Defender
ﬁg{)ﬂnnf Tahl rights waived. [ Ol [ JWritten evenue Services Pcobauon Department
[Jpreliminary examination waived [ JCormplaint deemed Information [JForthwith [JOn.
P roof [ Shown [ ]Not shown [BAC [pu w1th Drtigs
ttend & provide proof of self help meetings per week until further order of the court
[JTranscrpt request date Reporter. requested by [JCourt [ JDeferse Counsel [[Distia Attomey

Consultation [ JGeneral [ JEC730 [JEC1017 [JPC1368 [JPC1026 [JPC288.1 [JW13051
Reqlested by: urt

A [[]Defense, with Dr.
[(JDoubt declared, criminal proceedings suspended [ JReferred to MH Director for placement report [ JPlacement report reviewed by court.
[CJCourt finds Defendant [ ] 1S NOT ordered suitable for MFC [T] IS suitable & placed in

[JOn stipulation of parties, waive jury tral, proceed to court trial, submit on repart dated
Court finds Defencant [_]IS campetent to stand trial, criminal proceedings reinstated [JISNOT competent to stand trial
E]Rr:quem for new]aﬂ turn in date [_pranted Ddemcd New]atl tum in date Previous jail turn in date

oy muebﬁﬁm{,

LY

ED to custody of Sheriff until next appearance. Bail setor$ [JCDC [CJCRC [(JPC1170(h) [JPC1170(h)(5)
mmitted to state hospital
- [ IDISCHARGED (present casconly) [ ] RELEASED OR [] OR Terms on back of form Supervised: [[JOR Release [] Bail [ Prewial EMP
[[] Committed to custody of Sheriff until sentence is satisfied: Jail Credits ( actual+: goodtime+____ pretial)
PROMISE TO APPEAR.- I will appear atall tines and phaces as adered by the Cavrt and bawe read andunderstand all conditions set fathon rererse sie of this farn.
Defendant’s signature Address

Defendant Jal  RevenueServices  Probation DA Defense Counsd shared/print shop forms/Criminal/Amraignm ent Plea Minutes  Revised 6-2012



#1 PLACHR COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT
ARRAIGNHENT /PLEA /JJUDGMENT & SENTENCE

Date:1/27/2016 Court met at: 1:30:00/°M  Department: 33 Judicial Officer : Mark S Curry
' levs. Rodriguez, 5 Case Number: 62-034689
N..ure of Proceedings: Further Proceedinqs Case Status:General Time Wawer 10/23/2003

Related Case Information:Set Evidentiary i4rg WHC/ WHC 1400
Additional Case Information: Other

Clerk: Renee Graham / Reporter: Ruth Eileen Hunter Custody Status: Sentenced Defendant
Defense Counsel: Placer County Public D<fender k \ oNe sy A:ﬂ\C‘)OY‘Q
Interpreter: [ certified [] qualified Language: ] oath on file
NEXT COURT APPEARANCE: Time Estimate
efencant present [_not presert. dered booked/released rob snmm:ily revoked D Prob. Rmnsmted
waived [_JArm completed [ JViol of rob vised pymt of bodking/ Wordered Bail§___— [INCIC
Appt. [JPublic Defender []C nflict Firm incarceration fees. [ JArest warrant ordered
: Advised fimancial resp. ﬁlﬂd O/R revoked
ot gmlty Arbuckle Waiver recalled .| | Warmant remains active
% contendere [ JAdmitte [ Appeal Waiver il forfeited [ | Pxonerate [ JForfeiture set aside
[[JViol of prob [[] Mandatory Sup Vid [ Btipulate to Pro Tem [ Bail is Reinstated [_] Reinstaternent fee is waived
[JPRCS Viol [ ]Parole Viclation [ JCLETS filed & served [ JDefendant shall pay reinstztement fee
PLX time waived[ J10 [0 [Jnot waived Amended CLETS filed & served Retnstntmmtnshisnotbaseduponpaynmt
“Tiial time waived [ to next date [ Jpeneral [ jnotvaived | [Dropped from calendar [JBail © beapplied to fine
[JTime waived for sentencing [ JRPO waive [ ]Givil assessment ordered
EDismised [ |Givil assessment confirmed Defendant ordered to report to the:
Amended fiminal Division lic Defender
Boykin/ Tahl rights waived. [JOml [[JWr:ten emue Services [_|Probation Department
[JPreliminary examination waived [ JCorplz nt deemed Information [IForthwith[JOn___
/#‘-\ EProof [(JShown [JNot shown, - [Ora
Attend & provideproof o~ =2If help meetings per week until further order of the court
[OTranscoptrequestdate ___ Reporter requested by [ JCourt [[JDefense Counsel [ District Attomey

R"q’&“b”%% seneral [ JC730 [ JBC1017 [JPC1368 [ JC1026 [ JPC288 - [ w3051

[(IDoubt declared, criminal proceedings suspended [ Referred to MH Director for lacement report [[]: lacerrent report reviewed by court.

[ICoust finds Defendant [ IS NOT ordered suitzble for MHC [] IS suitble &placed in

[ IOn stipulation of pasties, waive jury trial, proceed to court trial, submit cn repart dated

Court finds Defencant [ ]IS campetent to stend trid, criminal rooeedmgs reinstated [ JISNOT ccmpels:nt to stand trial

[(JRequest for newjail turn in date [ Jpranted 'jdemed. Newjail tum in date Previous jail turn in date,
I
ED to custody of Sheriff until next appearance. Bail [ s setor $ Jcoc [JCRC [JpCumh) [JPCITO(h)(5)
mmitted to state hospital
™\ [IDISCHARGED (present case only) [ ] RELEASED OR [] OR Temms on backof form Supervised: [ JOR Release [] Bail [ JPretrial EMP
[[] Committed to custody of Shesiff until scatence is satisfied: Jail Credits ( actual+ goodtime+ _ pretrial)
PROMISE TO APPEAR- I vill gopear atall tivzs and phsces e« ardend by the Courtand bouw e andunderstand all conditons set fortb on mverse sith of this form.
Defendart’s signature, _Address

Deferdant Jal RevenueServices Probation [ 4 Defense Counsd shared/print shop forms/Crininal/Arraignm ent Plea Minutes  Revised 6-2012




#1 PLAC YCOUNTY SUPERIOR COURT
ARRAIGNMENT /PLEA /JUDGMENT & SENTENCE

Date:2/10/2016 Court met at: 1:??\:90PM Department: 33 Judicial (Aficer : Mark S Curry
Jaople vs. Rodriguez ontwn e Ca+e Number: 62-034689
*"lire of Proceedings: Further Prg):eed%ngs \6( Case Status:Genera: Time Waiver  10/23/2003

1<elated Case Information:Set Evidentiary Hrg WHC/ WHC 1400
Additional Case Informatio@ther

Clerk: Renee Graham / Reporter: Pam Ruth Katros Custody Status: Sentenced Defendan
Defense Counsel: Placer County Public Defendergme‘f) DDA W\QC)S"@
Interpreter: [] Certified [] qualified Language: [ oath on file
NEXT COURT APPEARANCE: .. Time Estimate
todrus Congerenty. O -+ 120 133
efendant presert ﬁnot presert. dered booked/released rot. summarily revoked [ ] Prob. Reinstated
waived [ JArm comrpleted [ JViol of prob ised pymt of bodking/ W rdered. Bail $ [NCIC
Appt.  [JPublic Defender []Conflict Firm incarceration fees. [JAmre -: warant ordered
M @Eviwd firancial resp. @: Ield [JO/R revoked
ot guilty ied buckle Waiver W :called | | Wamant remains active
@uilty lo contendere [JAdmitted peal Waiver il - >rfeited | |Exonerate [ JForfeiture set aside
[[Viol of prob[] Mandatory Sup Vid [ Jstpulate to Pro Tem [(IBail . Reinstated [ ] Reinstatement fee is waved
[CJPRCS Viol [[]Parole Violation TS filed & served [IDefe xdant shall pay reinstatement fee
PLX time waived | 10 []60 [ "] not waived ended CLETS filed & served ~ Reinst stement [ ishis not based upon payment
Trial time waived [ Jto next da [ general [] not waived pped from calendzr [JBail .» be applied to fine
[OTime waived for sentencing [ JRPO waived [ClCivil assessment ordered
E Dismissed [CJGvil assessment confirmed Def:ndant ordered to report to the:
Armrended dminal Division ic Defender
Boykin/ Tahl rights waived. [[JOml [ Watten &evem:e Services [_|Probation Department
[JPreliminary examination waived [_JComplaint deemed Information [JForthwith »'
Proof [ ] Shown [JNot shown CBAC [JDUL with Drugs
f’p\ Attend & provideproof o self help meetings perweek until further order of the court
[Jrransctipt request date Reporter, requested by []Court [ JDefense Counsel [ [District Attomey

Evaluatior: [ JFull []Consultation [JGeneral [JEC730 [JEC1017 [JPC1368 [JPC1026 [JPC2881 [ JWI3051
Requested by: [ JCourt | _JDA [[JDeferse, vith Dr.
[[IDoubt declared, criminal proceedings suspended [ JReferred to MH Director for placement report [_JP: wcement report reviewed by cout.
[ICaurt finds Defendant [] IS NOT ordered suitzble for MHC [] IS suitable & placed in
stipulation of parties, waive jury trial, proceed to coutt trial, submit on repart dated
Court finds Defendant [ IS competent to stand tridl, criminal proceedings reinstated [ JISNOT compete:t to stand trial
[CJRequest for newijail turn in date [ Jpranted [ Kenied. New/jail tum in date 2revious jail turn in date,

"

§@/ ED to custody of Sheriffuniil next appearanee-Bait s set or $ Wc’l:]cnc [JPcum) [JPC1mom(s)
O itted 1o state hospital | wrn 4o ¢

[JPISCHARGED (present case only) [ ] RELEASED OR [] OR Terms on backof form Supem;;:cDOR Release ] Bail [ JPretrial EMP

V' [[] Committed to custody of Sheriff until sentence s satisfied: Jail Gredits ( 2 tual+ goodtime+ pretrial)
PROMISE TO APPEAR-- | will appear atalltines and phies as aviered by the Carrtand bare real andirnderstand all conditions set farthon ererse sike o) bis farm.
Defendant’s signature __Address

Defendant Jai RevenueServices Probaton DA Defense Counsd shared/print shop forms/Crin: nal/Arraignment Plea Minutes  Revised 62012
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IN THE SUI ERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF PLACER

People of the State of Calift mnia CaseNo. WwHE  JHéo
Plaintiff, | warveror e AR LA |
PRESENCE (PC 979YPerSr Sov ot Placer ’T

VS.

SHawN @Obﬂlb—btfz'

Defendant.

The undersigned defe ndant, having been advised of the right to be present at all stages o;f the
proceeding, including but not limited to presentation of and arguments on questions.of fact and law, and
to be confronted by ant.i Ccross-examine all Witnesses, hereby waives the right to be present at the hearing
of any motion or other proceeling in this cause. The undersigned defendant hereby requests the court to
proceed during every absence of the defendant that the court may permit pursuant to this waiver, and
hereby agrees that his or her i: terest is represented at all times by the presence of his or her attorney the
séme as if the defendant were nersonally present in court, and further agrees that notice to his or her

attorney that his or her presence in court on a particular day at a particular time is required is notice to the

defendant of the requirement  f his or her appearance at that time and place.

Executed in open coui : on Feb. 10 ;2016 at Aubnrn, California
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James Shin, State Bar Number 169274

Chief Defense Attorne °r FILED

PLACER COUNTY PYJBLIC DEFENDER S"”’é%'uﬁ?y“g'f % Salifornia

11760 Atwood Road Sulte 4

Auburn, California 9560 JUL 05 2018

%elepholne (5(3? 30§§890g%§ 0 Jaks Chatters
acsimile: 0- 1

Martin A. Jones State Bar No. 250598 Exsoutive Officer & Glerk

Assistant Chief Defense Atto?ney By: T. Bernal, Deputy

Attorneys for Defendant

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF PLACER

In re: Case No.: WHC 1400

BRIEF REGARDING SCOPE OF
SHAWN RODRIGUEZ EVIDENTIARY HEARING

Petiti
etitioner, Date Jula, 15, 2016

On Habeas Corpus. Time:
eot: 3

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
L PROCEDURAL HISTORY

On August 3, 2015, the Court issued an Order to Show Cause. On August
26, 2015, the District Attorney of Placer County filed a Response to Show Cause.
(Hereinafter referred to as the “Return”, for clarity.) Petitioner filed a Traverse on
October 21, 2015.

On December 22, 2015, the Court ordered an evidentiary he:arin,c',7 in this
matter. The Court stated that the evidentiary hearing was “to allow the Court to
review the trial evidence, the alleged recantation, and to permit the parties to argue
their respective positions regarding the significance and materiality of the witness’
alleged recantation.”

/11
/17
/11

BRIEF REGARDING SCOPE OF EVIDENTIARY HEARING - 1




18
19
20
21
T 22
23
24
25
26
27

28

II.  DISCUSSION
A.  No Material Issues of Fact Exist That Justify An Evidentiary Hearing

“In habeas corpus procedure the return to the order to
show cause must allege facts tending to establish the
legality of the petitioner's detention; it is thus analogous
to the complaint in civil actions. [Citations.] The
traverse, which may incorporate the allegations of the
petition, must deny or controveri each material fact or
matter alleged in the return or such fact or matter will be
deemed admitted; it is therefore analogous to the answer
in civil actions. [Citation.] In this relatively
uncomplicated manner both factual and legal issues are
joined for review. [Citation.]” (In re Lewallen (1979) 23
Cal.3d 274, 277-278.)

Review on habeas corpus, unlike an appeal, is not limited to the trial record. |
However, when the People offer nothing more in support of their claim that
petitioner's confinement is lawful than a conclusory statement of ultimate fact in

their return, the People indicate a willingness to rely on the record. (Zd. at p. 278.)

“Because the issuance of an order to show cause reflects .
the issuing court's determination that the petition states
facts which, if true, entitle the petitioner to relief
[citations], the respondent should recite the facts upon
which the denial of petitioner's allegations is baséd, and,
where appropriate, should provide such documentary

evidence, affidavits, or other materials as will enable the
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court to determine which issues are truly disputed.” (/d.
at p. 278, fn. 2.)

In the Petition, which was incorporated by reference in the Traverse,
Petitioner Rodriguez alleged that the victim in the crime had perjured himself
during trial. The People, in their Return, did not dispute this fact, and argued as if
this fact were true. The central fact in this writ proceeding — that the victim offered
perjured testimony — is undisputed. The People did argue that the recantation itself]
was unreliable due to the delay in reporting the perjury and that “both the victim
and the defendant were both housed in Folsom prison at the same time.” (Return,
p. 8.) However, the People offered no “documentary evidence, affidavits, or other
materials” to support the allegation that the victim’s recantation was somehow
tainted or unreliable — as the Court noted in its Order Setting Evidentiary Hearing,
page 2. As cited above, while habeas review may reach matters outside the court
record, when a party fails to offer anything other than conclusory facts, that party
indicates a willingness to rely on the record. (See In re Lewallen, supra, 23 Cal.3d
at p. 278.)

The court in People v. Duvall (1995) 9 Cal.4th 464, developed an exception

to this arguably strict rule of construction.

“When one party (respondent for the return, petitioner for
the traverse) can allege: (i) he or she has acted with due
diligence; (i1) crucial information is not readily available;
and (iii) that there is good reason to dispute certain
alleged facts or question the credibility of certain
declarants, courts evaluating the return and traverse

should endeavor to determine whether there are facts

BRIEF REGARDING SCOPE OF EVIDENTIARY HEARING - 3
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legitimately in dispute that may require holding an

evidentiary hearing.” (Id., at p. 485.)

However, Duvall requires that “the return should set forth with specificity:
(1) why information is not readily available; (ii) the steps that were taken to try to
obtain it; and (1ii) why a party believes in good faith that certain alleged facts are
untrue.” (/bid, italics added.) It its Return, the people fail to make any of these
assertions regarding their conclusory statement about the victim and Mr. Rodriguez
being housed in the same prison. As such, any such allegations must be dfsregard
by this Court.

The habeas procedure discussed in Lewallen, supra, is akin to the civil
summary judgment procedure. The Court must determine if, between the Return
and the Traverse, there exist any disputed issues of material fact. In the absence of
any dispute, the court may rule on those facts, as a matter of law. “There being no |
disputed factual questions as to matters outside the trial record, the merits of
petitioner's claim can be reached without ordering an evidentiary hearing.” (In re
Lewallen, supra, 23 Cal.3d at p. 278.) Further, “‘[w]hen the return effectively
acknowledges or “admits” allegations in the petition and traverse which, if true,.
justify the relief sought, such relief may be granted without a hearing on the other
factual issues joined by the pleadings.’ [Citation.]” (People v. Duvall, supra, 9
Cal.4th at p. 477.) |

B.  Standard of Review

“A writ of habeas corpus may be prosecuted for . . . [f]alse evidence that is
substantially material or probative on the issue of guilt or punishment was
introduced against a person at a hearing or trial relating to his or her incarceration.”
(Pen. Code, § 1473, subd. (b)(1).)

BRIEF REGARDING SCOPE OF EVIDENTIARY HEARING - 4
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“False evidence is ‘substantially material or probative’ if
it is ‘of such significance that it may have affected the
outcome,’ in the sense that ‘with reasonable probability
it could have affected the outcome ....” [Citation, italics
in the original.] In other words, false evidence passes the
indicated threshold if there is a ‘reasonable probability’
that, had it not been introduced, the result would have
been different. [Citation.] The fequisite ‘reasonable
probability,” we believe, is such as undermines the
reviewing court’s confidence in the outcome. [Citation.]
It is dependent on the totality of the relevant
circumstances. [Citation.] It is also, we believe,
determined objectively. [Citation.]” (In re Sassounian
(1995) 9 Cal.4th 535.)
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The Petitioner has no obligation to show that the prosecutor or his agents
were aware of the impropriety. (In re Hall (1981) 30 Cal.3d 408, 424.)

“In issuing an order to show cause in such a proceeding, a court makes ‘an

implicit preliminary determination’ as to claims within the order that the petitioner

| has carried his burden of allegation, that is, that he ‘has made a sufficient prima

facie statement of specific facts which, if established, entitle him to ... relief ...’
[Citation.]” (In re Sassounian, supra, 9 Cal.4th at p. 547.)

/11
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C.  False Evidence Presented By Victim Hamman Affected Qutcome of

Trial With Reasonable Probability

Petitioners (sic) Traverse sets forth numerous arguments why the false
evidence of Hamman is substantially material or probative to the outcome of trial.
(See Petitioners Traverse, pp. 2-3.) Victim Hamman was the only percipient
witness, apart from the co-defendant Rugg, to the acts central to the crimes Mr.
Rodriguez’s convictions. Victim Hamman’s credibility was therefore central to
both the Prosecution and the Defense

During trial, both Hamman and Rodriguez testified. Rugg did not testify,
and settled her case separately. Ultimately, the defense relied upon a theory that
Rodriguez had no specific intent to either kidnap or kill Mr. Hamman. Mr.
Rodriguez testified that he at no time harbored any intent to kidnap or kill Mr.
Hamman. However, there were conflicts between the testimony of Mr. Rodriguez
and Mr. Hamman specifically regarding whether Mr. Rodriguez kicked Mr.
Hamman, and the height of the water. A jury presented with evidence that Mr.
Hamman presented false evidence of the height of the water would reasonably tilt
the balance in credibility away from Mr. Hamman towards Mr. Rodriguez, and
would change the outcome of the trial.

. CONCLUSION

In light of the above discussion, counsel for Petitioner Rodriguez hereby
requests that the Court proceed without holding an evidentiary hearing. Further,
Petitoner Rodriguez requests the Court sustain its preliminary determination, and
find that the Petitioner has established specific facts which entitle him to relief, and
therefore grant his Writ of Habeas Corpus. Petitioner hereby prays that the court
vacate the convictions against Mr. Rodriguez and order a New Trial.
/11 '
iy
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Dated this 5th day of July, 2016

Martin A. Jones
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PROOF OF PERSONAL SERVICE

The undersigned deposes and says:

I am an employee of the Placer County Public Defender’s Office; that I am over the

age of 18 years and not a party to this cause, that my business address is 11760 Atwood Rd.,
Suite 4, Auburn, CA 95603.

That on July 5, 2016, I personally served a true copy of BRIEF REGARDING
SCOPE OF EVIDENTIARY HEARING, below named:

Placer County District Attorney - -
10810 Justice Center Drive Suite #240 ' '
Roseville, CA 95678

Placer County Superior Court
10820 Justice Center Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

[ declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on 7/5/16 at Auburn, California.

-

Stephanie Kaéper




PROOF OF PERSONAL SERVICE

The undersigned deposes and says:
I am an employee of the Placer County Public Defender’s Office; that I am over the

age of 18 years and not a party to this cause, that my business address is 11760 Atwood Rd.,
Suite 4, Auburn, CA 95603.

That on July 5, 2016, I personally mailed a true copy of BRIEF REGARDING
SCOPE OF EVIDENTIARY HEARING, below named:

Office of Attorney General
P.O. Box 94425
Sacramento, CA 94244

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on 7/5/ 16 at Auburn, Califc;mia.

Stephanie Kasgr
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1 ||R. SCOTT OWENS,

Placer County District Attorney

2 ||State Bar No. 146406

10810 Justice Center Drive, Suite 240
3 ||Roseville, CA 95678-6231

4 [|Tel: (916) 543-8000

SUPERIOR COURT OF PLACER COUNTY

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

10 --000--
't ||THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF No. WHC-0001400
1» ||CALIFORNIA,
62-03Ul ¥4
13 Plaintiff,
PN . RESPONDENT’S SUPPLIMENTAL
Y14 vSs. , RETURN AND ARGUMENT TO
, PETITIONER’S PETITION FOR WRIT
15 {| SHAWN MICHAEIL RODRIGUEZ, OF HABEAS CORPUS (Penal Code
16 . Section 1480; CA Rules of
Defendant. Court, Rule 4.551(d))
17
18
19 : ' STATE OF THE CASE
20 The Court filed a “Court Order Setting Evidentiary

21 Hearing” on December 22, 2015. Subsequently, on April 18,

22
2016, the case was conferenced with the Hon. Judge Curry.

23
It was agreed by all parties that a hearing on physical
24 4

evidence was not needed in this case because the People had
25 ' :

26 stipulated to certain facts regarding the recantation of
27

28 1
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the victim Nicolas Hamman in their “Response to Order to
Show Cause” filed on August 27 2015.

Specifically, the People conceded that Nicolaus Bammaﬁ
recanted his trial testimony on.the issue of “water height”
wvhile he was locked in his cell. Although he maintains
that all other aspécts of his testimony were truthful,
Hamman concedes that the water only reached his thighs
(three feet high) as opposed to coming up.to his neck.

ARGUMENT
A. Habeas Corpus relief ‘should be denled because
substantial independent evidence exists to Justlﬁy
the convictions in this case.

False evidence presented at trial does not result in a
right to a new trial unless the new evidence providéd by
recantation would render a different result on a retrial
reasonably probable. (People v. Minnick (1989) 214 cal.

App. 3d 1478). The false evidence must be substantially

material or probative on the issue of guilt. False

-evidence_is_substantially.material .or. probative_if_there_is

a reasonable probability phat, had it not been int:oduced;
the result would have bgen different. The court must
consider all the evidence on the particular issue ﬁnder
consideration and determine if it undermines the confidence
of the outéome. (In re Larry H. Roberts (2003) 29 Cal. 4t

126; In re Sassounian (1995) 9 Cal.4th 535).
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i. The petitioner’s own statements and
1 testimony clearly shows that the he is
guilty of Conspiracy to Commit Premeditated
Murder and Kidnapping for Ransom.
The following facts are taken from the petitioner’s
own testimony:
The petitioner admits to being with the victim and
Anna Rugg the night before the incident. (R.T. 561). Rugg
¢ ||and the petitioner have a conversation about wanting to
9 [|“rob” the victim (R.T. 564). The petitioner sees the

10 [|victim and gets into the victim’s car. (R.T. 568). The

11 llpetitioner then aids co-D Rugg by climbing into the

12 abandoned Juvenile Hall through a window to open the door

1 to the facility. (R.T..569). While the petitioner claims
Rugg locked the victim in the cell, the petitioner admits

I: that he discusses leaving the victim in the cell and then

17 takes the victim’s car. (ﬁ.T. 572-571).

18 The petitioner had an “unspoken agreement” as to what

19 {{to do with the victim while he'was'locked in a cell against

/’D\Z’l

20 ffhis will with water running on him. (R.T. 573). The

21" llpetitioner conceded that “robbing” was the plan. (Id.) The

22 petitiongr assisted in blocking the water from exiting the
2 cell using towels and moving a shelf in front of the door.
“ (R.T. 577) These actions had an effect on the wate£ level.
z: (R.T. 578). The petitioner'was successful in getting the
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victim’s ATM card using the water level. The petitioner
and Rugg used the ATM card to obtain gas money (R.T. 579).

While the victim was locked in the cell, the
petitioner discussed ways to kill the victim with Rugg.
(R.T. 582). }The petitioner also discussed ways to dispose
of.the victim’s body. (R.T. 581) During these
conversations, the petitioner relayed the method of carbon
monoxide poisoning to Rugg. (R.T. 584). Subsequently to
giving this information to Rugg, the petitioner left their
location at Rick’s home for the pﬁrpose of implementing the
carbon monoxide poison schéme. (R.T. 585). The petitioner
admits to agreeing to g; along with the plan to kill the
victim with carbon monoxide. (R.T. 586). The pétitioner
tﬁen'goeé and gets duct tape at Albertsons, ties multiple
hoses together, takes the hoses to the juvenile hall and
sticks it into a vent that vented into the victim’s cell.
(R;T. 587-588). At this point, the petitiongr has a
-chametLe—as_he_watches»Ruggmductmtape,thenother—epd~o£—thef———————
hose to the exhaust pipe on the vehicle. (R.T. 588). The
petitioner then allows the car to pump deadly gas into the
victim’s cell for 15-20 minutes. (R.T. 589)

It is clear from the petitioner’s own testimony that
he conspired to commit premeditated murder with Rugg.. The

petitioner then implemented the plan by obtaining the
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necessary items and pumping a deadly gas into the enclosed
cell of the victim.

It is also clear from the petitioner;s own testimony
4 {|that the dgfendant used the false imprisonment and a iising
5 ||[vater level to extort an ATM card from the victim.
6 The petitioner’s QWn testimony along with the fact
that Auburn Police Department found the victim in the celi,
(providing corpus), is sufficient to sustain a conviction
for Conspiracy to Coﬁmit Murder and Kidnapping for

10

Extortion. The victim’s testimony about what occurred is
11

12 totally unnecessary for the conviction to stand.
13 ||Therefore, it is clear that a recantation about the water
N\ 14 ||level is not substantially or probative. This change of

15 [{fact would have no change on the result of the trial.

16
17 ii. ,HAMMAN;S CREDIBILITY WAS ALREADY DAMAGED

18 DURING THE TRIAL AND CONSIDERED BY THE JURY.
19 Victim Hamman gave a false statement to officers

....... o s oSS,

20 [|regarding the location of his car keys during the

21 llkidnapping. (RT 479-480). The fact that he lied to law

22 |l enforcement was considered by this jury in deliberations.

23 ' ‘
Additionally, victim Hamman admitted to “hearing voices”
24
and being delusional during the time period of this case.
25 '
(R.T. 548). Clearly Hamman had issues with his credibility
26
~

28 5
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at trial. These issues were presented to the jury to
consider in this case. The bottom line is that Hamman’s
credibility in this case doesn’t matter. Law Enforcement

officials found Hamman locked in a cell with water falling

on him. Physical evidence of the extortion and attempt to

kill him was found on scene. The petitioner admits to all
the physical acts to which .he was accused. The.only issue
disputed by éhe petitioner at the time of trial was his
intent (state of mind) during the incident. Importantly,
Hamman could nét and did not testify to the petitioner’s
state of mind. This fact was inferred §y the physical
evidence and testimony of the other witnesses having
nothing to do with the puiported height of water in the
cell+. Thus, there clearly is no reasonable possibility
that the recantation about the level of the water would

have any impact on the verdict in this case. .

20
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CONCLUSIOﬁ o

For the foregoing reasons, Respondent requests
that the Writ.of Habeas Corpus be denied. The People
are willing to provide the audio version of the
victim’s recantation and bthe letters written to the

District Attorney by the victim upon request.
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Dated: July 7, 2016.
Respectfully submitted,

R. SCOTT OWENS,
5 ' DISTRICT ATTORNEY

BY.

. { MOQ@RE,
DEPUTY¥DISTRICT ATTORNEY
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PROOF OF SERVICE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
) ss.

COUNTY OF PLACER )

I, the ﬁndersigned, declare:

That I am a citizen of the United States.
That I am over 18 years of age.
That I am a resident of Placer County,California.
That I am not a party to the within action.
That my business address is Placer County
Dlstrlct Attorney’s Office, 10810 Justice Center Drive,
Suite 240, Roseville, CA 95678-6231

6. That I am readily familiar with the bu81ness
practices of the County of Placer for collection and
processing of correspondence for mailing with the United
States Postal Service on the same date of placement for
collection.

7. That on this date I served a copy of the within

m.a-wwu—‘

SHAWN.MICHAEL RODRIGUEZ
X by placing a true copy thereof and placing it for
collection following ordinary business practices and
addressed as follows:

[[J] transmitting said document(s) by facsimile to the
number (s) set forth below:

[[] personally served said document(s) to the person(s) at

Executed under penalty of perjury this 7th day of
July, 2016, at Roseville, Placer County, California. .

Teresa Frazier,

19
20 the address(es) set forth below:
21 PLACER COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
(Served at front counter)
22
23
24 i
(ccp 1013A, 2015.5)
25
26

27

28
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SUPERIC.. COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF P. _ER

#1 Date:7/15/16 Time: 9:00AM Department 3 Special Setludge: Mark S Curry
Pa=nle vs. Rodriguez :“k‘b\"\(:\g\-){\ Case Number: 62-034689A
) ¢ of Proceedings: i-urther Proceedings Custody Status: Sentenced Defendant
Motion Detail: Time Waiver: General Waived through :
Additional Information: Status Conference WHC 1400 PC§977
Clerk: Renee Graham / Reporter: Ruth Eileen Hunter
Defense Counsel: Placer County Public Defender, ;--_'% . s
Aty NS ooa TGN Car WIS
Interpreter: [ ] certified [ ] qualified Languag&: \ []1 Oath on File
NEXT COURT APPEARANCE: _ . Time Estimate: __
A P el L Nome o e g - .‘, i . : 3 - S \1 ;‘;'
\)\( (4™ .S-\(.U\\ \ ﬂ@ DA\ Q—l \ \.D \ EZAL) -‘t)ﬂ\ "ﬂ)va atét%pen events
7
[ ] Defendant present,Pgﬁt present HX’CQ?? [1BW ordered. Bail $ [1NCIC
[]Arr waived []Arrn completed [] Viol of Prob [ 1 Referred to DA for Arrest Warrant [ ] O/R revaoked

Appt. []Pube quefqd'er_ ) Wict Firm . | __w'\“ [1BWheld []BW recalled [] Warrant remains active

(1 X K—’,rki WY o ds N\ 1 ] Probation [ ] summarily revoked [ ] reinstated [ ] terminatec
[1Not guilty [] Dertied [ 1 Admitted{ 2T e (VL] Bail forfeited [ ] Exonerated [ ] Forfeiture set aside

[ ] Advised financial responsibility '\ {\C\““%\ s ] Bail is reinstated [] Reinstatement fee is waived

[1Case dismissed [] Petition dismissed“\:%glx E:TC [ ] Defendant shall pay reinstatement fee $

[ ] Amended

[ ] General time waiver [] Time not waived []Civil assessment []ordered [] confirmed
[] Time waived to [] next hearing []to [ ] Criminal Protective Order filed & served
Preliminary hearing time waiver [] 10 [] 60 [ ] Dropped from calendar

Trial time waiver [ ] general [ ] 60 days [ ] to next date [ ] not waived

Attend and provide proof of self help meetings per week until further order of the Court

Proof [ ] shown [1 not shown

[] Motion for new jail turn in date [] granted [] denied. New turn in date Previous date

[ALranscript request date Reporter requested by [ ] Court [ ] Defense [ ] DA

. EP CENTER: Defendant is ordered to report to probation for an assessment within 72 hours to determine qualification into
the PREP center. Defendant is ordered to fully comply with case plans as established by probation if deemed qualified after
assessment.

[] Defendant transitioned from Prop 36, the plea is withdrawn, case is dismissed and fees/fines are waived and set aside

[] Defendant ordered to undergo treatment pursuant to PC1210.1in county.

[] Defendant is found to be indigent and qualifies for court appointed counsel

[1DEJ []PC1000 completed, plea withdrawn and case is dismissed [1See Formal Order

i) s N

T N0, OO was | r\gnrm@_‘ BRI RS\ ed TN
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Defendant ordered to report to the: [ rlm,‘na iv orY\‘[' Re\?’éﬂ g ervu:\eé' ] Public Defen &l’ e

[ ] Probation Department [] Forthwith ¢] on - : :
ooy G, OGN O - LA\

‘Remanded to custody of Sheriff until next appearance. Bail [] assetor$ [ ] Bail terms if released

[JCDCR [1PC1170(h) [] PC1170(h)(5) Charge: [1Felony []Misd :
credits ( actual good time pretrial)

[1 Committed to serve : jail &
?’ﬁ% ,
[1 Committed to ® state hospital

[ OIR “3{ Jwith terms [] Supervised Pretrial Release: [] O/R [] EMP [] Bail
\‘%;,‘.a\ p

e,

&

[ 1 Discharged

r;i:'-{evenue Services Probation DA Defense Counsel 05-2016
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SUPERIC COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF PL. .ER

#19 Date:7/20/16 Time: 1:30PM Department 33 Judge: Mark S Curry
People vs. Rodriguez and Rugg Case Number: 62-034689A
/,N\iture of Proceedings: Review Custody Status: Placer County Jail
tion Detail: Time Waiver: General Waived through :

Additional Information: (Set at 3:00W s Corpus WHC-1400
Clerk: Renee Graham / 4 5 ) Reporter: Ruth Eileen Hunter

Defense Counsel: Pla ounty Public Defender,
Atty: N S D.DA. E }x M D,
u

Interpreter: [ ] certified [ ] qualified age: [ ] Oath on File

NEXT COURT-APPEARANCE: y - ' Time Estimatg; ‘A
H o tirl JO- ot

[ ] vacate open events

j‘ﬂz:';endant present [Ynot present []PC977 []BW ordered. Bail $ []NCIC
1 waived []Arrn completed [] Viol of Prob [] Referred to DA for Arrest Warrant [] O/R revoked
Appt. []Public Defender [] Conflict Firm [1BWheld []BW recalled [ ] Warrant remains active
[] [ ] Probation [ ] summarily revoked [] reinstated [ ] terminatex
{1 Not guilty [] Denied [ ] Admitted [ ] Bail forfeited [ ] Exonerated [] Forfeiture set aside
[ ] Advised financial responsibility []Bail is reinstated [] Reinstatement fee is waived
[] Case dismissed [] Petition dismissed [ ] Defendant shall pay reinstatement fee $
[ ] Amended
[ ] General time waiver [] Time not waived [] Civil assessment [] ordered [] confirmed
[] Time waived to [] next hearing [ ] to [ ] Criminal Protective Order filed & served
Preliminary hearing time waiver [] 10 [] 60 [ ] Dropped from calendar

Trial time waiver [ ] general [ ] 60 days [ ] to next date [ ] not waived
Attend and provide proof of self help meetings per week until further order of the Court
Proof [] shown [ ] not shown
[ 1 Motion for new jail turn in date [ ] granted [ ] denied. New turn in date Previous date
[]1Transcript requestdate____ Reporter requested by [ ] Court [ ] Defense [] DA

/,.q PREP CENTER: Defendant is ordered to report to probation for an assessment within 72 hours to determine qualification into

PREP center, Defendant is ordered fully comply wnth as plans as esta shed by probatlo if deemed quallf ezE after
assessmen[t]b/.fc(,(55cd>") +
IS

[] Defendant transitioned from Prop 36, thé plea is w;thdrawn case is dis fees/f ines are walved nd set asng?

[] Defendant ordered to undergo treatment pursuant to PC1210.1 in Hlﬁ% 7— X s
[] Defendant is found to be indigent and qualifies for court appointed counsel /Zéu-(, bc’e'/h e

[1DEJ [] PC1000 completed, plea withdrawn and case is dismissed : [ ] See Formal Order

o~
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: , 7 'f 7 Sl
[%'{:Ilred%oo ed and releasedg 7

Defendant ordered to report to the: [ ] Criminal Division [] Revenue Services [] Public Defender

[1 Probatlon mr?en% Forthwith []on

)(Remanded to cusTor ody of Sherlff until next appearance. Bail [] as setor $ N (¥ .

r—-‘-'

[] Bail terms if released

[JCDCR []PC1170(h) []PC1170(h)(5) Charge: [] Felony []Misd
[1 Committed to serve : jail credits ( actual good time pretrial)
[1 Commiitted to state hospital

[1Discharged []O/R []withterms [] Supervised Pretrial Release: [ ] O/R [] EMP [] Bail

Defendant  Jail Revenue Services  Probation DA Defense Counsel 05-2016
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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA % Iﬂ
Superier
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF PLACER upg&g 2

ounya

DEPARTMENT 3

IN RE PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS  [Case No.: WHC 1400

CORPUS, 62- 34689
COURT ORDER DENYING PETITION FOR
SHAWN RODRIGUEZ, 'WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS.
#V16387
Petitioner.
Procedural History

In 2003, Petitioner Shawn Michael Rodriguez was convicted by a jury of kidnapping for
extortion, conspiracy to commit murder, vehicle theft, and two counts of using another's name to
obtain credit or property. He was sentenced to 25 years to life in prfson. The conviction was
affirmed in the court of appeal on January 4, 2005. (People v. Rodriguez 3rd DCA #C045882
unpub.)

On July 24, 2015, the Petitioner filed in the Superior Court a petition for writ of habeas
corpus. The Court found a prima facie case for relief was established concerning the issue of
whether there was new evidence in the form of the recantation of a material witness. The Court
issued an Order to Show Cause and appointed Petitioner the Public Defender. On August 27,
2015, the respondent (Placer County District Attorney) filed a “response.'” The Petitioner,
through his counsel, filed a request to extend the time to file a Traverse, however, in the
meantime, the Petitioner filed his own Traverse on October 21, 2015, and a motion “stipulating

to the withdrawal of the public defender.” On December 2, 2015, the Public Defender withdrew

! The correct response should have been a “Return.” (People v. Duvail (1995) 9 Cal.4th 464.)
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their representation citing the Petitioner’s desire to represent himself. Subsequently, however, the
Public Defender was re-appointed. On December 22, 2015, the Court ordered an evidentiary
hearing.

On July 20, 2016, in Department 33, an evidentiary hearing was held. The Petitioner was
personally present, represented by Public Defender Martin Jones. The People were represented
by DDA Jeff Moore. It was stipulated by the parties that no actual testimony was required. The
People conceded that witness Hamman had presented false testimony at the trial regarding the
depth of the water in the cell, as described in a statement/letter he had written to the District
Attorney. A copy of the letter was admitted as evidence without objection. (Exb. #1, # 2;
[Attached] ) It was further stipulated that in the determination of whether the “new evidence”
warrants a new trial, the Court would consider and review the 2003 trial evidence. Thereafter, the]

Court took the matter under submission.

Contested Issue
The Petitioner contends that because a material witness lied during his testimony at the
2003 trial, a new trial is required. The prosecution, on the other hand, contends that other
evidence of the Petitioner’s guilt at trial was so strong that a different result is not probable upon

retrial.

Summary of 2003 Trial Evidence

It was uncontested at trial that prosecution witness, Nicholas Hamman (hereinafter
referred to as “Hamman™), was locked against his will in a holding cell of an abandoned juvenile
detention facility in Auburn, California. He remained locked in the cell for nearly 40 hours until
found by law enforcement. While locked in the cell Hamman relinquished to others his ATM
card, PIN number, car keys, and cash. In addition, Hamman intentionally activated a fire
sprinkler on the ceiling of the cell thereby causing water to spray into the cell.

Hamman was the prosecution’s chief witness who provided his account of what occurred.

(Summarized below.) He testified how the Petitioner and Anna Rugg’ (hereinafter referred to as

% Ms. Rugg was charged and tried separately.
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“Anna”) locked him in the cell against his will, threatened him, and demanded his property. He
testified that ultimately he surrendered his property to the Petitioner and Anna. The prosecution
introduced as evidence a statement made by the Petitioner to the police following his arrest
wherein he admitted being present when Hamman was locked in the cell.

The Petitioner testified in his own defense. (Summarized below.) He admitted
committing many of the acts alleged by the prosecution to form the basis for the charged crimes,
but denied that he ever formed an intent to kill Hamman. He attributed the plan to rob and to kill
Hamman to his accomplice “Anna” and explained that he went along with her plans only to
“appease her.”

The Prosecution’s theory of criminal liability was that the Petitioner and Anna locked
Hamman in the cell with the intent to rob him. Subsequently, they conspired to kill Hamman by
planning to introduce carbon monoxide into the cell. The defense contended the Petitioner
lacked the requisite criminal intent for the charged crimes. The contested issue at the trial,

therefore, was the Petitioner’s mental state and intent.

Summary of Hamman's Trial Testimony

At about 9:30 a.m. Hamman was driving his car when he was flagged down by the
Petitioner, Anna, and Erin Hughes, who requested his help moving out of a motel room.
Hamman agreed. Hamman drove to the hotel where a discussion occurred about going to the old
juvenile hall. Anna was the one who suggested they go to the juvenile hall. Hamman drove
Anna and Erin to the abandoned facility and the Petitioner rode his bicycle. Once at the facility,
Hamman assisted bringing their bags from his vehicle into the building. When they were finished
unpacking, Hamman asked whether there was anything else he could do. Anna told him that
Erin was hurt inside and needed help. Anna appeared hysterical so he ran inside looking for
Erin. Anna pointed to a room and told him that Erin was inside. Anna was leading the way.
When Hamman ran into the cell, he saw the room was empty. Anna attempted to slide the cell
door shut, but Hamman jammed his leg in the door jamb to prevent it from closing. The
Petitioner then kicked him in the thigh, so he pulled his leg back and the cell door closed. He
was trapped in the cell. Anna said she would open the door when he calmed down. The

Petitioner began stuffing toilet paper in a vent and said he was going to burn the building down.
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The Petitioner also threatened to shoot him. The Petitioner, Erin, and Anna then departed and
Hamman remained locked in the cell. While they were gone, Hamman noticed a sprinkler on the
ceiling, so he used a lighter to set the sprinkler off thinking the fire department would be
notified. Water from the sprinkler began to spray into the cell.

Later that afternoon, Petitioner and Anna returned. The Petitioner wanted Hamman to
give them his ATM card and PIN number, but the Hamman said no. The Petitioner said he
(Hamman) would drown if he didn’t. Hamman agreed to provide his PIN number, but would
not give them the ATM card. He observed the Petitioner and Anna talking. The Petitioner said
he would turn off the water, but he did not. The Petitioner got a crate and put it in front of the
cell door with some cans stuffed with rags. The rags were put under the cell door. Hamman told
them (Anna and Petitioner) that the water level was rising. The Petitioner told Hamman he would
drown unless he gave them his ATM car, keys, and cash. The water level in the cell rose to
approximately his shoulders and neck. He was afraid for his life. [Hamman RT 47; 52]
(Hamman also told the police during an interview that the water level had reached his shoulders.)
Hamman agreed to surrender his ATM card and the towels were removed and he slid his ATM
card, cash, and keys under the cell door, as directed. Anna picked them up. The Petitioner was
standing by the door. Anna said the Petitioner would attempt to break the window and the
Petitioner hit the window with a fixture one time, but the window did not break. The Petitioner
told Hamman that he had friends in YA who would make sure he disappeared if he ever testified
or said anything. The Petitioner and Anna departed and Hamman remained locked in the cell.

He never saw them again. Hamman was locked in the cell for a total of about 40 hours. He was
not aware there was any plan to kill him with carbon monoxide and he never saw anyone put a

hose into the cell. Hamman admitted he was a convicted felon and a registered sex offender

Summary of Petitioner’s Trial Testimony
The Petitioner went to the juvenile hall facility with Anna, Erin, and Hamman. Anna
had a plan to rob Hamman to get his ATM card. She was talking about stabbing and killing
Hamman, but Petitioner did not take it seriously. Without the Petitioner’s knowledge, Anna
locked Hamman in the cell. She was smiling and holding the keys. Hamman was banging on

the window and telling Anna to get him out. Thereafter, Petitioner, Erin, and Anna left the
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building and took Hamman’s car. The drove to the Foresthill Bridge and then to Sacramento.
They returned to the juvenile hall building about 7-8 hours later. There was water running in the
cell where Hamman was confined. Anna had a plan to get Hamman’s ATM PIN number. She
told Hamman that if he gave her the PIN number she would break the glass and let him out. The
Petitioner asked Hammon for the PIN number to his ATM card. Eventually, Hamman did give
them his PIN number and the Petitioner tried unsuccessfully to break the window. However,
Anna did not want to break the window and said to wait until Hamman dies. The Petitioner
could hear a loud water sound coming from the cell. Anna then demanded that Hamman
surrender his ATM card. The Petitioner climbed up on a counter in order to yell to Hamman
what Anna was saying. Hamman would not give up his ATM card. The Petitioner and Anna
attempted to block the cell door with some towels and he moved a shelf in front of the door.
They blocked the door in an effort to scare Hamman. The Petitioner assumed the towels would
raise the water level in the cell, but he could not see the water level because it was dark. The
Petitioner was unable to see the water level in the cell, but heard Hamman say the water level
was about three feet. After about 20 minutes, Hamman slid his ATM card and some cash under
the door. The Petitioner pulled the plug allowing the water to drain. Afterwards, the Petitioner
tried to turn off the water, but he was unsuccessful.

It was not his intention to kill or injure Hamman. Anna was talking about various
locations to bury the Hamman’s body. Sporadically, over a two-hour period of time Anna talked
about shooting, stabbing, and beating the Hamman with a barbed wire pole. The Petitioner was
“kind of non-committal” about Anna’s suggestions. The Petitioner figured that once they had
Hamman’s ATM card they could leave the state or call the cops from Reno.

The Petitioner and Anna departed leaving Hamman still locked in the cell. They went to
the Petitioner’s step-brother’s house where it was suggested by his stepbrother that Hamman
could be killed with carbon monoxide. The Petitioner relayed that suggestion to Anna. Anna
wanted to do it. She wanted to “gas him.” The Petitioner, however, did not want to go with her
and requested to be dropped off at a friend’s house, however, the friend was not home. The
Petitioner went along with Anna’s plan because it would “shut her mouth” and the plan would
not work. Anna obtained some hose while the Petitioner went into Albertsons to get some duct

tape. The Petitioner tied the hoses together and took them into the juvenile hall. He put the end
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of the hose through a vent of the cell where Hamman was located. Anna hooked the other end
of the hose to the car exhaust and started the engine. The Petitioner waited in the car and
smoked a cigarette . After about 15 minutes, he told Anna to turn off the engine. He told Anna
that Hamman should be dead by now, but in fact, he did not think 15 minutes would have been
enough time to kill Hamman. He did not intend to kill the Hamman. He wanted to get out of
there because he had court the next morning He went along with her plan to make her think he
was on board, but he did not want to kill Hamman. When they discovered the Hamman was still’
alive, he pulled out the hoses and put them in the trunk. Anna wanted to kill Hamman with
barbed wire poles, but the Petitioner would not agree to it. He told Anna that if she wanted him
dead, she was going to have to do it. They decided to leave Hamman and drove away. It was
on the drive home that they were stopped by the police. He never intended to kill Hamman and,
in fact, he prevented it. He was fearful of Anna.

During cross-examination, the Petitioner said he had lied to police when he told them
during an interview that he had hit Hamman in the cell. He never hit Hamman. Prior to going
with Hamman to the juvenile hall, it was Anna who wanted to rob Hamman, and he
(Petitioner) went along with her, but he did not want to “beat him down.” He put duct tape
around the cell door to “ to appease Anna.” He asked his step-brother how to kill people. He
asked Hamman for the PIN number to his ATM card while Hamman was locked in the cell. He
also pushed a bookcase against the cell door to “scare him.” He assumed it was a possibility
Hamman could drown. After they had obtained Hamman’s ATM card and PIN number, Anna

used it at an ATM and the Petitioner used cash from the card to obtain gas for Hamman’s car.

Hamman’s Recantation
On February 15, 2015, Hamman prepared a handwritten letter addressed to the District
Attorney. (Exb. 1 & 2) In the letter, the Hamman wrote the following:

“Let me come right to the point. I perjured myself in a trial against two different
defendants, back in 2003; But I am a Christian now! In your county. It was in two
separate trials involving me as a Hamman + Anna Rugg#X02326 DOB 10-2-1982
sentenced to 15 year to life on12-3-2003 currently housed at C.I.W.in CA. + the other
one was Shawn M. Rogriguez #V16387 D.0.B. 12-8-1993 sentenced to 25 to life on
12-8-2003. Currently housed at P.B.S.P”
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“I lied about how deep the water in the cell got it didn’t get up to my kneck it
only got up to my lower part of my thighs + then, I was able to move the rags they had
stuffed under the door+ it went down, that water that is.

“Sworn to be true under penalty of perjury.
Signed Nicolas W. Hamman #J98016”

Standard

A defendant is entitled to a new trial if the new evidence renders a different result
probable if a new trial is held. A motion for a new trial should be granted when the newly
discovered evidence contradicts the strongest evidence introduced against the defendant.
However, a new trial on the grounds of newly discovered evidence is not granted where the only
value of the newly discovered testimony is as “impeaching evidence” or to contradict a witness
of the opposing party. (People v. Hall (2010) 187 Cal.App.4th 282, 298.) When a defendant
makes a motion for a new trial based on newly discovered evidence, he has met his burden of
establishing that a different result is probable on retrial of the case if he has established that it is
probable that at least one juror would have voted to find him not guilty had the new evidence

been presented. .” (People v. Soojian (2010) 190 Cal.App.4th 491, 519-521 (Soojian ).)

Analysis

For the sake of this analysis, it is assumed that Hamman did in fact lie during his
testimony concerning the depth of the water in the cell. The People concede this fact. He
testified the water level had risen to his shoulder/neck area, however, according to his letter it
had only risen to his thighs. There is no evidence before the Court that Hamman lied in respect to
any other portion of his testimony.

The Prosecution’s evidence at trial was strong. Through his testimony and statements to
police, the Petitioner essentially admitted his role in the robbery of Hamman. For example, he
admitted that he was present when Anna locked Hamman in the cell and was aware of her plan to
rob him. The Petitioner knew there was water running in the cell and participated in the sealing
the cell door with towels to cause the water level to rise in order to “scare” Hamman. He
communicated to Hamman Anna’s demands and threats. The Petitioner also admitted he took
possession of the victim’s vehicle and ATM card and he was with Anna when it was used to

obtain cash, goods, or gas for the vehicle.
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In light of the above, the Court finds that the Petitioner’s testimony standing alone was
strong evidence of the Petitioner’s commission of robbery and kidnapping for the purpose of
extortion, despite is claim he went along with Anna’s plan only to “appease” her or to “shut her
mouth.” In this regard, therefore, the actual depth of the water in the cell, whether it was to
Hamman’s thighs or his neck, was essentially irrelevant to the issue of whether the Petitioner
meant to rob or extort Hamman.

The thrust of the Petitioner’s testimony and his main defense at trial was that he never
intended to kill Hamman, a defense to conspiracy to commit murder. The People’s theory of the
conspiracy to kill centered on the Petitioner and Anna’s attempt to introduce carbon monoxide
into the cell via a hose attached to the exhaust pipe of the car. [See DA Markey Arg. RT 709-
710] The overt acts alleged to form the basis of conspiracy were the purchasing of duct tape,
obtaining garden hoses, duct taping the cell door, and attaching hose to the vent of the cell.
During his testimony, the Petitioner admitted he and/or Anna performed all these acts,

In that regard, during his testimony, the Petitioner admitted that he knew Anna wanted to
kill Hamman; that he asked his step-brother how to kill someone; that he procured the duct tape
and sealed the cell door; and that he placed the end of the hose into Hamman’s cell. He also
admitted that he did these acts knowing that Anna was attaching the other end of the hose to the
car exhaust, intending to kill Hamman. He also admitted that he knew Anna had started the
engine of the car and that he waited with Anna in the car as exhaust was presumably being
pumped into Hamman’s cell. However, the Petitioner claimed he did these acts only to make
Anna believe he was “on board” and that he never actually formed an intent to kill Hamman.
Similar to the earlier robbery, the Petitioner’s testimony and admissions were strong evidence of]
his participation in a conspiracy with Anna to kill Hamman, despite his claim of lack of intent.
Thus, the Court finds that there is no reasonable probability of a different result at a new trial if
the true level of the water in the cell were known, i.e. to Hamman’s thighs rather than to his neck
or shoulders.

However, Hamman also testified that Petitioner threatened to shoot him and burn the
building down. Hamman testified that Petitioner kicked him in the thigh as Anna was attempting
to shut the cell door. During testimony, Petitioner denied making these statements and denied

kicking Hamman. However, the Petitioner conceded that he did tell investigators that he had hit




O 0 N O Ut AW NN =

N N NN NN NNNR B B B2 B 2 B R @2 <2
0o N o p WNH O O O N OU PP W DN H O

the Hamman, but explained that was lie to the detectives. Thus, the credibility of Hamman
regarding the defendant’s threats and act of kicking him was at issue. It could be argued that a
jury, knowing that Hamman was lying about the depth of the water, might look less favorably
upon his testimony, as a whole.

If the chief evidence of the Petitioner’s guilt at trial was largely dependent upon
Hamman’s credibility, the Petitioner’s argument for a new trial could have greater merit.
However, in this case, given the strength of the Prosecution’s case based mainly upon the
admissions made by the Petitioner, both in his statements to police and during trial testimony, the
credibility of Hamman is much less important. As discussed, it was uncontested that Hamman
was locked in a cell against his will for nearly 40 hours. The Petitioner admitted most of the acts
the Prosecution pointed to as evidence of robbery, extortion, and a conspiracy to commit murder,
i.e., placing rags under the cell door to raise the water level to scare Hamman; taking Hamman’s
property; purchasing duct tape; putting the hose in the vent and sealing the cell with duct tape.
As such, the Prosecution had a very strong case. Even without Hamman’s testimony concerning
the Petitioner’s threats or kicking him in the thigh, the Court finds there was overwhelming
evidence the Petitioner committed robbery and actively participated with Anna in a plan to kill
Hamman. Therefore, the Court finds that Hamman’s lie about the depth of the water does not
contradict sufficiently the Prosecution’s strongest evidence to warrant a new trial. The Court
finds that Petitioner’s admissions were so damning that there is no reasonable probability that a
different result would occur upon retrial. There is no reasonable probability that even one juror
would render a contrary verdict upon a retrial. (Soojian, supra.) Accordingly, the petition for
writ if habeas corpus is denied.

7

The Sheriff is cl"ireéted to return the Petitioner forthwith to the CDCR.
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MARK S. CURRY September 9, 2016
JUDGE OF THE SUPERIOR COURT
COUNTY OF PLACER
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SUPERIOUR COURT OF CALIFORNIA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF PLACER

CLERK’S CERTIFICATE OF MAILING (C.C.P. §1013a(4))

Case number: WHC-1400

Case name: In Re: Shawn Rodriguez

1, the undersigned, certify that I am the clerk of the Superior Court of California, County of Placer, and I
am not a party to this case.

I mailed copies of the document(s) indicated below:

Court Order Denying Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus

True copies of the documents were mailed following standard court practices in a sealed envelope with
postage fully prepaid, addressed as follows:

. Placer County Pistrict Attorney
Attn: Jeff Moore

10810 Justice Center Drive, Suite 240
Roseville, CA 95661

Placer County Public Defender
Attn: Martin Jones

11760 Atwood Drive, Suite 4
Auburn, CA 95603

Office of the Attorney General
Writ Department

1300 I Street, Suite 1101

PO Box 944255

Sacramento, CA 94244-2560

Shawn Rodriguez #V16387
California State Prison-Sacramento
P.O. Box 290066

Represa, CA 95671

California State Prison-Sacramento
Attn: Jeff Macomber, Warden

P.O. Box 290002

Represa, CA 95671

I am readily familiar with the court’s business practices for collecting and processing correspondence for
mailing; pursuant to those practices, the documents are delivered to

Xthe US Postal Service

[Jups

[JFedEx

[JInteroffice mail

[CJother (via email)

On 09/09/16 Placer County, California

Dated: 09/09/16 Jake Chgtters
6f ke Placer County Superior Court

, Deputy Clerk

Form Adopted for Mandatory Use www.placer.courts.ca.gov
Superior Court of California, County of Placer
PC-CW002 [Effective 4-23-15]
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SUPERIOR COURT, PLACER COUNTY
IN AND FOR THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
10820 Justice Center Drive

Roseville CA 95678
PO Box 619072

Roseville CA95661
Case Name: People vs. Shawn Rodriguez
Case Number: 62-034689 & WHC-1400 Add’] Info:
In Custody: (] IDF PCJ [X] Other _to be transported back to CDC
Request to be placed on calendar for:
Request for continuance of: Drop From Calendar

Hearing is set for: 10/26/16 at 130 pm. department 33

Hearing is continued from: Drop from Calendar at am/pm. department
Vo
Requested by: Date:

] In person ] Byphone  [X] Writtenrequest [_] Other:

——

[ ] District Attorney’s office is directed to notify victim of hearing.

Parties Served:

Defendant / Minor [X] by mail X Public Defender
District Attorney / X Court Liaison
By Depy ) @/\ Date: @\‘ q ' \\D
=

TR-022



